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From: Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org

To: greg.lowe@hcahealthcare.com

Cc: Esther Manheimer

Subject: Letter to Greg Lowe - Election Process
Date: Monday, April 6, 2020 1:46:19 PM
Attachments: Election Letter to Greg Lowe.pdf

ATT00001.htm

Mr. Lowe,

Good afternoon. I hope this finds you well. Please find attached a letter from Mayor
Manheimer and me regarding the election process for the nurses at Mission Hospital. Thank
you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Brownie Newman

County Commission Chair

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:
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BUNCOMBE COUNTY THECITYOF
BRSNS ASHEVILLE

April 6, 2020

Greg Lowe, President

HCA Healthcare, North Carolina Division
12 Ardmore Street

Asheville, NC 28803

Dear Mr. Lowe,

We wanted to reach out to you today regarding the process for nurses to have an election on the
formation of a union at Mission Hospital. It is our understanding that the National Labor Relations Board
has lifted the two week moratorium on elections that had been put in place in March. While we
understand that HCA does not support the formation of a union for nurses at Mission Hospital, we hope
that HCA will respect the right of nurses to hold a vote on this decision.

Given the health emergency facing western North Carolina, we believe it is in the best interest of the
community for the election process to move forward as soon as possible. We encourage HCA to
consider entering into a mutual election agreement so the election can be scheduled and held. This will
allow the nurses to make the decision in a democratic manner and, regardless of the result, once
concluded, all the resources of the hospital to be focused on combatting the Covid-19 outbreak rather
than lobbying employees over the question of joining the National Nurses United.

To minimize health risks, it is our understanding that the election could be held using a mail in ballot
process. Thank you for considering this request to move forward with the election process as soon as
possible.

Sincerely,

g M
" ¥ iy 2O % ‘
[Srowne [New e 5q°i . W
Brownie Newman, Esther Manheimer,

Buncombe County Commission Chair Mayor of Asheville

















From: Brownie W. Newman

To: greg.lowe@hcahealthcare.com

Cc: Esther Manheimer

Subject: Letter to Greg Lowe - Election Process
Date: Monday, April 6, 2020 1:46:20 PM
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

To: Rep. Susan Fisher; Brian Turner; Rep. John Ager; Sen. Terry Van Duyn; Julie Mayfield; Esther Manheimer
Cc: Jasmine Beach-Ferrara; Amanda Edwards

Subject: Medical procedures at Mission

Date: Friday, April 24, 2020 3:42:36 PM

Hey legislators and other local elected officials:

As I think you all know, HCA requested approval to begin carry out out medical procedures that had been placed on
hold to assure there is adequate capacity at Mission during the worst of the COVID environment. With the number
of patients who have gotten sick enough to need hospital care being mercifully low, and much lower than forecasted,
the county health staff reviewed their request and determined they are comfortable with this.

At first we thought we might need to amend the County’s local order to enable elective medical procedures.
However, we actually lifted our local restriction on elective procedures on April 8 when we updated our policy to
generally conform to the Governor’s policy for the whole state (with various exceptions). So, no change to the
county order is necessary for this to happen.

I provided HCA with a quote confirming the county health staff have reviewed the request and agreed it is
warranted at this time. We will carefully monitors the numbers and, if they rise in a significant way, we can reinstate
the policy of no elective medical procedures.

Brownie

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

Date: Friday, April 24, 2020 3:44:32 PM

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
the county health staff reviewed this request and determined they are comfortable with it.

At first we thought we might need to amend the County’s local order to enable elective medical procedures.
However, we actually lifted our local restriction on elective procedures on April 8 when we updated our policy to
generally conform to the Governor’s policy for the whole state (with various exceptions). So, no change to the
county order is necessary for this to happen and it is consistent with the state policy.

I provided HCA with a quote confirming the county health staff have reviewed the request and agreed it is
warranted at this time. We will carefully monitor the numbers and, if they rise in a significant way, we can reinstate
the policy of no elective medical procedures.

Brownie Newman

Sent from my iPad
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From: Brownie W. Newman

To: John A Christy

Cc: Avril Pinder; Esther Manheimer

Subject: Need for non-profit COVID-19 lab in western NC
Date: Friday, May 1, 2020 8:26:35 AM

Drew,

Good morning. Hope you are well.

Thank you for advancing the letter we sent to the Governor regarding the establishment of a non-profit COVID-19
lab for western North Carolina. At this time, we have not received a response to the letter. Do you know if we can
expect an answer in the near future?

I want to underline how important this issue is to not just Buncombe County but to western North Carolina. At this
time, the proposal outlined by Dr. Graham is the most promising concept we have seen to enable the affordable
development of large scale, same-day COVID-19 testing for the mountain region. Currently, we are required to send
all of our tests through the mail to labs in cities located outside the region. To do this at large scale is expensive.
Sending test kits through the mail means we will never have same-day testing.

For a disease as contagious as COVID-19, the difference in value for getting a test result within a few hours rather
than 2- 5 days later can not be over-stated. Effective contact tracing will never be possible if we do not get results
until days after the tests are taken.

The other reason this is important to us is that it provides a potentially much more cost-effective approach to large
scale testing. Currently, it costs about $60 for each test. To reach the level of testing recommended by the Governor,
we need to be doing about 200 tests per day in Buncombe County. At $60 per test, that is $12,000 per day for test
results (not counting any of the staffing costs to operate test sites). Over 30 days, that cost is $360,000 per month.
Considering that COVID-19 is likely to be with us for a long-time, and that testing levels well above what the
Governor has recommended as the near term goal, this will be a very substation cost to taxpayers.

Establishing a non-profit lab in western NC would enable testing to be carried out less than half of those costs.
Thank you for your help on this issue. Please feel free to share this with anyone else in the organization. If there are
technical reasons that establishment of such a lab is not a positive idea, we would like to understand the issues.
Brownie Newman,

County Commission Chair

Sent from my iPad
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From: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

To: "Andrew Celwyn"; Brownie W. Newman
Cc: "Julie Mayfield"

Subject: RE: $5 million TPDF Grant Proposal
Date: Friday, April 3, 2020 11:44:37 AM

| talked to Julie last night and she talked about a proposal to get legislative
approval to reallocate all of the TPDF money (6-7 mill?) to make grants to
restaurants and other businesses to help pay for them to ramp back up. The
idea being that if they used the money for this purpose it would be or could be
forgivable. | think this makes a lot of sense for Asheville/BunCo.

From: Andrew Celwyn <andrew@herbiary.com>

Sent: Thursday, April 2, 2020 6:21 PM

To: Brownie W. Newman <brownie.newman@buncombecounty.org>; Esther Manheimer
<esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>

Subject: S5 million TPDF Grant Proposal

Good evening to you both.

With little help from my fellow board members (and others on the call), I'm turning to both of you to
see if you would like to help coordinate putting together a S5million dollar TPDF grant over the next
three weeks.

My preference would be to solicit projects around the city and the county that could be tackled in a
relatively short period of time, 1-3 months, and could inject some money into our community during
this critical time. Artistic endeavors that could beautify our county and other projects that might fall
within the typical TPDF parameters would be critical to making this application strong.

Getting this together by April 21st or 22nd would be helpful as the next board meeting is April 29th.
There is Currently $4.6 million in the TPDF fund and there will be more than $5 million available after
March receipts are included.

You both have a lot on your plates at the moment, as do | with keeping my business afloat and
getting applications in for grants and SBA relief. If the two of you are able to provide some staffing
to actually put the proposal together, I'm willing to help get the word out to the community that we
need people to put forward projects that would be worthy of TPDF money. Lots of people may be
disappointed that their projects aren't funded, but we've got a lot of creative juices out there as well
as people with time on their hands who can help make this "kitchen soup" TPDF project a success.

Maybe it only ends up as $2 million or $3 million depending on what comes in. I've got to think
that's better than letting that money sit for another six plus months.

If the legislature isn't going to help out, | hope we can find a way to help ourselves.
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Thanks for considering this idea. Happy to discuss further when you have time.

-Andrew






From: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

To: Avril Pinder; "Keeter, Brett"

Cc: dcampbell@ashevillenc.gov; Brownie W. Newman; "Kumpf, Roger"

Subject: RE: CARES Act Airport Improvement Plan Funds for Asheville Regional Airport
Date: Thursday, April 16, 2020 3:31:38 PM

Brett- Yes, please pass on the city’s appreciation to Representative McHenry
for his support of grants for our region. We are thankful for his efforts on our

behalf.

Thank you,
Esther

Esther Manheimer

Mayor, City of Asheville

P.O. Box 7148

Asheville, NC 28802

Cell 828.231.8016
esthermanheimer@avicouncil.com

From: Avril Pinder <Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org>

Sent: Wednesday, April 15, 2020 1:48 PM

To: Keeter, Brett <Brett.Keeter@mail.house.gov>

Cc: dcampbell@ashevillenc.gov; Brownie W. Newman <Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>;
esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com; Kumpf, Roger <Roger.Kumpf@mail.house.gov>

Subject: Re: CARES Act Airport Improvement Plan Funds for Asheville Regional Airport

Brett, thank you for the email. Please pass on our thanks to the Congressman, we appreciate the
investment in our community and the region. Take care and let me know if there’s anything we can
do to assist you.

Thanks,
Avril

On Apr 15, 2020, at 1:25 PM, Keeter, Brett <Brett.Keeter@mail.house.gov> wrote:

Ms. Pender & Ms. Campbell,
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Please see the info below and the attached report. The Asheville Regional Airport has
been awarded $14,409,270 in Airport Improvement Plan funds under the CARES Act.
The recipient match has been eliminated and the federal share has been increased to
100% temporarily under CARES.

Please let us know if there are any questions or how we may be of assistance,
Brett

J.BrETT KEETER

District Director

Oftice of Congressman Patrick McHenry
128 West Main Avenue, Suite 115
Gastonia, North Carolina 28052
704.833.0096(0) 704.833.0887(F)

The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act (H.R. 748, Public Law
116-136) (PDF), signed into law by the President on March 27, 2020, includes $10
billion in funds to be awarded as economic relief to eligible U.S. airports affected by the
prevention of, preparation for, and response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

The CARES Act provides funds to increase the federal share to 100 percent for Airport
Improvement Program (AIP) and supplemental discretionary grants already planned for
fiscal year 2020. Under normal circumstances, AIP grant recipients contribute a
matching percentage of the project costs. Providing this additional funding and
eliminating the local share will allow critical safety and capacity projects to continue as
planned regardless of airport sponsors’ current financial circumstances.

Additionally, the CARES Act provides new funds distributed by various formulas for all
airports that are part of the national airport system. This includes all commercial
service airports, all reliever airports and some public-owned general aviation airports.
Under this new CARES Airport Program:

e Primary commercial service airports, with more than 10,000 annual passenger
boardings, will receive additional funds based on the number of annual
boardings, in a similar way to how they currently receive AIP entitlement funds.

e All commercial service airports will receive funds based on the number of
passengers that board aircraft there, the amount of debt an airport has, and the
amount of money the airport has in reserve.

e General aviation airports will receive funds based on their airport categories,
such as National, Regional, Local, Basic and Unclassified.

The FAA plans to make these funds available in April, and airport sponsors should work
with their local Office of Airports field office. The FAA will provide additional guidance
on the CARES Airport Program next week.
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<CARES Act Grant Amounts (Paragraphs 2-4).pdf>

Sign up to receive emergency texts directly from Buncombe County for breaking health and safety
news. Text BCALERT on your smart phone to 888-777 to receive alerts on important information
such as floods, communicable disease, county office closings, and relevant traffic safety notifications
OR visit buncombeready.org

Email correspondence to and from this address may be subject to the North Carolina Public Records
Law and may be disclosed to third parties.

This electronic communication may contain information that is confidential, privileged, proprietary,
or otherwise legally exempt from disclosure. Additionally, the unauthorized disclosure of juvenile,
health, legally privileged, proprietary, or otherwise confidential information may be prohibited by
law. If you have received this email in error, you are hereby notified that you are not authorized to
read, print, retain, copy, or disseminate this communication, any part of it, or any attachments.
Please notify the sender immediately and delete all records of this email. There is no intent on the
part of the sender to waive any privilege that may attach to this communication.
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From: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

To: Brownie W. Newman; "Beau Mills"
Cc: "Philip Isley"; "Christy, John A"
Subject: RE: CLIA Letter for Governor Cooper
Date: Friday, April 17, 2020 5:00:43 PM

Yes, Beau, thanks for all your help!

From: Brownie W. Newman <Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>

Sent: Friday, April 17, 2020 5:00 PM

To: Beau Mills <beau.mills@metromayors.com>

Cc: Philip Isley <Plsley@bmlilaw.com>; esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com; Christy, John A
<drew.christy@nc.gov>

Subject: Re: CLIA Letter for Governor Cooper

Beau,
Thank you so much. This is a tremendously important opportunity for us in western NC and could be

a model that helps expand testing in other communities as well.

Brownie Newman,
County Commission Chair
828-243-0107

Sent from my iPad

On Apr 17, 2020, at 4:49 PM, Beau Mills <beau.mills@metromayors.com> wrote:

BC Email Security couldn't recognize this email as this is the first time
you have received an email from this sender
beau.mills@Metromayors.com

Confirmed the request is in the right hands and has a high priority for consideration for
how to proceed on an expedited basis.

Jordan, Christy and their team are on it!!

Sent from my iPhone - excuse typos...



mailto:esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

mailto:Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org

mailto:beau.mills@metromayors.com

mailto:PIsley@bmlilaw.com

mailto:drew.christy@nc.gov



On Apr 17, 2020, at 2:54 PM, Philip Isley <Plsley@bmlilaw.com> wrote:

I"d forward to Ken Eudy and Lee Lilly for sure. | don’t have their email
addresses but | do have their cell numbers as | bet Beau does too.

Sent from my iPhone
Philip R. Isley

Blanchard, Miller, Lewis & Isley, PA
1117 Hillsborough Street

Raleigh, NC 27603

(919) 755-3993 (o)

(919) 747-8104 (direct dial)

(919) 755-3994 (fax)

On Apr 17, 2020, at 14:51,
"esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com"
<esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com> wrote:

Beau and Philip — see below and attached.
We've got a possibility of setting up a local
testing operation but need to be fast tracked to
get this facility certified. Brownie Newman, our
County Commission Chair, copied here, asked
me to try to route this request to the Governor
as it is believed that he has the authority to get
the certification completed. Brownie reached
out to the local legislative delegation (see
below) and asked me to reach out to my
contacts. He just wants to exhaust all possible
routes to the Governor. Do you have a
suggestion for who to forward this to? | also
copied Drew Christy, the Governor’s director of
the western office.





| appreciate your help with this.

<image001.jpg>

Esther Manheimer

Mayor, City of Asheville

P.O. Box 7148

Asheville, NC 28802

Cell 828.231.8016
esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

From: Brownie W. Newman
<Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>

Sent: Friday, April 17, 2020 11:28 AM

To: Rep. John Ager <john.ager@ncleg.net>; Rep. Brian
Turner <brian.turner@ncleg.net>; Rep. Susan Fisher
<Susan.Fisher@ncleg.net>; Sen. Terry Van Duyn
<terry.vanduyn@ncleg.net>

Cc: Jasmine Beach-Ferrara <Jasmine.Beach-
Ferrara@buncombecounty.org>; Esther Manheimer
<esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>

Subject: Fwd: CLIA Letter for Governor Cooper

John, Brian, Susan and Terry:

| wanted to share with you a copy of a letter we are working
to deliver to Governor Cooper or a senior member of his
team regarding an initiative that could significantly increase
testing for COVID-19 in Buncombe County. See attached.
This would enable us to quickly set up a new testing facility
in the community that would enable large scale, same-day



mailto:esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com



testing at lower cost. It could make a big difference in
fighting COVID-19 and allowing us to reopen businesses and
community activities.

Esther is working to get this to the Governor or key people
on his team. We wanted you to be aware of this effort and
ask if you had any suggestions for what may be the best way
to bring this issue to the Governors attention for potential
action. We believe he has the authority to approve this as
part of his emergency powers. Or perhaps he could get it
approved by requesting help from the appropriate agency
decision-makers.

| will keep you posted with our effort to elevate this issue. If
you have any specific suggestions, that would be great.

Brownie Newman
Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

Sign up to receive emergency texts directly from Buncombe
County for breaking health and safety news. Text BCALERT
on your smart phone to 888-777 to receive alerts on
important information such as floods, communicable
disease, county office closings, and relevant traffic safety
notifications OR visit buncombeready.org

Email correspondence to and from this address may be
subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and may be
disclosed to third parties.

This electronic communication may contain information that
is confidential, privileged, proprietary, or otherwise legally
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exempt from disclosure. Additionally, the unauthorized
disclosure of juvenile, health, legally privileged, proprietary,
or otherwise confidential information may be prohibited by
law. If you have received this email in error, you are hereby
notified that you are not authorized to read, print, retain,
copy, or disseminate this communication, any part of it, or
any attachments. Please notify the sender immediately and
delete all records of this email. There is no intent on the part
of the sender to waive any privilege that may attach to this
communication.

<CLIA letter to Governor.pdf>

<CVgarrettgraham.pdf>

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

To: "Angela Rhew"

Cc: "Brad Branham"; Avril Pinder; "Debra Campbell"; Brownie W. Newman; JMatthews@ashevillenc.gov;
councilgroup

Subject: RE: Covid 19 - City of Asheville

Date: Monday, April 6, 2020 4:48:30 PM

Ms. Rhew — thank you for the email. I've copied the city and county leadership with
your email as well. At today’s live briefing, Fletcher Tove, Buncombe County’s

emergency preparedness director, indicated that the April 9t order will be extended.
This will provide another opportunity to clarify what the rules are during his stay
home, stay safe order. There is confusion since the orders have evolved to some
extent and there are differences between the County and the State’s order (the
County’s more restrictive order controls here in Buncombe County). But your
example highlights how complex this is. While realtors conducting business on
Buncombe County is not deemed essential, if an appraiser is performing an appraisal,
that might be considered the work of a bank or financial institution, which is deemed
essential. And, lawyers can still perform closings. But, at the end of the day, it’s all
about social distancing, so even if an activity is permitted to continue, social
distancing should be practiced. Again, thank you for your email and your concern.

Thank you,
Esther

Esther Manheimer

Mayor, City of Asheville

P.O. Box 7148

Asheville, NC 28802

Cell 828.231.8016
esthermanheimer@avicouncil.com

From: Angela Rhew <angela.rhew@gmail.com>

Sent: Monday, April 6, 2020 4:40 PM

To: Esther E. Manheimer <emanheimer@vwlawfirm.com>
Subject: Covid 19 - City of Asheville

There is too much confusion within the Asheville community on what is and is not allowed for our
area. Many believe that it is your job to make sure that the local residents know and understand the
rules for stay home and normal daily routines. If this is not taken seriously in our area then the rise
in cases and possibly deaths from this community will increase. There should be no grey area on
what is in place. This needs to be made clear to our residents and it is your responsibility to make
sure that is clear for our area. A real estate person that | know is planning on continuing their
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normal schedule; surely appraisals, house showings, meetings, are not considered essential.

There is even talk of the AIRBNB and visitors being allowed to come to Asheville on 4/9/2020. This
should not be allowed. Bringing anyone into the area at this time will do nothing but spread this
deadly virus. Surely you want to look out for the residents of Asheville than to allow this to happen.
Please help to make sure that this is clear to all concerned. As the death total rises for the US, we

want to make sure that we are all doing our part. Where this may seem clear to some it is not clear
to all.

Your help in getting this cleared up along with the help from news media is greatly appreciated.
Blessings and Stay Well,

Residents of Third Street






From: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

To: "Leighs, Michael"

Cc: Kit Cramer; Clark Duncan; Brownie W. Newman; Avril Pinder; "Debra Campbell"
Subject: RE: Following up

Date: Tuesday, April 21, 2020 12:19:49 PM

Michael — Thank you for following up with me. | am copying Kit Cramer, our
Chamber President, Clark Duncan with Economic Development, the Buncombe
County Chair Brownie Newman, the County Manager Avril Pinder, and City
Manager Debra Campbell.

All — on the mayors’ call today with Mandy Cohen and Michael Leighs, | asked
whether we could expect the State to issue detailed guidelines or rules for the
reopening of the various business sectors (manufacturing, retail, etc.) or
whether we need to develop this locally as the Governor intends to continue to
provide a “floor” in his future orders. Dr. Cohen said that for some sectors, the
rules (or guidance, depending) will be granular/detailed for certain sectors but
not for all sectors.

Below Michael is asking if we can have a representative (or two, | hope)
participate in this call tomorrow of Chambers on this issue. Brownie and |
talked with Kit and Clark yesterday and | think it would be great if Kit and Clark
participated in this call (if they’re not already) and then relay that information
to the rest of us. Does that work for everyone?

Please work with Leigh to get the call in info.

Thanks to all,
Esther

Esther Manheimer

Mayor, City of Asheville

P.O. Box 7148

Asheville, NC 28802

Cell 828.231.8016
esthermanheimer@avicouncil.com
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From: Leighs, Michael <Michael.Leighs@dhhs.nc.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, April 21, 2020 11:51 AM

To: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

Subject: Following up

Good morning Mayor Manheimer —

| wanted to follow-up on your comments during our call with Secretary Cohen. We are convening a
call with the NC Chamber and other groups tomorrow afternoon to discuss planning around
potential business reopening guidance. It would be great to have a representative to reflect the
business planning that you are doing in the Asheville area that you referenced on the call.

Thank you,
Mike

Michael Leighs, MPP

Director of Intergovernmental Affairs

NC Department of Health & Human Services
101 Blair Drive, Adams Building

2001 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699

Michael.leighs@dhhs.nc.gov

919-855-4863 direct
919-627-0945 cell

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties
by an authorized State official. Unauthorized disclosure of juvenile, health, legally privileged, or otherwise confidential information,
including confidential information relating to an ongoing State procurement effort, is prohibited by law. If you have received this email in
error, please notify the sender immediately and delete all records of this email.



mailto:Michael.leighs@dhhs.nc.gov




From: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

To: "Jaime Matthews"; Brownie W. Newman
Subject: RE: Fw: testing

Date: Tuesday, April 14, 2020 8:40:51 AM
yes

From: Jaime Matthews <jmatthews@ashevillenc.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, April 14, 2020 8:15 AM

To: Brownie W. Newman <Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>; Esther Manheimer
<esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>

Subject: Fwd: Fw: testing

Would tomorrow morning at 8:30 work for a call with Dogwood?

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Jennifer Fletcher <j.fletcher@dht.org>
Date: Mon, Apr 13, 2020 at 9:50 PM

Subject: Fw: testing

To: Jaime Matthews <jmatthews@ashevillenc.gov>

Hi Jaime,

| hope you're doing well. Antony and Betsey could be available on Wednesday at 8:30am or
after 3:00pm. Please let me know if there is anything during those times that work well on
your end.

thanks so much,

Jennifer Fletcher

Dogwood Health Trust
(828) 458-1972 (C)
jfletcher@dhtorg | www.dhtorg

From: Antony Chiang <a.chiang@dht.org>

Sent: Monday, April 13, 2020 5:14 PM

To: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com <esthermanheimer@avicouncil.com>

Cc: 'Debra Campbell' <dcampbell@ashevillenc.gov>; JMatthews@ashevillenc.gov
<JMatthews@ashevillenc.gov>; Jennifer Fletcher <j.fletcher@dht.org>; Betsey Russell

<b.russell@DHT.org>
Subject: Re: testing
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Mayor,

Happy to make ourselves available.

Thanks,
Antony

From: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com <esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>
Sent: Monday, April 13, 2020 4:30 PM
To: Antony Chiang

Cc: 'Debra Campbell'; JMatthews@ashevillenc.gov
Subject: testing

Antony — Hope you’re doing well. | was talking with the Chair of the Buncombe
County Commission earlier today (Brownie Newman) and he was explaining
that the Commissioners are considering having a specially called meeting this
week to urge their staff (Health Dept., etc.) to engage in robust community
COVID 19 testing. They want to develop a model here that can be replicated in
other counties. Based on our earlier conversation, | thought they would
benefit from discussing this concept with you before having that Commissioner
meeting. Could we set up a call with you and Brownie and at least one other
Commissioner tonight, or tomorrow or Wednesday? They want to have their
specially called meeting on Thursday.

Thanks,
Esther

Esther Manheimer

Mayor, City of Asheville

P.O. Box 7148

Asheville, NC 28802

Cell 828.231.8016
esthermanheimer@avicouncil.com
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Jaime Matthews

Assistant to the City Manager

City of Asheville

Email: jmatthews@ashevillenc.gov
Office: 828-232-4541

Cell: 828-713-3090
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From: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

To: Brownie W. Newman; Kit Cramer

Cc: Sybil Tate; Avril Pinder; "Debra Campbell"
Subject: RE: Input on timing on reopening businesses
Date: Monday, April 20, 2020 9:03:56 AM

Let me know if this call or Zoom comes together, | am glad to participate. The
mayors have a call with Mandy Cohen tomorrow so | may know more after that
but glad to talk whenever.

Esther Manheimer

Mayor, City of Asheville

P.O. Box 7148

Asheville, NC 28802

Cell 828.231.8016
esthermanheimer@avicouncil.com

From: Brownie W. Newman <Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>

Sent: Sunday, April 19, 2020 1:11 PM

To: Kit Cramer <kcramer@ashevillechamber.org>

Cc: Sybil Tate <Sybil.Tate@buncombecounty.org>; Avril Pinder
<Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org>; Debra Campbell <dcampbell@ashevillenc.gov>;
esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

Subject: Re: Input on timing on reopening businesses

Kit,

Thanks for reaching out. Would you have time for a call or meeting on Monday? Naturally, we are
looking to our health officials for recommendations on how to safely reopen various business sectors
and community activities. | think it could be helpful if businesses can help bring forward ideas and
protocols that could enable them to operate more safely based on what we know about how COVID-
19 is transmitted. There are likely certain protocols that make sense across all sectors but there
could also be some specific, creative approaches that could be unique to different industries. We
would welcome input from businesses on what some of those protocols could be.

Brownie Newman
828-243-0107
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Sent from my iPad

On Apr 16, 2020, at 3:59 PM, Kit Cramer <kcramer@ashevillechamber.org> wrote:

Sybil, I wanted to share with you the results of a study that was conducted by the
Becker Friedman Institute for Economics at the University of Chicago. | think it’s
pertinent because of the sheer number of small businesses in our community. And it
also has bearing on the decisions we make about how long we keep businesses closed.

First, here’s a link to the working paper, “How are Small Businesses Responding to
COVID-19?”, https://bfi.uchicago.edu/wp-content/uploads/BFI_ WP_202042.pdf.

The things that struck me are things that we basically knew already, but this research
provides additional weight:

“...our results suggest that many businesses are financially fragile. The median firm with
expenses over $10,000 per month has only enough cash on hand to last for two weeks.
Three-quarters of respondents state that they only have enough cash on hand to cover
two months of expenses or less. Parsa et al. (2005) also note the fragility of small
restaurants.”

“Section 6 considers survival rate differences across industries, and how this depends
on the duration of the crisis. In-person industries like personal services or retail report
much lower prospects for riding out the pandemic than professional services or other
sectors with minimal need for face-to-face contact. Unsurprisingly, the longer the crisis
last, the lower the probability that firms ascribe to their reopening after the crisis. If the
crisis lasts 4 months instead of 1 month, only 47% of businesses expect to be open in
December compared to 72% under the shorter duration.”

“Section 7 concludes. The COVID-19 crisis represents a once-in-a-generation crisis for
America’s small businesses, especially those that specialize in face-to-face service. One
fifth of America’s workers labor in retail trade, leisure and hospitality and these sectors
are particularly vulnerable to the current pandemic.”

“These results suggest that the damage to our economy and its network of small
businesses will be far larger if the crisis lasts for many months. This suggests large
economic benefits for policies that can safely lead to reopening the economy quickly.”

This survey suggests that we focus in on how to safely reopen the economy.
We would be happy to put together business leaders from a variety of industries to

discuss how we can safely do that, perhaps with a focus on those that are in the
greatest peril of closing, as well as those that employ the most of our citizens.
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Kit Cramer, CCE, IOM

President & CEO

Asheville Area Chamber of Commerce

36 Montford Ave.

Asheville, NC 28801

828.258.6123 kcramer@ashevillechamber.org
@kitcramer
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Building Community Through Business
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COMMERCE EXECUTIVES

For updates and business resources on Covid-19, visit: www.ashevillechamber.org/coronavirus

Join us for Virtual Business Workshops Tuesdays at 10 a.m. and Thursdays at 3 p.m. Details will be
posted on the site.
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
Date: Monday, April 20, 2020 12:52:33 PM

3:00 or later works for me too.

From: Brownie W. Newman <Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>
Sent: Monday, April 20, 2020 11:21 AM

To: Kit Cramer <kcramer@ashevillechamber.org>

Cc: Esther Manheimer <esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>

Subject: Re: Input on timing on reopening businesses

Kit — How about 3 PM? | am also free anytime after 3 PM.
Esther — Are you free at this time?

Brownie

Sent from my iPad

On Apr 20, 2020, at 11:01 AM, Kit Cramer <kcramer@ashevillechamber.org> wrote:

Brownie, let me know times that work for you and Esther. | have a meeting at 1:00
today but otherwise my schedule can be flexible.

| agree that we need both health officials and business leaders at the table. Businesses
are unigue by industry and only the business leaders really understand their processes.
Similarly, only the health officials understand the larger implications for keeping the
community healthy.

| understand that Clark has already been working with April Brown on compiling
manufacturing workplace safety best practices, which is great.

With regard to the hospitality, retail and restaurant industries, we’ll have considerably
different, equally complicated issues.

| have been impressed with the degree of collaboration that has occurred between the
public and private sectors during this time. It’s a silver lining to all of this and I'd like to
see it continue. It strengthens the case for any decisions made if we can illustrate to
arm chair quarterbacks that there was a high level of communication involved.

Let me know a time that works for you.



mailto:esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

mailto:Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org

mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=user145deed3

mailto:kcramer@ashevillechamber.org



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

Thanks for reaching out. Would you have time for a call or meeting on Monday?
Naturally, we are looking to our health officials for recommendations on how to safely
reopen various business sectors and community activities. | think it could be helpful if
businesses can help bring forward ideas and protocols that could enable them to
operate more safely based on what we know about how COVID-19 is transmitted.
There are likely certain protocols that make sense across all sectors but there could
also be some specific, creative approaches that could be unique to different industries.
We would welcome input from businesses on what some of those protocols could be.

Brownie Newman
828-243-0107
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Sent from my iPad

On Apr 16, 2020, at 3:59 PM, Kit Cramer
<kcramer@ashevillechamber.org> wrote:

Sybil, | wanted to share with you the results of a study that was conducted
by the Becker Friedman Institute for Economics at the University of
Chicago. | think it’s pertinent because of the sheer number of small
businesses in our community. And it also has bearing on the decisions we
make about how long we keep businesses closed.

First, here’s a link to the working paper, “How are Small Businesses
Responding to COVID-19?”, https://bfi.uchicago.edu/wp-

content/uploads/BFI_WP_202042.pdf.

The things that struck me are things that we basically knew already, but
this research provides additional weight:

“...our results suggest that many businesses are financially fragile. The
median firm with expenses over $10,000 per month has only enough cash
on hand to last for two weeks. Three-quarters of respondents state that
they only have enough cash on hand to cover two months of expenses or
less. Parsa et al. (2005) also note the fragility of small restaurants.”

“Section 6 considers survival rate differences across industries, and how
this depends on the duration of the crisis. In-person industries like
personal services or retail report much lower prospects for riding out the
pandemic than professional services or other sectors with minimal need
for face-to-face contact. Unsurprisingly, the longer the crisis last, the
lower the probability that firms ascribe to their reopening after the crisis.
If the crisis lasts 4 months instead of 1 month, only 47% of businesses
expect to be open in December compared to 72% under the shorter
duration.”

“Section 7 concludes. The COVID-19 crisis represents a once-in-a-
generation crisis for America’s small businesses, especially those that
specialize in face-to-face service. One fifth of America’s workers labor in
retail trade, leisure and hospitality and these sectors are particularly
vulnerable to the current pandemic.”

“These results suggest that the damage to our economy and its network
of small businesses will be far larger if the crisis lasts for many months.
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This suggests large economic benefits for policies that can safely lead to
reopening the economy quickly.”

This survey suggests that we focus in on how to safely reopen the
economy.

We would be happy to put together business leaders from a variety of
industries to discuss how we can safely do that, perhaps with a focus on
those that are in the greatest peril of closing, as well as those that employ
the most of our citizens.

Kit Cramer, CCE, IOM

President & CEO

Asheville Area Chamber of Commerce
36 Montford Ave.

Asheville, NC 28801

828.258.6123 kcramer@ashevillechamber.org

@kitcramer
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Details will be posted on the site.
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Sign up to receive emergency texts directly from Buncombe County for breaking health
and safety news. Text BCALERT on your smart phone to 888-777 to receive alerts on
important information such as floods, communicable disease, county office closings,
and relevant traffic safety notifications OR visit buncombeready.org

Email correspondence to and from this address may be subject to the North Carolina
Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.
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This electronic communication may contain information that is confidential, privileged,
proprietary, or otherwise legally exempt from disclosure. Additionally, the
unauthorized disclosure of juvenile, health, legally privileged, proprietary, or otherwise
confidential information may be prohibited by law. If you have received this email in
error, you are hereby notified that you are not authorized to read, print, retain, copy,
or disseminate this communication, any part of it, or any attachments. Please notify the
sender immediately and delete all records of this email. There is no intent on the part
of the sender to waive any privilege that may attach to this communication.

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

To: "Lisabeth Medlock"; "Gwen Wisler AVL City Council"; "Julie Mayfield"; "Keith Young"; "Sheneika Smith";
vijaykapoor@avicouncil.com; Jasmine Beach-Ferrara; Brownie W. Newman; Alfred Whitesides; Amanda Edwards;

Joe Belcher; Robert Pressley; "Brian Haynes"

Cc: "Debra Campbell"; Avril Pinder
Subject: RE: Major COVID-19 Disaster Happening at the ART Station
Date: Wednesday, April 1, 2020 12:38:01 PM

Beth — I am adding the City and County managers to this email.

From: Lisabeth Medlock <lisabeth.resultsconsulting@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, April 1, 2020 11:59 AM

To: Esther Manheimer <esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>; Gwen Wisler AVL City Council
<gwenwisler@avlcouncil.com>; Julie Mayfield <juliemayfield@avlcouncil.com>; Keith Young
<keithyoung@avlcouncil.com>; Sheneika Smith <sheneikasmith@avlcouncil.com>;
vijaykapoor@avlcouncil.com; jasmine.beach-ferrara@buncombecounty.org;
brownie.newman@buncombecounty.org; alfred.whitesides@buncombecounty.org;
mike.fryar@buncombecounty.org; amanda.edwards@buncombecounty.org;
joe.belcher@buncombecounty.org; robert.pressley@buncombecounty.org; Brian Haynes
<brianhaynes@avlcouncil.com>

Subject: Major COVID-19 Disaster Happening at the ART Station

Good Morning Mayor Manheimer, Commissioner Newman and Council and Commission Members,

First, | want to thank all of you for your joint efforts in dealing with this pandemic. Second, |

hope you all stay well. | am writing this morning to talk about what is happening at the ART station
and to ask you to support measures to deal with this public health flash-point. As a consequence of
many factors, including the lack of a comprehensive plan for sheltering the un-sheltered and the
removal of fares, we have a sheltering on the bus/on the platform/in the lobby situation. The result
is that large groups of people are gathered in close proximity hour after hour, day after day, with no
kind of physiol distancing or adequate access to COVID-19 prevention measures.

| did what | could as a volunteer and Chair of the Transit Committee-made sure staff on site had
enough disinfecting products, put up COVID-19 prevention signs, made a phone call and secured 100
masks from the EOC because our drivers had no masks, and obtained enough I1SO alcohol to

ensure buses could be disinfected for the weeks to come. Much more needs to be done.

First, we need a plan for shelter. | know this is something Amy Cantrell and BeLoved have been
championing, but | want to reiterate the great need for a place to shelter where there can be some
separation. Second, we need to reduce the bus routes further by temporarily suspending runs where
there are few riders. My observations, and those of the drivers and staff, are that about 80% of
riders are those sheltering on the bus. Third, there has to be a better plan for making sure there is
access to COVID-19 prevention methods. When the bathrooms closed earlier this week there were
no hand-washing stations provided. Lastly, we need to acknowledge that the drivers are on the front
lines in this pandemic and they should somehow be compensated. | am raising funds to give each
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driver a gift card, but other paths to either enhanced paid sick leave or hazard bonuses should be
explored.

| will stop here and thank you again for the work you are doing to protect the residents of the City
and County.

Best,
Beth

Lisabeth Medlock, PH.D.
Chair, City of Asheville Transit Committee
Vice-Chair, Multimodal Transportation Commission






From: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

To: Kit Cramer

Cc: Clark Duncan; Sybil Tate; dcampbell@ashevillenc.gov; Avril Pinder; councilgroup; Brownie W. Newman
Subject: RE: Notes from discussion/Chamber

Date: Sunday, May 3, 2020 11:32:02 AM

Attachments: image005.png

Kit — I have been so impressed with how the Chamber has quickly stepped up
and pulled these industry groups together to talk about the logistics of and
preparations for reopening. | tried to attend as many of the Zoom industry
meetings as | could and | was impressed by how well attended they were.
People seemed to really appreciate it, everything from practical advice, to just
hearing from their industry sisters and brothers, so to speak, and the struggles
they are collectively experiencing. You and your team have adapted quickly,
gotten creative, and make me feel we're going to be better prepared as a city
and county for the days ahead when we begin to reopen.

Thank you,

Esther

Esther Manheimer

Mayor, City of Asheville

P.O. Box 7148

Asheville, NC 28802

Cell 828.231.8016
esthermanheimer@avicouncil.com

From: Kit Cramer <kcramer@ashevillechamber.org>

Sent: Tuesday, April 21, 2020 11:06 AM

To: Brownie Newman (brownie.newman@buncombecounty.org)
<brownie.newman@buncombecounty.org>; esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

Cc: Clark Duncan <cduncan@ashevillechamber.org>; sybil.tate@buncombecounty.org
Subject: Notes from discussion

Here are my notes from yesterday. I'd appreciate any thoughts you might have about them.
Thanks.
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A COMMUNITY WITH COMPASSION, DONATE TODAY!
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

Join us for Virtual Business Workshops Tuesdays at 10 a.m. and Thursdays at 3 p.m. Details will be posted on the
site.
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From: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

To: sharpjoshblade@yahoo.com

Cc: councilgroup; "Debra Campbell"; JMatthews@ashevillenc.gov; Brownie W. Newman; Avril Pinder
Subject: RE: Please Read As Soon As Possible

Date: Tuesday, April 7, 2020 11:31:20 AM

Mr. ONeil — | hear you. The economic devastation being experienced by closing down the
economy is terrible and a price that all leaders are having to weigh as we make decisions
about ongoing Stay Home, Stay Safe orders. The Governor is leading the charge on this and
the city and county leadership are fully supportive. Here’s an article with the most recent
communications from the Governor.
https://www.newsobserver.com/news/coronavirus/article241822901.html

| am hopeful that immediate, severe action will produce long-term results that will ultimately
shorten the amount of time we have to endure this situation. | am so sorry to hear of your
suffering and the suffering of all those in our community. It truly is devastating but | hope our
resilience will allow us to rebuild when this is over.

Esther

Esther Manheimer

Mayor, City of Asheville

P.O. Box 7148

Asheville, NC 28802

Cell 828.231.8016
esthermanheimer@avicouncil.com

From: Josh Blade <sharpjoshblade@yahoo.com>
Sent: Tuesday, April 7, 2020 11:23 AM

To: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

Subject: Please Read As Soon As Possible

Mayor Manheimer,

I am e-mailing you in the hope that you and the rest of Buncombe County officials would
consider doing something different. Instead of lockdown, which is devastating our county
more than helping, how about issuing a proclamation of trust. Allow businesses to open but
only have a certain amount of people in them and each person has to be a certain amount
of feet away from the next. This closing of barbershops and other businesses is killing our
community because so many of them will not recover. | have spoken to many people who
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are so close to declaring bankruptcy and losing everything, including their families. Please
consider trust instead of force or there may not be a Buncombe County left to save. Thank
you for your time.

Josh O'Neil






From: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

To: "Tracy Rose"; Brownie W. Newman; Fletcher Tove
Subject: RE: Response to critical Xpress letter?
Date: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 3:10:13 PM

Ms. Rose, here’s my response

“The City and County have been working in collaboration through our
combined emergency response team to build and implement a strategy that
keeps our community as safe and healthy as possible. This crisis,
unprecedented | our lifetime, has challenged our community as well as all
levels of government. | am proud of the local, coordinated response here in
Asheville and Buncombe County and the leadership shown by Governor
Cooper.”

From: Tracy Rose <trose@mountainx.com>

Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 1:20 PM

To: Esther Manheimer <esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>;
brownie.newman@buncombecounty.org; fletcher.tove@buncombecounty.org
Subject: Response to critical Xpress letter?

Dear Mayor Manheimer, Chairman Newman and Mr. Tove:

Hello! I'm the Opinion editor at Mountain Xpress, and we received a letter to the editor
that's critical of how you all have responded to the coronavirus crisis.

We typically reach out to individuals who are being criticized with a summary of the
writer's points to see if they'd like to offer a short response that would run in an
editor's note at the bottom of the letter.

Here are the relevant points:

* Chairman Newman and Mayor Manheimer have failed miserably with the response
to the virus, initially trying to carve out your own response.

* With the addition of Fletcher Tove, they learned they were not competent to deal
with the virus, so ducked behind state guidelines, with the caveat that they would be
more restrictive when it came to tourism

* Hiding behind the state ignores that Buncombe County is vastly different than many
other counties, with Buncombe having minuscule case of the virus, low
hospitalizations and deaths flat (deaths were elderly people with underlying
conditions).

* They put boot on the neck of businesses, further strangling the already-suffering
people of city and county

* They cherry pick negative statistics and ignore positive ones.

* Millions of dollars are going from area residents to Tennessee and Georgia, plus
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millions from non-county residents who would rather have spent their money here.

* If they are not smart enough to come up with new well-thought out ways to keep the
virus at bay and save our future, they could at least copy other states (with masks for
employees, strict disinfecting criteria, slightly diminished capacity of spaces, checking
temperatures and health of employees, checking temperatures of diners before they
enter a restaurant).

Would any of you like to offer a short response? If you could let me know by noon
tomorrow (Thursday), then | could take a response as late as the end of the day
Friday.

Thanks very much.

Tracy Rose
Opinion Editor | Mountain Xpress

p: 828.251.1333,110
a: 2 Wall St., Asheville, NC 28801

L]

Local Matters.
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From: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

To: Brownie W. Newman

Subject: RE: Schedule for media briefings
Date: Monday, April 20, 2020 12:50:46 PM
Thank you

From: Brownie W. Newman <Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>
Sent: Monday, April 20, 2020 12:19 PM

To: Esther Manheimer <esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>

Subject: Fwd: Schedule for media briefings

FYI - Here is what’s on the media advisory agenda today. | don’t plan on attending.

Brownie

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

From: Avril Pinder <Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org>

Date: April 20, 2020 at 12:06:08 PM EDT

To: "Brownie W. Newman" <Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Re: Schedule for media briefings

Monday and Thursday at 2:30. Mullendore and Fletcher are the speakers. We are
working with the city firefighters on a quick response team they are working on rolling
out.

Thanks,
Avril

On Apr 20, 2020, at 11:54 AM, Brownie W. Newman
<Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

Avril,

What is the schedule for media briefings this week? Also can you share
who is speaking at the next one and if there are any significant new
announcements to be made?

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

To: "Jackson Tierney"; "Stephanie Brown"

Cc: "Robert Michel"; "Julie Mayfield"; "Jim Muth"; Joe Belcher; Brownie W. Newman; "Debra Campbell";
councilgroup; cball; "Rep. Brian Turner"; "Rep. John Ager"; "Cc:"; "Rep. Susan Fisher"

Subject: RE: Short Term Rentals With No Seat on The TDA? Why?

Date: Thursday, April 2, 2020 4:13:45 PM

| am concerned about the characterization below that the statutory proposal
was “rejected” by elected leaders.

Stephanie — | would encourage you to talk with Jim Muth about the nature of
the many conversations we had. Also, the presentation we made to CIBO,
including the hoteliers, me and Brownie where we emphasized that we were in
agreement as to 95% of the proposal but were continuing to discuss a few
remaining details. In fact, to my knowledge, there was no disagreement about
adding to the board to include representation from Jackson’s group.

| think the characterization that Brownie and | rejected a proposal is
unproductive and unhelpful. | have tried to emphasize how much we do agree
on and | am still hopeful changes can be made. But, | am hearing that on the
hotelier side, a change to the legislation is “dead”. | know we’re dealing with
an unprecedented crisis right now that is no less than devastating to Asheville
and Buncombe County. But | am still hopeful that there will be an opportunity
in the future to continue the earlier productive conversations we were having
toward a change in the legislation.

Thank you,
Esther

Esther Manheimer

Mayor, City of Asheville

P.O. Box 7148

Asheville, NC 28802

Cell 828.231.8016
esthermanheimer@avicouncil.com
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From: Jackson Tierney <ashevillehomestays@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, April 2, 2020 3:02 PM

To: Stephanie Brown <sbrown@exploreasheville.com>

Cc: Robert Michel <r.s.michel@gmail.com>; Julie Mayfield <juliemayfield@avlcouncil.com>; Esther
Manheimer <esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>; Jim Muth <jim.muth@muthmail.com>;
joe.belcher@buncombecounty.org

Subject: Re: Short Term Rentals With No Seat on The TDA? Why?

Hi Stephanie,

Yes, we did talk about getting our marketing folks with y'all to work out details, but alas, that was not
initiated by us, so we own that!

In the meantime, | would be happy to be on the mailing list, but as I've said, as of this moment I'm
still not getting emails from y'all.

Your last paragraph troubles me greatly. First of all, who is the hotel association you refer to? Is that
the newly formed group now run by Jim Muth. Seems like the long established Homestay Network
would have been invited to this meeting plead its own case, rather than a newly minted hotel
group.

Secondly, Julie Mayfield very supportive of the Short Term Rental group getting a seat on the TDA
Board. Was she at the table? What possible could have been the reason why a group that represents
20-25 of the BCTDA revenue to not have a seat at the table. It makes no sense. | can't help feel we've
been shafted again. Poor red headed step child once again. Boo hoo!

Jackson

On Thu, Apr 2, 2020 at 2:42 PM Stephanie Brown <sbrown@exploreasheville.com> wrote:
Hi Jackson,

| thought you were on our email list? | think the last time we talked about it, your
marketing committee was going to reach out to us to begin a discussion about the best
way to represent short term rentals on our platform. We talked a little about the
challenges we need to work out. I'd love to pick that up when this crisis clears.

Until then, can we ask you to forward whatever you think it relevant to your members?

A few months ago, the hotel association took a proposal to Esther and Brownie to
recommend changes to the legislation. One of the changes would have been to establish
a seat on the board for short term rentals. | was really excited about the proposal. It
would have increased the grant program, added funding for transit and facilities
maintenance, and expanded the board. It was really disappointing that it was rejected by
elected leaders.
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Thanks for sitting through the meeting. | appreciate your feedback.

Stephanie

From: Jackson Tierney <ashevillehomestays@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, April 2, 2020 2:33 PM

To: Stephanie Brown <sbrown@exploreasheville.com>

Cc: Kathi Petersen <kpetersen@exploreasheville.com>; Pat Kappes
<pkappes@exploreasheville.com>; Robert Michel <r.s.michel@gmail.com>

Subject: Homestays As TDA Business Partners

Hi Stephanie,

The TDA Board meeting was chock full of information. Good agenda and format worked well
considering it was the first time out of the chute.

There were many references to Explore Asheville Business Partners. | know we have talked about
this in the past, but the details are foggy to me now.

Can we as a Network and can individual Homestay Hosts become Business Partners? Somehow |
recall you said there were some BCTDA impediments that we needed to work through.

Sounds like the Explore Asheville sends out many notices to this group and for us not to be on the
distribution list, with vacation rentals being 20-25% of the county overnight stays, seems odd to
me.

Kathi said:

With respect to the mailing list: What | found out is that your individual members
may have signed up as tourism partners but your entire list as a whole is not on our
mailing list. Here’s how businesses sign up to be a tourism

partner: https:.//www.ashevillecvb.com/request-an-account/

You yourself are on the general partner list but if you did not receive an invitation
last week to the session with the lodging partners, that either means you are not on
that lodging list (in addition to the general list) or it went to spam, which does
happen.

I've checked my spam folder and there have been no communications to me from Explore
Asheville. I'd like to see how we can fix this so at a minimum our steering group gets emails, but
ideally all hosts who want to be on the list should be able to sign up so we are not the filters.

We finally have a meeting with the EOC set up for tomorrow (thanks Kathi!), but 8 days into the
15 day order seems quite late, especially since all other lodging partners had this info last week.
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| also see some of the guidance documents that have been crafted by Explore Asheville references
"hotels" only. | really like these, but shouldn't we make sure it says "lodging" as a generic term
rather than "hotel?" I'd like to have our Hosts print out these forms for use in our Homestays, but
with the word "hotel" they think the restrictions do not apply to them.

I'm looking forward to the time we can graduate to the grown ups table. :)

Thoughts?

Jackson






From: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

To: Brownie W. Newman; "Liz Button"

Cc: "Brad Branham"; "Debra Campbell"; "Philip Isley"

Subject: RE: Should NC coronavirus response allow delivery cocktails? | Raleigh News & Observer
Date: Monday, April 20, 2020 12:56:57 PM

I’'m looping in Brad and Debra too (and our lobbyist Philip Isley).

Please review the below discussion about whether there’s a way to allow take-
away cocktails/alcoholic beverages. The N&O article below says legislation is
needed, and that’s probably the end of the analysis. | wonder, though, about
whether the power we have to allow open container during an event would
apply at all. However, note that takeaway cocktails are in a closed container.

From: Brownie W. Newman <Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>

Sent: Monday, April 20, 2020 11:02 AM

To: Liz Button <liz@kbr.email>; Esther Manheimer <esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>

Subject: Fwd: Should NC coronavirus response allow delivery cocktails? | Raleigh News & Observer

See email response below.

Brownie

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Michael C. Frue" <Michael.Frue@buncombecounty.org>

Date: April 18, 2020 at 4:05:04 PM EDT

To: Avril Pinder <Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org>

Cc: "Brownie W. Newman" <Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: Re: Should NC coronavirus response allow delivery cocktails? | Raleigh
News & Observer

Agreed. | find no authority under Ch 166A (emergency declaration statute) to change
laws and prohibitions locally. Such a change to allow curbside mixed drinks would
require a legislative change since no type of alcohol permit allows such practice now.
Existing law allows transport of spirituous liquors in passenger areas of motor vehicles
in original unopened manufacturers container only.

Let me know if you need anything further.

On Apr 18, 2020, at 3:08 PM, Avril Pinder <Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org> wrote:
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See article from News and Observer, | don’t think we have the authority at the local
level.

Thanks,
Avril

Begin forwarded message:

From: Avril Pinder <pinderam@yahoo.com>

Date: April 18, 2020 at 3:06:12 PM EDT

To: Avril Pinder <Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: Should NC coronavirus response allow delivery cocktails? |
Raleigh News & Observer

BC Email Security finds this email suspicious! We know
Avril Pinder by name, but the email was sent from an

unfamiliar address pinderam@yahoo.com |

https://www.newsobserver.com/news/coronavirus/article241505041.html

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

Cc: "Brad Branham"; "Debra Campbell"; Fletcher Tove
Subject: RE: Suggestion for policy re: stores opening & masks
Date: Friday, May 15, 2020 10:48:21 AM

Andrew — The question of requiring masks has come up several times now. |
just got off a call with NC mayors and still the only city in NC requiring people to
wear masks is Durham and that’s be cause they have the highest per capita
rate of COVID 19 in the state.

But, to answer your question about individual businesses, yes, they are
definitely allowed to require mask wearing and many are already. The
County may want to make this clear at their next briefing, or when we move
to Phase 2, good idea.

Esther Manheimer

Mayor, City of Asheville

P.O. Box 7148

Asheville, NC 28802

Cell 828.231.8016
esthermanheimer@avicouncil.com

From: Andrew Celwyn <andrew@herbiary.com>

Sent: Tuesday, May 12, 2020 11:37 AM

To: Esther Manheimer <esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>; Brownie W. Newman
<brownie.newman@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: Suggestion for policy re: stores opening & masks

Good morning Esther & Brownie,

| can't imagine how much you have to tackle behind the scenes to keep things going at the city &
county level. Thank you for efforts both seen and unseen during this incredibly difficult time.

Many have been asking for the City/County to make masks mandatory for anyone in public or going
into establishments. | know you're both also facing pressure from people who want to reopen faster
and people who feel the government is overreaching by asking people to wear masks.
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While I'd prefer that the County or the City have a mandatory mask/face covering policy for going
into stores, | know that it is probably not what everyone will agree to.

Would you consider a policy letting store owners dictate their own policy and having the weight of
the City & County behind them to determine what is best for them? In other words, store owners
can require masks/coverings for their customers and have the weight of the local government
behind them. Even having the County put out a specific notice that shops have the option to put in
their windows requiring a mask would be helpful (we are already using the Employee Screening
Daily Log put out by the County).

FWIW, I'm not opening my shop anytime soon. It's a small space and | value my workers too much
to expose them to what is still a growing crisis.

Hope both of your families are well. Again, thank you for your work for our community.

-Andrew






From: esthermanheimer@avicouncil.com
; Jasmine Beach-Ferrara; Alfred Whitesides; Brownie W. Newman; Kit Cramer; Avril Pinder; "Debra Campbell"; "Keith Young";

To: "Ashley Cooper"; Sybil Tate;
sheneikasmith@avlcouncil.com
Cc: karchie; Paulina Mendez; ysmith; ndavis; rmulcahy; Dakisha Wesley
Subject: RE: Timely request - One Buncombe Fund
Date: Thursday, April 23, 2020 1:35:38 PM

Here’s some data regarding the fund to date:

As of April 21- Mountain BizWorks numbers:
# of loans made: 38
$total amount of loans: $358,000
# of loan applications: 179

# of minority/women-owned businesses — 29
# of jobs retained- 339

loans per business size

1-5employees- 17

6-10 employees- 9

11-20 employees- 9

21-30 employees- 3

greater than 30 employees- 0

O OO0 OO0

HHS program for individuals update:

o Amount of funds provided to service providers on behalf of individuals: $371,154
o # of individuals approved for funding: 793

o # of individuals contacted: 2106

o # of applications pending: 1484

Esther Manheimer
Mayor, City of Asheville
P.O. Box 7148
Asheville, NC 28802
Cell 828.231.8016

es il.com

From: Ashley Cooper <Ashley@easilyamazed.com>

Sent: Thursday, April 23,2020 12:27 AM

To: Sybil Tate <Sybil. Tate@buncombecounty.org>; Jasmine Beach-Ferrara <jasmine.beach-ferrara@buncombecounty.org>;
alfred.whitesides@buncombecounty.org; Brownie W. Newman <brownie.newman@buncombecounty.org>; Kit Cramer
<kcramer@ashevillechamber.org>; Esther Manheimer <esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>; Avril Pinder <Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org>;
Debra Campbell <dcampbell@ashevillenc.gov>; Keith Young <Keithyoung@avlcouncil.com>; sheneikasmith@avlcouncil.com

Cc: Kimberlee Archie <KArchie@ashevillenc.gov>; Paulina Mendez <Pmendez@ashevillenc.gov>; Yashika Smith <ysmith@ashevillenc.gov>; Nia Davis
<ndavis@ashevillenc.gov>; Rosanna Mulcahy <rmulcahy@ashevillenc.gov>; Dakisha.Wesley@buncombecounty.org

Subject: Timely request - One Buncombe Fund

Dear County & City leaders,

Thank you for your efforts to provide economic support to members of our community. I'm writing to ask that you take quick
actions to ensure that the remainder of the funds are distributed with a strong racial equity lens and to those whose

basic needs are being hardest hit by this crisis. Last | heard there is $1.6 million dollars in the Fund and $645,569 had already
been distributed.

Many community members have reviewed the information that Asst. Manager Sybil Tate has been helpful in making accessible and
our concerns about the distribution of the available funds and the processes to apply for funds - for both individuals and businesses -
are still present. Unfortunately, there are many historical examples where government aid in response to a crisis is distributed in ways that

are seeped in systemic racial inequity. With your leadership, we can write a different history, but it appears that we are not yet on that path.

It was noted that "When the One Buncombe Fund Board was formed, we had many discussions about equity and inclusion. We
wanted to be sure that we targeted minority and women-owned businesses with these funds. We received input from the City’s
Office of Equity and Inclusion about our forms and they participated in a Board meeting and provided feedback on our program.”

Is there on-going support being provided to ensure an equity lens is evident in the outcomes and implementation? Perhaps by the
City's Equity and Inclusion Office, the Business Inclusion Office, or any of the County's own equity efforts? I'm cc'ing some of those
leaders in case others have insight to add. Below you can also see the question that was raised about adding representation to the
Board itself.
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| am happy to talk further about this with anyone. | believe that if we work together, we can mitigate the impact of this economic
and humanitarian crisis and stop it from amplifying inequities. Please let's be diligent in putting into practice the stated priority of
racial equity.

With gratitude and in community,
Ashley

P.s. Some of the outstanding questions are below and all of the information that has been shared can be found here.

On Tue, Apr 21, 2020 at 1:27 PM Ashley Cooper <Ashley@easilyamazed.com> wrote:

Dear Sybil and Commissioners,

Thank you again so much for this additional information. It is very helpful to feel the County's transparency and communication around this
program and the numbers and ways people are being supported. | pray that we as a county are able to surprise ourselves in our capacities to
meet the needs of those vulnerable in this humanitarian crisis.

Individuals

| see that you have indicated that the individual applications have been approved by race in ways that correspond with the county's overall
demographics. However, it would seem to me that a more helpful measure would be the numbers of individuals who are living at or near the
poverty line. | would imagine that those are the individuals that are most at risk during this financial upset and who would be the highest
priorities for emergency funds. If I'm reading the U.S. Census data correctly (attached and source), it appears that in Buncombe County in the
last 12 months African Americans and Latinx folks living below the poverty level was 41.9%. In alignment with your commitment to racial
equity and thus focusing on not just making things equal, but going above and beyond to accommodate the decades of systemic racism in our
community, can the standards of prioritization be shifted for this emergency relief funding?

e Applications approved by race: 83.3% white, 6.69% hispanic or latino, 6.21% black

For comparison, | have pulled the census estimates from 2019:

Race and Hispanic Origin

White alone, percent 89.4%

Black or African American alone, percent(a) 6.3%

Hispanic or Latino, percent(b) 6.7%
Businesses

You've stated that "We wanted to be sure that we targeted minority... -owned businesses with these funds."

It appears that businesses owned by People of Color have only received 10-17% of the loans. And the raw numbes indicate
that only 4-7 business owners of color have been granted loans. Do you find that these numbers align with your
commitment to being sure that businesses owned by People of Color are being supported to sustain during this economic
crisis?

Race/Ethnicity Total[Female|Male[Unknown / Not Stated,|
Black or African American 3 0 3 0)
Latino 1 0 1 0)
White 34 231 11 0)
Other 1 1 0)
Multi-Racial 2 0
Unknown / Not Stated 1 0 0 1
Totals 42 24| 17 1
Commisioners

Given the information above and the composition of the board indicated below, | am wondering if there is will to ammend
the bylaws to add additional members to this board and to include a few members who have life-experience-expertise, a
set of key stakeholders who are not currently on the decision-making body for this Board overseeing fund distribution?

o Board members -- It appears that all members are high level employees at Buncombe County, City of Asheville,
Chamber, Biltmore Farms and a couple possible retired high level/high net-worth community leaders and one small
business owner. If this is correct, | am wondering if you perceive that you are missing input from people who can
personally relate to requiring access to assistance funds such as these? When the One Buncombe Fund Board was
formed, we had many discussions about equity and inclusion. We wanted to be sure that we targeted minority and
women-owned businesses with these funds. We received input from the City’s Office of Equity and Inclusion about
our forms and they participated in a Board meeting and provided feedback on our program. We chose to work with
Mtn. Bizworks due to their experience working with small businesses and their commitment to working with women
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and minority-owned businesses.
Individuals with such insight would have valuable input regarding the distribution criteria and accessibility of
processes that are being used. Has this point been considered? Are additional members an option? We could change
the bylaws to increase the number of board members.

| hope that you know that | write all of this in support of your leadership and in hopes that we can work together as a
community to truly live into the values of racial equity, especially in this time when inequities are being exacerbated by

this humanitarian crisis.

With gratitude and respect,
Ashley

On Mon, Apr 20, 2020 at 1:17 PM Sybil Tate <Sybil.Tate@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

Ms. Cooper,
Thanks again for your interest in One Buncombe! See below for responses to your questions.

Please feel free to contact me if you need more information,
Sybil

From: Ashley Cooper <Ashley@easilyamazed.com>

Sent: Sunday, April 19, 2020 5:40 PM

To: Jasmine Beach-Ferrara <Jasmine.Beach-Ferrara@buncombecounty.org>; Sybil Tate <Sybil.Tate@buncombecounty.org>
Cc: Brownie W. Newman <Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: Re: One Buncombe Question

Jasmine and Sybil,

Thank you so much for all of your efforts and for making this information available so quickly. | greatly appreciate it and you.
It's heartening to see this money being made available to those in our community who are seeking support during this
humanitarian crisis. | am grateful for how the County continues to respond.

| have a few follow up questions that | hope you'll also be able to answer. | know racial equity is a priority of the County at this
time and the data around these types of decisions is a valuable indicator for how that priority is translating to action,
particularly amongst a crisis such as this one which is hitting everyone and hitting some harder than others. It's great to see
that over 75% of the business loans have gone to minority and women owned businesses.

Follow-up questions:

e For individuals

o |t appears that applicants have to be citizens and that these funds are not accessible to residents in the county who
are not citizens. Is this correct? No. The requirement is that an individual must be a county resident.

« Would you provide the data of funds approved and applications received and/or contacted broken down by race?
Applications approved by race: 83.3% white, 6.69% hispanic or latino, 6.21% black

For comparison, | have pulled the census estimates from 2019:
Race and Hispanic Origin

White alone, percent

89.4%

Black or African American alone, percent(a) 6.3%
. (]

Hispanic or Latino, percent(b) 6.7%
1%

o Can you provide a breakdown of the money allocation based on types of assistance the grant is covering (i.e. rent,
mortgage, medication, utilities, etc.)
Allocation by assistance:

# of
Assistance Types: Amount Payments % of Total
Housing $178,034.46 229 66.0%
Utilities $62,735.86 328 23.3%
Car Payment $15,971.67 51 5.9%
Other $11,258.14 73 4.2%
Food $1,575.00 12 0.6%



mailto:Sybil.Tate@buncombecounty.org

mailto:Ashley@easilyamazed.com

mailto:Jasmine.Beach-Ferrara@buncombecounty.org

mailto:Sybil.Tate@buncombecounty.org

mailto:Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org

https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/buncombecountynorthcarolina#qf-headnote-a

https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/buncombecountynorthcarolina#qf-headnote-b



o Would you consider expanding to provide support for things like food, transportation expenses, insurance, home
supplies, child and education supplies? Yes, those items are eligible. These could be in the form of gift cards (I
know y'all have a history with gift cards, but this is a different time and a crisis with particular needs)

e For small businesses

o Are there plans to expand this to include any grants, for businesses that have no income being generated during this
time? We have been advised by attorneys at the UNC School of Government (and the City and County attorneys
concur) that grants to businesses are not allowed by NCGS and the State Constitution. The loans do not require any
type of payment for 6 months.

o Would you further break down the data of minority/women-owned businesses by race and gender (i.e. owned by white woman,
black woman, latino male, etc.)?

Race/Ethnicity Total Female Male :::2:::;/
Black or African American 3 0 3 0
Latino 1 0 1 0
White 34 23 11 0
Other 1 1 0 0
Multi-Racial 2 0 0
Unknown / Not Stated 1 0 0 1
Totals 42 24 17| 1

e Board members -- It appears that all members are high level employees at Buncombe County, City of Asheville, Chamber, Biltmore Farms
and a couple possible retired high level/high net-worth community leaders and one small business owner. If this is correct, | am
wondering if you perceive that you are missing input from people who can personally relate to requiring access to assistance funds such
as these? When the One Buncombe Fund Board was formed, we had many discussions about equity and inclusion. We wanted to be sure
that we targeted minority and women-owned businesses with these funds. We received input from the City’s Office of Equity and
Inclusion about our forms and they participated in a Board meeting and provided feedback on our program. We chose to work with Mtn.
Bizworks due to their experience working with small businesses and their commitment to working with women and minority-owned
businesses.

Individuals with such insight would have valuable input regarding the distribution criteria and accessibility of processes that are being
used. Has this point been considered? Are additional members an option? We could change the bylaws to increase the number of
board members.

e According to the media, it sounds like significant funds have been donated by outside sources. If the business support is solely through
loans, is it clarified how that money, once repaid, will continue to be invested in local small businesses? It seems that as is, this fund coud
turn into a revenue stream for the County, if I'm understanding the mechanics correctly. The BCSF is a separate organization from
Buncombe County Government. The financials are kept separately from the county’s. The BCSF Board has not discussed giving the
money to Buncombe County. The only options that have been discussed thus far are keeping the fund with BCSF in the event of another
economic disaster or adding funds to Mountain Community Capital.

Again, thank you so much for all of your work during this uncertain and high intensity time.

Appreciatively,
Ashley

e What is the criteria for making payments/grants?

Attached is the policy for individuals and the criteria for businesses is listed here: https://www.mountainbizworks.org/coronavirus/covid-19-

ne-buncombe-fun
o What data is already available on how money has been spent/distributed?

As part of our contract with HHS and Mtn. Bizworks, they are required to report data on a weekly basis. However, Mtn
Bizworks and HHS have been providing updates twice a week and daily, respectively, due to the fast pace at which their

numbers are changing. The numbers below are from Friday, April 17,

Mtn Bizworks (Small business loan program):

# loans made: 38
total amount of loans made: $358,000

# of loan applications: 179

Loans per business size

1-Semployees- 17

6-10 employees- 9



https://www.mountainbizworks.org/coronavirus/covid-19-loans/one-buncombe-fund/

https://www.mountainbizworks.org/coronavirus/covid-19-loans/one-buncombe-fund/



e 11-20 employees- 9
e 21-30 employees- 3

o greater than 30 employees- 0

o # of minority/women-owned businesses — 29

o # of jobs retained: 339

HHS program for individuals:

o Amount of funds provided to service providers on behalf of individuals: $287,569
o #of individuals approved for funding: 664

o #ofindividuals contacted: 1305

» # of applications pending: 1533

e Who (or the roles they fill) is on the board of 7 people who are making these decisions beyond Kit Cramer as the chair?

The number of board members increase from 7 to 9 to add individuals with financial and fundralslng expertlse There isa 11st
of board members at the bottom of this page: https:

foundation/default.aspx

I'm also curious about where and when the conversation will be had about plans for opening up to out of town visitors again.
That seems like a huge elephant in our community that will require a lot of hard conversations.

With gratitude and respect,
Ashley

On Tue, Apr 14, 2020 at 12:48 PM Ashley Cooper <Ashley@easilyamazed.com> wrote:

Thank you Jasmine for getting back to me. | really appreciate it. (I'm including Brownie on this email). Sending well-wishes
and gratitude to you both.

| have a few questions about the OneBuncombe Fund. Can you share what is the criteria for making payments/grants? What
data is already available on how money has been spent/distributed? And who (or the roles they fill) is on the board of 7
people who are making these decisions?

Thank you so much,
Ashley

On Fri, Apr 10, 2020 at 4:16 PM Jasmine Beach-Ferrara <Jasmine.Beach-Ferrara@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

Hi Ashley,
| hope this finds you well in these trying times.

| wanted to follow up on your email.

One concrete resource | can share is the One Buncombe fund, through which people can apply for assistance with bills including rent.
More information is at: www.onebuncombe.org. Chief Beasley’s order has now been extended until June 1. My hope is it will continue
to be extended as long as these conditions persist.

At the county level, we have inquired about whether it would be legal to do what Oakland has and have been advised it is not legal
under the laws about local states of emergency.

Take care,
Jasmine

Jasmine Beach-Ferrara

Buncombe County Commissioner, District 1

e: Jasmine.Beach-Ferrara@buncombecounty.org
p: 828.250.4004
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From: Ashley Cooper <Ashley@easilyamazed.com>

Sent: Monday, March 30, 2020 4:34 PM

To: Keith Young <keithyoung@avlcouncil.com>

Cc: Avril Pinder <Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org>; Brian Haynes <brianhaynes@avlcouncil.com>; Brownie W. Newman
<Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>; Debra Campbell <dcampbell@ashevillenc.gov>; Esther Manheimer
<esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>; Jasmine Beach-Ferrara <Jasmine.Beach-Ferrara@buncombecounty.org>; Julie Mayfield
<juliemayfield@avlcouncil.com>; Alfred Whitesides <Alfred. Whitesides@buncombecounty.org>; Amanda Edwards
<Amanda.Edwards@buncombecounty.org>; cc: Gwen Wisler <gwenwisler@avlcouncil.com>; Joe Belcher
<Joe.Belcher@buncombecounty.org>; Mike Fryar <Mike.Fryar@buncombecounty.org>; Robert Pressley
<Robert.Pressley@buncombecounty.org>; sheneikasmith@avlcouncil.com; vijaykapoor@avlcouncil.com

Subject: Re: Stress in our Community

Thank you Councilman Young for your response.

Could you please inquire with the City's legal department (or the County's if any of the Commissioners or Manager is
reading this)? | understand that the courts have halted for 30 days, however, that does not mean that landlords will not
still harass tenants and that does not provide any peace of mind for our local renters (32% of our residents if my google
search is correct), many of whom are exceptionally stressed and unsure how to proceed.

| am so grateful that y'all are exploring options that would provide monetary assistance. In the meantime, while those
details are being worked out, what can be done to follow Oakland's lead and bring some peace of mind in this already
stressful time?

With so much gratitude,
Ashley

On Sun, Mar 29, 2020 at 11:11 PM Keith Young <keithyoung@avlcouncil.com> wrote:

Ashley,

| cannot speak to the city’s legal authority to directly intervene on behalf of tenants evictions. However, NC's Chief Justice Beasley
has halted evictions in the court system for 30 days from the signing date of the order she signed. It’s possible this could be extended.
I've attached a link.

In the meantime, | suggested at the last council meeting that we explore an emergency rental assistance program funded through our
housing trust fund via bond money and to also increase our aid to the eviction assistance program run by Pisgah Legal to help aid
those facing eviction. Hope this is helpful. I'll try and pursue these suggestions through council.

-Keith Y.

On Sun, Mar 29, 2020 at 10:23 PM Ashley Cooper <Ashley@easilyamazed.com> wrote:
Dear City and County leadership,

What are you doing about the extreme anxiety and stress residents in our city are experiencing because of an
inability to pay their rent/mortgage on April 1st? Whose jurisdiction is a decision to ban evictions during this time
when unemployment suddenly spiked and new jobs are not available? Please see the leadership of Oakland below if
you're not already familiar with it.

Thank you for doing all you can. We are in this together,
Ashley

In Oakland, California
"The Oakland City Council unanimously passed an emergency ordinance Friday banning landlords from evicting residential and
commercial tenants during the coronavirus pandemic, at least until May 31.

The council took the action at a special video-conference meeting to help tenants who can’t pay their rent for health
reasons or because they lost their jobs or had their income reduced.

The ordinance goes beyond those approved by other cities in response to the spread of COVID-19 by also temporarily
freezing rent and prohibiting any late payment fees. Eviction notices filed during the crisis also will be put on hold until
May 31.

Rent would still be owed after the moratorium expires.” Source

Sign up to receive emergency texts directly from Buncombe County for breaking health and safety news. Text BCALERT on your smart
phone to 888-777 to receive alerts on important information such as floods, communicable disease, county office closings, and relevant
traffic safety notifications OR visit buncombeready.org

Email correspondence to and from this address may be subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third
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parties.

This electronic communication may contain information that is confidential, privileged, proprietary, or otherwise legally exempt from
disclosure. Additionally, the unauthorized disclosure of juvenile, health, legally privileged, proprietary, or otherwise confidential
information may be prohibited by law. If you have received this email in error, you are hereby notified that you are not authorized to
read, print, retain, copy, or disseminate this communication, any part of it, or any attachments. Please notify the sender immediately
and delete all records of this email. There is no intent on the part of the sender to waive any privilege that may attach to this
communication.

Sign up to receive emergency texts directly from Buncombe County for breaking health and safety news. Text BCALERT on your smart phone
to 888-777 to receive alerts on important information such as floods, communicable disease, county office closings, and relevant traffic

safety notifications OR visit buncombeready.org

Sign up to receive emergency texts directly from Buncombe County for breaking health and safety news. Text BCALERT on your smart phone to
888-777 to receive alerts on important information such as floods, communicable disease, county office closings, and relevant traffic safety

notifications OR visit buncombeready.org
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From: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

To: Brownie W. Newman

Cc: Avril Pinder

Subject: RE: WHAT ARE OUR LOVED ONES IN JAIL TO DO DURING COVID 19???
Date: Thursday, April 9, 2020 9:21:03 AM

thanks

From: Brownie W. Newman <Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>
Sent: Thursday, April 9, 2020 9:20 AM

To: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

Cc: Avril Pinder <Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: Re: WHAT ARE OUR LOVED ONES IN JAIL TO DO DURING COVID 1977??

| forwarded it to Aaron Sarver and asked him to copy any staff he thinks should need to be aware of

the email.

Brownie Newman

Sent from my iPad

On Apr 9, 2020, at 9:13 AM, "esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com"
<esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com> wrote:

Brownie — can you forward this to the Sheriff? | don’t have his email address.

—————————— Forwarded message ---------

From: kasey w <ncbeauty24@gmail.com>

Date: Tue, Apr 7, 2020 at 4:53 PM

Subject: WHAT ARE OUR LOVED ONES IN JAIL TO DO DURING COVID 1977?7?

To: <esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>

Hello mrs. Manheimer,

My name is kasey webb i am a resident of buncombe county. | must say | am very
impressed with how quickly buncombe county took action on covid 19....EXCEPT Let.
Alexander over our jail. My fiancee was incarcerated Jan 27 and was placed in a
room were feces and blood were smeared everywhere. | called the let. He insured
me this wasn't the case... | called the health dept and spoke with them as well. |
informed the of covid 19 at that time they should have took action then. This room is
in booking and many inmates ive spoken with assured me it's still going on. This is an
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outrage. They are exposing PEOPLE to this. Also how are they handling quarantine at
this time. | have loved ones | depend on coming home. His name is Douglas
dewberry Jr. He's not getting released on pre trail but qualified please send him
home. Please help this stop and non violent crimes should be released. Are inmates

Esther Manheimer

Mayor, City of Asheville

P.O. Box 7148

Asheville, NC 28802

Cell 828.231.8016
esthermanheimer@avicouncil.com

<~WRDO0000.jpg>|

Brad R. Branham
City Attorney

City of Asheville
P.O. Box 7148
Asheville, NC 28802
828-259-5614

|<”WRDOOOO.jpg>|

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

To: "American Folk Art"

Cc: Fletcher Tove; betseyrose@aol.com; "Debra Campbell"; "Brad Branham"; Brownie W. Newman
Subject: RE: re-opening ideas.

Date: Friday, May 8, 2020 1:18:46 PM

Ms. Weiss — Hello again. | will let Fletcher address the issue of mandatory mask
wearing verses encouraged/voluntary mask wearing, but | will say that
yesterday at our daily briefing, Fletcher, the Health Department Director, the
County Commission Chair, and | all encouraged people to wear masks - we
continue to do this. The Governor is not mandating that people wear masks
but continues to encourage mask wearing.

One question | have and maybe Fletcher or someone else can answer it is
whether businesses could prohibit folks from entering who are not wearing

masks.

| am also copying the city manager with this email so she can see your
suggestion about having ambassadors downtown who can offer masks, and
had sanitizer, etc. | think that is an idea the Emergency Operations team would

need to look at.

Thank you for your continued vigilance around slowing he spread of COVID-19,
you are helping to flatten the curve.

Thank you,
Esther

Esther Manheimer

Mayor, City of Asheville

P.O. Box 7148

Asheville, NC 28802

Cell 828.231.8016
esthermanheimer@avicouncil.com
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From: American Folk Art <amerifolk@bellsouth.net>

Sent: Wednesday, May 6, 2020 8:02 AM

To: fletcher.tove@buncombecounty.org; emanheimer@vwlawfirm.com
Cc: FOLKART@AMERIFOLK.COM; betseyrose@aol.com

Subject: re-opening ideas.

As a very small business owner, | am part of a group of downtown business owners:

Tracy Morgan Gallery

Mora Jewelry

Momentum Gallery

Patton Ave Pets

Asheville Gallery of Art

Paul Taylor Leather

Woolworth Walk

Hip Replacements

Willow’s Dream

And my business:

American Folk Art

This is an overnight sampling of businesses that are not going to re-open on Friday, and have little
confidence in re-opening soon. If you don’t know these businesses, you should. We are all part of
what makes Asheville the prized/unique destination it is....providing personality, jobs and tax
revenue to our City, County and State.

NONE of us feel ANY of the matrixes have been met for us to re-open. NONE of us feel supported in
finding safe solutions to meeting with the public.

We cannot hire extra staff to ‘staff shift’. While we have employees, the business owners are the
backbone of the business, the only way we survive is if we are healthy, that is the unfortunate
reality...

Think of the Media NIGHTMARE of even one of us catching Covid-19 and God Forbid, dying.

There seems to be a lot of concern about us business owners welcoming and making our guests feel
safe and comfortable.

| am asking YOU as leaders in this region to pay me the same respect and consideration by lawfully
requiring anyone who enters a retail establishment to wear a mask.

If the county/city required mask inside retail establishments, we retailers will feel more respected
and protected.

Another step the city can take? Safety Ambassadors. Folks who can be stationed in several locations
downtown/west asheville commercial/south slope who can offer masks, hand sanitizers, maps,
directions and information...It can simply be a table, every other block, until we get the testing and
meeting any of the other matrixes that we have been assured would be in place before we re-
opened our state....NONE of which have been met, as far as | can see.....
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I am in my gallery every day...watching Biltmore Ave....next door to City Bakery, across from 67
Biltmore and The Wine Market...businesses that have been offering curbside pickup, | am in the
perfect position to assess what our citizens are doing.....10-15% of the people downtown are
currently wearing masks. 10 -15%. When restrictions start being lifted, it WILL send a message that
‘things are better/safer’...and | don’t think mask wearing will rise, | believe it will fall.

We need masks to remind people: This is a new era, and we need your co-operation to move
forward safely.

PLEASE HELP US TO STAY SAFE & FRANKLY, ALIVE.

| am available: please reach out with any questions you might have.
Fearfully yours

Betsey-Rose Weiss

Owner

American Folk Art & Framing

64 Biltmore Ave

Asheville NC 28801

828-281-2134

www.amerifolk.com

folkart@amerifolk.com

To comply with certain U.S. Treasury regulations, we inform you that, unless expressly stated otherwise, any U.S. Federal tax advice
contained in this email, including attachments, is not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, by any person for the purpose
of avoiding any penalties imposed by the Internal Revenue Service.

This electronic transmission contains information from the law firm of Van Winkle, Buck, Wall, Starnes and Davis, P.A., that may be
confidential or privileged. The information is intended solely for the recipient. Use by any other party is not authorized. If you are not the
intended recipient, be aware that any disclosure, copying, distribution, or use of the contents of this information is prohibited. If you
received this transmission in error, please notify us immediately by telephone (828-258-2991) or by email (info@vwlawfirm.com). Thank
you for your cooperation.
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From: Brownie W. Newman

To: Andrew Celwyn

Cc: Esther Manheimer

Subject: Re: $5 million TPDF Grant Proposal
Date: Sunday, April 5, 2020 2:36:16 PM

Andrew, Julie and Esther:

So, I am hearing two ideas here. One is grants to artists for beautification or other types of short-term projects. The
other is using funds for grants/ forgivable loans to restaurants to get their businesses re-started.

I am open to both ideas. Of course, I’d prefer to see some of the advertising funds used rather than just TPDF but it
sounds like from the emails, this is just being envisioned as as a use of TPDF funds.

In terms of the idea of artist projects, it would be helpful for me to hear some examples of some types of projects
this might involve. I am not coming up with any great ideas on my own but if I could see some examples of what
others are thinking, perhaps I’d have a few ideas.

One other brief comment. If there is going to be some amendment to the hotel tax law to make funds available
during the Covid-19 emergency, I certainly hope no one tries to enact controversial, permanent changes to the hotel
tax law. I think there would be a lot of public outrage if some positive changes were made to help workers and
businesses in the short term were to be attached to a hotel industry version of changing the hotel tax law for the
long-term. I think we need to keep those issues separate.

Brownie Newman
Sent from my iPad

> On Apr 2, 2020, at 6:21 PM, Andrew Celwyn <andrew@herbiary.com> wrote:

>

>

> Good evening to you both.

>

> With little help from my fellow board members (and others on the call), I'm turning to both of you to see if you
would like to help coordinate putting together a $5million dollar TPDF grant over the next three weeks.

>

> My preference would be to solicit projects around the city and the county that could be tackled in a relatively short
period of time, 1-3 months, and could inject some money into our community during this critical time. Artistic
endeavors that could beautify our county and other projects that might fall within the typical TPDF parameters
would be critical to making this application strong.

>

> Getting this together by April 21st or 22nd would be helpful as the next board meeting is April 29th. There is
Currently $4.6 million in the TPDF fund and there will be more than $5 million available after March receipts are
included.

>

> You both have a lot on your plates at the moment, as do I with keeping my business afloat and getting applications
in for grants and SBA relief. If the two of you are able to provide some staffing to actually put the proposal
together, I'm willing to help get the word out to the community that we need people to put forward projects that
would be worthy of TPDF money. Lots of people may be disappointed that their projects aren't funded, but we've
got a lot of creative juices out there as well as people with time on their hands who can help make this "kitchen
soup" TPDF project a success.

>

> Maybe it only ends up as $2 million or $3 million depending on what comes in. I've got to think that's better than
letting that money sit for another six plus months.

>
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> If the legislature isn't going to help out, I hope we can find a way to help ourselves.
>

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
Date: Sunday, April 5, 2020 2:36:15 PM

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






From: Esther Manheimer

To: Julie Mayfield

Cc: Andrew Celwyn; Brownie W. Newman
Subject: Re: $5 million TPDF Grant Proposal
Date: Saturday, April 18, 2020 7:37:04 AM

That’s great news Julie. On both of these items. Thanks

On Fri, Apr 17, 2020 at 4:38 PM Julie Mayfield <juliemayfield@avlcouncil.com> wrote:

Hi all - I spoke with Jim Muth about this just last night. They are working hard to work out
the final kinks on the emergency legislation for use of existing TPDF funds and then he also
wants to turn back to the longer term fixes to the legislation.

He indicated that he thinks he actually has agreement with his folks on the one sticking point
that was holding us up before - that the detail on how the 33% would be used will be in
board policy rather than the legislation. So I hope that means we’re actually finished
negotiating. The hope is that this legislation would be introduced and adopted in the
summer session rather than the session coming up in April.

He will reach out to set up a meeting when they are finished with the emergency legislation.

Julie

From: Andrew Celwyn [mailto:andrew@herbiary.com]

Sent: Friday, April 17, 2020 2:14 PM

To: Julie Mayfield <juliemayfield@avlcouncil.com>

Cc: Brownie W. Newman <Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>; Esther Manheimer
<esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>

Subject: Re: S5 million TPDF Grant Proposal

Good afternoon all,

Is it time to revisit the idea of putting forward a TPDF proposal?

"In response to a question from Xpress, Turner added that he didn’t expect the
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General Assembly to take up changes to legislation governing the Buncombe
County Tourism Development Authority during the short session. “We will pick up
where we left off after the crisis is over,” he said.

I know you all have lots on your plate (as do 1), but | think the ball is in our court.

-Andrew

On Mon, Apr 6, 2020 at 2:25 PM Julie Mayfield <juliemayfield@avlcouncil.com> wrote:

The legislature is still scheduled to reconvene at the end of this month, but they are trying to
figure out how to do that and comply with social distancing. | heard Gary say at last week’s
meeting that they hoteliers hope to reveal their proposal this week, so we will see.

And | don’t know if this is even possible, but it would be great if their proposal could be met
with something other than complete rejection and derision. The relationship is so broken right
now, and | don’t know if they even care what we think since they can probably get what they
want without us on this legislation, but this will be an opportunity to try to build rather than
tear down. | hope we take advantage of it even if their proposal isn’t exactly what we would
want. We aren’t fully responsible for the relationship being broken, but the initial response will
set the stage for whether we can cooperate on this or anything else. And we still will/do need
to cooperate on the more permanent fixes to the legislation, so finding a constructive path
forward remains important.

Julie

From: Andrew Celwyn [mailto:andrew@herbiary.com)]
Sent: Sunday, April 5, 2020 7:55 PM

To: Brownie W. Newman <Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>
Cc: Esther Manheimer <esthermanheimer@avicouncil.com>; Julie Mayfield

<juliemayfield@avlcouncil.com>
Subject: Re: S5 million TPDF Grant Proposal

Good evening all,
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Julie, please see Brownie's email below, I think you were inadvertently left off.

I'm certainly in agreement that I'd like to use marketing dollars, but that feels less likely at
the moment as the board looks to protect the marketing money to bring back tourists
whenever that is possible.

The idea to help businesses reopen when our society opens back up is certainly an
admirable one, but it is not necessarily ideal. First, we don't know if that money will be
disbursed 3 months, 6 months, or (I hate to say it) over a year from now when we have a
vaccine or better way to fight the virus. Second, it may certainly help some businesses
that aren't receiving aid from the Payroll Protection and other SBA programs, but to
displaced workers it may just seem like another plan to help out owners while many
workers continue to suffer. I know that many businesses need to reopen in order for
people to get jobs again, but again it's a question of priorities and the occupancy

taxes don't seem to ever reach those who are most needy.

If the legislature passes some sort of change, I'm not sure we will have an opportunity to
put forth a TPDF project for consideration, especially if there is a dollar figure associated
with it.

Julie, do you know the time frame associated with any potential legislation? Will we
know if anything is happening within the next week, or before the next TDA meeting?

Brownie, in terms of potential projects, I have several ideas. Some parklets downtown for
both art & buskers to us (there is also one ready to go for the Center for Craft), perhaps
some food truck parks in different areas of the city/county that have picnic tables designed
& produced by local artists. But, there are many creatives in this sector who might be
better suited to come up with a list of projects that could happen quickly and have a big
impact. I'd look to gather Katie Cornell, Reggie Tidwell, Suzanne Hudson, Joel Osgood,
and others (suggestions?) to spitball ideas and come up with a list ASAP so we can also
put some good numbers behind any proposal. None of these people have been
approached yet, and I certainly don't want to give them false hope if a deal in the
legislature is imminent.

Happy to help in whatever way is most useful.





-Andrew

On Sun, Apr 5, 2020 at 2:36 PM Brownie W. Newman
<Brownie.Newman(@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

Andrew, Julie and Esther:

So, I am hearing two ideas here. One is grants to artists for beautification or other types
of short-term projects. The other is using funds for grants/ forgivable loans to
restaurants to get their businesses re-started.

I am open to both ideas. Of course, I’d prefer to see some of the advertising funds used
rather than just TPDF but it sounds like from the emails, this is just being envisioned as
as a use of TPDF funds.

In terms of the idea of artist projects, it would be helpful for me to hear some examples
of some types of projects this might involve. I am not coming up with any great ideas
on my own but if I could see some examples of what others are thinking, perhaps I’d
have a few ideas.

One other brief comment. If there is going to be some amendment to the hotel tax law
to make funds available during the Covid-19 emergency, I certainly hope no one tries to
enact controversial, permanent changes to the hotel tax law. I think there would be a lot
of public outrage if some positive changes were made to help workers and businesses in
the short term were to be attached to a hotel industry version of changing the hotel tax
law for the long-term. I think we need to keep those issues separate.

Brownie Newman
Sent from my iPad

> On Apr 2, 2020, at 6:21 PM, Andrew Celwyn <andrew(@herbiary.com> wrote:
>

>
> Good evening to you both.

>

> With little help from my fellow board members (and others on the call), I'm turning to
both of you to see if you would like to help coordinate putting together a $5million
dollar TPDF grant over the next three weeks.

>

> My preference would be to solicit projects around the city and the county that could
be tackled in a relatively short period of time, 1-3 months, and could inject some money
into our community during this critical time. Artistic endeavors that could beautify our
county and other projects that might fall within the typical TPDF parameters would be
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critical to making this application strong.

>

> Getting this together by April 21st or 22nd would be helpful as the next board
meeting is April 29th. There is Currently $4.6 million in the TPDF fund and there will
be more than $5 million available after March receipts are included.

>

> You both have a lot on your plates at the moment, as do I with keeping my business
afloat and getting applications in for grants and SBA relief. If the two of you are able
to provide some staffing to actually put the proposal together, I'm willing to help get the
word out to the community that we need people to put forward projects that would be
worthy of TPDF money. Lots of people may be disappointed that their projects aren't
funded, but we've got a lot of creative juices out there as well as people with time on
their hands who can help make this "kitchen soup" TPDF project a success.

>

> Maybe it only ends up as $2 million or $3 million depending on what comes in. I've
got to think that's better than letting that money sit for another six plus months.

>

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
and relevant traffic safety notifications OR visit

buncombeready.org<https://buncombeready.org>

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
error, you are hereby notified that you are not authorized to read, print, retain, copy, or
disseminate this communication, any part of it, or any attachments. Please notify the
sender immediately and delete all records of this email. There is no intent on the part of
the sender to waive any privilege that may attach to this communication.

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

To: Linton Hopkins

Cc: Aaron Grier; Avril Pinder; Brownie W. Newman; David Nash; Debra Campbell; hrandall; Jaime Matthews; John
Fleer; Katie Button; Mary Nesbitt; hananshabazz0715@gmail.com; mark.k.rosenstein@gmail.com

Subject: Re: Asheville x World Central Kitchen

Date: Saturday, April 18, 2020 7:53:00 AM

I am adding the city and county manager, and county Chair Brownie Newman, to this so they

can review this opportunity as well.
Debra and Avril - please see Katie’s email regarding opportunities to address food insecurity
in our community while helping to support local businesses. Debra, let’s discuss this Monday.

Thank you Katie for connecting us.
Esther

On Fri, Apr 17, 2020 at 3:54 PM Linton Hopkins <chef(@hopkins-co.com> wrote:

Thank You David and nice to e-meet you. What you bring up is exactly what we have in mind, WCK
Foundation Money comes in and achieves 3 victories for the whole community; food to those who
need it most, kitchens to stay productive and employ their teams, and farmers and artisans to
receive payment for the food they supply the kitchens.

Please let us know if we can do anything to support.

Linton

404-307-5104

From: David Nash <dnash@haca.org>

Date: Friday, April 17, 2020 at 2:56 PM

To: Katie Button <katie@kbr.email>, Mary Nesbitt <mnesbitt@mannafoodbank.org>,
Hannah Randall <hrandall@mannafoodbank.org>, Esther Manheimer
<esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>, Linton Hopkins <chef@hopkins-co.com>,

"mark.k.rosenstein@gmail.com" <mark.k.rosenstein@gmail.com>, John Fleer
<john(@rhubarbasheville.com>, Jaime Matthews <JMatthews(@ashevillenc.gov>

Cc: Aaron Grier <sluderbranch@gmail.com>, "hananshabazz0715@gmail.com"

<hananshabazz0715@gmail.com>
Subject: RE: Asheville x World Central Kitchen

Thanks for reaching out, Katie. This sounds like an awesome opportunity. | will discuss with Hanan,
Mark and John over the weekend.
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One quick thought for everyone to ponder. If we can, let’s try to include local farmers who are
struggling for a market right now, as Hanan, John and Aaron Grier have coordinated for us at the
Southside Kitchen with the We Give A Share campaign.

Thanks again!

David

David L. Nash, ED
Asheville Housing Authority

828-507-7697

ATHEVILLE HousiNg
AUTHORITY

asheville

housing

TS YEARS OF SEAYICE

From: Katie Button <katie@kbr.email>

Sent: Friday, April 17, 2020 2:32 PM

To: Mary Nesbitt <mnesbitt@mannafoodbank.org>; Hannah Randall
<hrandall@mannafoodbank.org>; Esther Manheimer <esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>; David
Nash <dnash@haca.org>; Linton Hopkins <chef@hopkins-co.com>;

mark.k.rosenstein@gmail.com; John Fleer <john@rhubarbasheville.com>; Jaime Matthews

<JMatthews@ashevillenc.gov>
Subject: Asheville x World Central Kitchen

Mayor Manheimer, Hannah Randall, David Nash,
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I am reaching out to the three of you because Linton Hopkins (the chef of Asheville's H&F
Burger and copied on this email) has been connected with World Central Kitchen and is
working with them in Atlanta on contracts to feed their communities. Linton thought it
would be a good thing for Asheville to see if it would make sense to get WCK involved in
our community. They are looking to fill unmet gaps in food need and are trying to get an
understanding of the current needs of community. They asked to be put in touch with you
Mayor Manheimer to give them an overview and I thought to include Hannah Randall with
MANNA Foodbank and David Nash with the Housing Authority since he is working with
Mark Rosenstein on feeding people in need currently. If you all could do me a favor, and
give me a summary of what you think the current food insecurity need is, how helpful it
would be to have WCK financial support the production of meals in restaurants in our city,
and if there is an umet gap. Particularly if you are seeing a gap due to COVID-19 which is
creating challenges in the food donation and distribution chains.

Thank you very much for taking a few minutes to help with this!

Best regards,

Katie Button

Executive Chef, CEO
KatieButtonRestaurants.com
(828) 505-1525 .0

(828) 215-8085 .m

(828) 318-8717 f

-4
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

To: Beau Mills

Cc: Philip Isley; esthermanheimer@avicouncil.com; Christy, John A
Subject: Re: CLIA Letter for Governor Cooper

Date: Friday, April 17, 2020 4:59:43 PM

Beau,

Thank you so much. This is a tremendously important opportunity for us in western NC and
could be a model that helps expand testing in other communities as well.

Brownie Newman,
County Commission Chair
828-243-0107

Sent from my iPad

On Apr 17, 2020, at 4:49 PM, Beau Mills <beau.mills@metromayors.com>
wrote:

[Ed BC Email Security couldn't recognize this email as this is the first time you have
received an email from this sender beau.mills@Metromayors.com

Confirmed the request is in the right hands and has a high priority for
consideration for how to proceed on an expedited basis.

Jordan, Christy and their team are on it!!

Sent from my iPhone - excuse typos...

On Apr 17, 2020, at 2:54 PM, Philip Isley <Plsley@bmlilaw.com>
wrote:

I’d forward to Ken Eudy and Lee Lilly for sure. [ don’t have their
email addresses but I do have their cell numbers as I bet Beau does
too.

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
We’ve got a possibility of setting up a local
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



https://buncombeready.org/



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

Date: Friday, April 17, 2020 4:59:44 PM

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

To: David Nash

Cc: Avril Pinder; Debra Campbell; Brownie W. Newman
Subject: Re: FW: !Asheville Update!

Date: Tuesday, April 21, 2020 8:18:05 AM

Looping in Debra and Avril.
Dave - what would you need from the city and/or county to make it happen?

On Mon, Apr 20, 2020 at 5:44 PM David Nash <dnash@haca.org> wrote:

FYI, on the potential collaboration with World Central Kitchen. We would love for this to happen, if
it can, in support of capacity building for the ongoing public-private partnership at the Southside
Kitchen.

From: David Nash

Sent: Monday, April 20, 2020 4:40 PM

To: 'Mark Rosenstein' <mark.k.rosenstein@gmail.com>; Linton Hopkins <chef@hopkins-co.com>;
John Fleer <John@rhubarbasheville.com>; Katie Button <katie@kbr.email>; Aaron Grier
<sluderbranch@gmail.com>; elizabeth.lusby.brown@gmail.com; Jane Anderson
<airexecdirector@gmail.com>; Cathryn J. Strohm-Horton <cathrynjstrohmhorton@abtech.edu>;
Bossman Shaw <Kinkb1976 @gmail.com>; Hanan Shabazz <hananshabazz0715@gmail.com>
Subject: RE: |Asheville Update!

I'll add my thanks to Mark’s, both to Linton and Katie for reaching out and starting this
conversation. We welcome any opportunity to work with WCK in support of the Southside Kitchen
effort. Here is my estimate of need for meals prioritizing elderly, homebound, and quarantined
residents of Asheville Housing communities:

e 270-350 meals/day for Public Housing residents in those categories, based on the current
group we are serving and a modest estimate of quarantine growth

e  200-250 meals/day to add elderly and disabled residents at Asheville Terrace Apartments

e 350-500 meals/day to add elderly and disabled participants renting from private landlords in
our tenant-based (Section 8) program — delivery to this group will be a challenge

Total estimate of 820 to 1,100 meals per day. Only the first group is included in our current
production, though an expansion to 500 meals/day next week could cover the first two groups, if
quarantine growth is more moderate.
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Beyond Asheville Housing’s residents and participants, other groups we could consider with a
major increase in capacity (and probably another kitchen) are residents of other low-income
elderly developments in Asheville (Battery Park, Vanderbilt, and Arrowhead, for example). Just as a
broad-brush estimate, that could be another 500—-1,000 meals/day.

| hope this helps demonstrate the need. Thanks to you all for participating in this important effort.

David L. Nash, ED
Asheville Housing Authority

828-507-7697

ATHEVILLE HoURING
AUTHGRITY

asheville

housing .

T YEARS OF SERVICE

From: Mark Rosenstein <mark.k.rosenstein @gmail.com>

Sent: Monday, April 20, 2020 3:50 PM

To: Linton Hopkins <chef@hopkins-co.com>; David Nash <dnash@haca.org>; John Fleer
<John@rhubarbasheville.com>; Katie Button <katie@kbr.email>; Aaron Grier

<sluderbranch@gmail.com>; elizabeth.lusby.brown@gmail.com; Jane Anderson
<airexecdirector@gmail.com>; Cathryn J. Strohm-Horton <cathrynjstrohmhorton@abtech.edu>;

Bossman Shaw <Kinkb1976 @gmail.com>; Hanan Shabazz <hananshabazz0715@gmail.com>
Subject: |Asheville Update!

Linton,
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Thanks for bringing your support to our table. As we discussed, here is an update on what is
happening at Southside Kitchen.

Please fell free to share this with your friends at WCK.

Southside Kitchen in its current life is the out growth of Green Opportunities (GO) Kitchen
Ready training program and Southside Kitchen food services. The training program is the
result of an initiative led by the Asheville Independent Restaurant Association, (AIR) which
they started in 2012.

At the end of 2019, the program led by GO was winding down. An ad hoc group formed to
handle the transition to a new entity. Included in that group: Housing Authority of the City
of Asheville (HACA - David Nash), AIR (Jane Anderson), AB Tech (Cathy Horton), AIR
members (John Fleer - Rhubarb & Liz Button - Curate') and 2 graduates of the original
Kitchen Ready training class (Hanan Shabazz & Kikkomon Shaw), and me.

Our original date to assume responsibility for the kitchen and restart was July 1. COVID-19
pushed that date forward to mid-March.

Our immediate focus is to serve elderly HACA residents who can not or should not venture
out. On March 24 we served our first meals. 100 people were served. Now in our fourth
week, we are averaging 300 meals a day (270 meals 4 days a week and 540 meals 2 days a
week). We have set a new goal of 500 meals everyday to begin Monday, April 27. We
anticipate that number increasing.

Our funding is coming from 2 sources: remaining City of Asheville funding for the GO
kitchen program and Buncombe County funds flowing through HACA. Our team is paid and
most of the food we prepare is purchased. Funding is semi-secure until June 30.

A cooperative effort is in the early stages with another local community kitchen--Downtown
Welcome Table--organized by the Haywood Street Congregation. At this stage it is by
sharing donated food resources. We have also heard from a number of chef/owners to
participate in this effort.

The Southside Kitchen is part of another initiative--We Give A Share--that ties together
donors, a local farm, and our team, (visit www.wegiveashare.org).
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7 days after launching our site, Monday, April 20, almost $34,000.00 has been raised to pay
Gaining Ground Farm to grow organic produce for our meals program. We are building this
program to be sustainable and include many other local farms.

Here are some immediate needs that we have:

e A developed menu cycle - including volume recipes, nutritional guidelines, and
purchasing standards.

e Develop, train, and implement food handling procedures consistent with current CDC
guidelines.

o Packaging resources.

e Recruitment, training, and supervision of volunteers.

e Donations of ingredients and supplies (i.e. packaging)

In the longer term we will need:

o Strategy for scaling up and for sustaining our efforts.
e Additional financial resources, including donor, foundation, and government support.
e Expansion of the "community supported community" way of thinking.

What you are doing, what WCK is doing and what the team here in Asheville is doing will
lead us to the other side of this pandemic.

Thanks again.

Gratefully,

Mark Rosenstein

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

To: mlewis6956@charter.net

Cc: Esther Manheimer

Subject: Re: Hang in there

Date: Wednesday, April 1, 2020 1:24:24 PM

Thank you, Mike. Please continue to stay safe!

Brownie Newman
Sent from my iPad

> On Apr 1, 2020, at 6:26 AM, Michael N. Lewis <mlewis6956@charter.net> wrote:

>

> Charlotte and I are in our fourth week of isolation. We did this early on because of her respiratory condition.
Three of our children are nurses and we got the warning early on. Nevertheless, we feel fortunate. Our two children
who live here and friends and neighbors have kept us well supplied, and it seems like the "honey do" list is endless!
I have a stack of books to read. And...it's spring in the mountains. We're grateful! We're lucky.

>

> That's just background and expression of sincere gratitude. But that's not the purpose of this e-mail.

>

> I'm also thankful for the leadership you have shown. We're all under stress, but you have had to make tough
decisions, expose yourselves to infection, and worry about your families. Yet, it seems you have made the right
decisions to minimize the effect of corona virus on our community.

>

> Good luck and take care of yourselves and your families.

>

> Mike

>

>

>

> -

> Michael N Lewis

> 48 Gracelyn Rd.

> Asheville, NC 2880

> 828-252-3684

> mlewis6956@charter.net

>
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From: Brownie W. Newman

To: mlewis6956@charter.net

Cc: Esther Manheimer

Subject: Re: Hang in there

Date: Wednesday, April 1, 2020 1:24:25 PM

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
Date: Monday, April 20, 2020 11:21:01 AM

Kit — How about 3 PM? I am also free anytime after 3 PM.
Esther — Are you free at this time?

Brownie

Sent from my iPad

On Apr 20, 2020, at 11:01 AM, Kit Cramer <kcramer@ashevillechamber.org>
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
e e e NAMED 2019 CHAMBER OF THE YEAR BY ASSOCIATION OF CHAMBER OF

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
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Sybil, I wanted to share with you the results of a study that was conducted
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
e e e« NAMED 2019 CHAMBER OF THE YEAR BY ASSOCIATION OF
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For updates and business resources on Covid-19, visit:
www.ashevillechamber.org/coronavirus

Join us for Virtual Business Workshops Tuesdays at 10 a.m. and Thursdays at 3 p.m.
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
Date: Monday, April 20, 2020 11:21:02 AM
Attachments: image002.png

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
are unique by industry and only the business leaders really understand their processes.
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

@PBUNcoMBE [GNz






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
Responding to COVID-197”, https://bfi.uchicago.edu/wp-
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

Cc: Amanda Edwards; Alfred Whitesides; Jasmine Beach-Ferrara; dcampbell@ashevillenc.gov; Avril Pinder;
councilgroup

Subject: Re: QUICK UPDATE to RE: NOTES - WEEKLY Legislative Call for Friday May 1 2020

Date: Monday, May 4, 2020 11:29:56 AM

Esther,

Thanks for the information. I forwarded the email to the other commissioners as well. Look
forward to discussing further.

Brownie Newman

Sent from my iPad

On May 3, 2020, at 10:14 AM, "esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com"
<esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com> wrote:

Commissioners — | want to put something on your radar that came
out of the very short COVID 19 legislative session. (Also, please
forward this to the other three Commissioners.) Below is a summary
sent to the MetroMayors giving the key highlights of the bill. There
was a bit of debate about the item | highlighted below and that’s the
distribution of the 300 million in federal aid NC is to receive for local
government. The first half (150 million) is not controversial — set
aside in a reserve fund. But the legislature decided that the second
half should be distributed only to counties with the option to
distribute funds to cities. The League of Municipalities lobbied for
this money to be divided among cities and counties. | reached out to
Chuck McGrady before the bill passed (because he’s an
appropriator) and he said his colleagues trust counties more than
cites and that was the reason they decided to distribute the fund in
this matter.

Some thoughts about this:
1. Obviously the municipalities in Buncombe are taking a hit as is
Buncombe, and | would anticipate there will be an ask from the
Asheville to the County. | know you will be thoughtful in your
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distribution of these funds.

2. There will apparently be future allocations of additional federal
funds and therefore the possibility of seeking a different
allocation method for future funds but | am not clear how
much, for what purpose or when these funds might be made
available.

3. Finally, I am not clear as to what monies flow directly from the
feds to the City and County other than FEMA and CDBG (related
to COVID 19) but obviously when distributing money, you will
want to consider what other funds each muni and the County is
receiving from the feds. | think we can pull together that
information.

Thanks for all your doing, this is a strange time for local government
and | have appreciated your close collaboration with the City —and
at a staff level too. Pretty amazing.

Thanks,
Esther

<image002 Jpg> Esther Manheimer
Mayor, City of Asheville

P.O. Box 7148

Asheville, NC 28802

Cell 828.231.8016
esthermanheimer@avicouncil.com

From: Beau Mills <beau.mills@Metromayors.com>

Sent: Saturday, May 2, 2020 3:23 PM

To: nancy.vaughan@greensboro-nc.gov

Cc: McDowell, Ches <cmcdowell@kilpatricktownsend.com>; Freeman, Nelson
<NFreeman@kilpatricktownsend.com>; Donovan, Amanda
<ADonovan@kilpatricktownsend.com>; Billips, Hampton
<HBillips@kilpatricktownsend.com>

Subject: QUICK UPDATE to RE: NOTES - WEEKLY Legislative Call for Friday May 1 2020

QUICK Update on the Legislative activity today:
Both chambers completed their work this afternoon — passing two COVID relief bills.

One containing mainly funding provisions (H1043) and the other policy provisions
(S704). This was a coordinated effort, but two separate bills were used for procedural
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and timing reasons. Both bills have been sent to the Governor for his consideration.
The NC House will reconvene for “regular order of business” on May 18.

Key issues for cities in the NC COVID Relief Bill

Creates a Local Government Coronavirus Relief Reserve with $300m from the federal

COVID funds

e Sets aside $150m in the Reserve for local governments to replace lost revenue
to be allocated IF the US CONGRESS GRANTS that flexibility (this use is not
currently allowed in the federal legislation).

e Distributes S150m to 97 counties (excludes the three largest counties that
received direct federal funding). The bill states counties MAY allocate funds to
municipalities in the county, as long as the expenses meet the requirements in
the US Treasury guidance for COVID relief funds.

Transfers $300m to the NC DOT Highway General Maintenance Reserve for use IF the
US CONGRESS GRANTS that flexibility (this use is not currently allowed in the federal

legislation).

The bill did not grant authority for our restaurants to sell “to-go mixed beverages”
(something requested by the NC Restaurants and Lodging Assoc — a popular idea some
other states have done during this crisis).

Grants NC DEQ the authority to waive the ban on yard waste in landfills upon request
of a local government or private solid waste collection company during this crisis and
until August 1.

The bill creates a legal framework for Remote Meetings during a declared emergency —
and protects actions taken via simultaneous communication beginning MARCH 10 and
until the effective date of the legislation.

From: Beau Mills
Sent: Friday, May 1, 2020 12:29 PM
To: nancy.vaughan@greensboro-nc.gov; Beau Mills <beau.mills@Metromayors.com>

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
Subject: NOTES - WEEKLY Legislative Call for Friday May 1 2020

NOTES — Weekly Legislative Call

Friday, May 1, 2020

TOPICS INCLUDED:
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Beau’s OPENING REMARKS: The Governor has indicated that NC is currently on
track to begin Phase 1 on May 8 Phased Re-opening/Easing of Restrictions for the
state. If the specifically identified indicators and trends continue, Governor Cooper will
amend the Stay at Home Order for Phase I to allow for a broader set of activities that
are outlined in his re-opening plan.

Federal Update

e The U.S. Senate and House have been out this week. The Senate is set to return
next week and the House expects to come back the week after to take action on
COVID legislation and other issues.

e We are at a critical point for local governments as there is no funding allocated
to replace revenue in COVID aid bills so far. The U.S. House has made it a high
priority and we are hearing from Senators that they are wanting to take a look at
this issue as well.

e We will have more information regarding a federal strategy in the near future. In
the short term, if you have the opportunity to talk to your federal delegation,
stress the need for local government funding and share the specifics of your
budget.

Legislative Schedule UPDATE

e The NC General Assembly convened this week to take up COVID related
legislation.

e The Senate rolled out its own package (S704) that passed unanimously on
Wednesday. The House had their own package (H1043) that passed almost
unanimously (117-1) on Thursday.

e The House and Senate Appropriations Chairs are now negotiating a compromise.
e The plan is to have the final compromise provisions split up into two bills. Each
chamber will roll out a proposed committee substitute of the other chamber’s

bill, hold a floor vote, and then send to the other chamber for a concurrence vote.

o Legislators had originally anticipated to vote today (Friday), but they are still
negotiating and hope to reach a compromise by the end of the day with
expectation of floor votes being held Saturday. It is unclear at this point what
the final language will look like.

o After passage of the COVID legislation, we anticipate the General Assembly to
recess for anywhere from 2-4 weeks. Upon their return in late May to early June
they will have a more substantive policy session before taking up the budget in
July.

o Keep in mind when reviewing the specifics regarding the state COVID
legislation below that the bill is specific to dealing with federal funds from the
CARES Act.

Transportation
Allocation to DOT
Both chambers have agreed to allocate $300M to DOT - from the federal COVID funds
¢ The Senate has not yet decided if they are going to lower the cash balance floor
to $125M like the House did which would give DOT flexibility to keep some
work going
e Under current federal guidelines, COVID money cannot be spent on replacing
lost transportation funds. The General Assembly is setting aside this $300M in a
reserve fund in hopes that Congress will give them future flexibility.
o S704 — (Page 3, Section 2.3)
o H1043 — (Page 51, Section IVC.3, Subsection 34)

Public Safet
Nothing new to report

Economic Development
Golden Leaf Foundation Funding for Small Business
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¢ Loan program that serves as a bridge to SBA funds. It is being served through
NC Rapid Recovery program.
¢ Speaker has indicated he is comfortable with Senate allocation.
o H1043 allocates $75M (Page 3 — Section IC.1(a))
o S704 allocates $125M (Page 10 — Section 4.2(a))

Local Revenues/I.ocal Control
Local Government Allocation

e Congressional CARES Act has money set aside for state and local governments
to respond to the crisis, but money can only be spent on responding to the crisis.
It cannot be used for revenue replacement based on specific guidance from the
U.S. Dept. of Treasury. All cities (except Charlotte) have to go through the state
to receive money. Both chambers of our General Assembly proposals for this.

o Senate Bill 704 allocates $300M to local governments (Page 3 Section 2.4)

o $100M to counties

o $50M to a grant program (Grant program is for communities most
impacted)

o $150M Reserve pending Congressional amendment to the CARES Act
allowing flexibility for money to be used for revenue replacement (Page 3
Section 2.4)

¢ House Bill 1043 allocates $350M to counties (counties may disperse to cities in
accordance with the CARES Act and Treasury Department Guidance)

e While it is appreciated that both proposals allow for a share money to local
governments, there is no specific set aside for municipalities.

e NCLM is leading an effort to take a hybrid from the two chambers in the final
proposal. Specific request from NCLM (and your ask of your legislators, if
you can make contact today):

o $300M set aside for local governments
= $75M to cities
= $75M to counties
= $150M set aside in special reserve fund that would be
distributed if Congress provides flexibility

e We expect this first COVID legislation soon — feedback to GA members is
TIME SENSITIVE.

e [t is important to keep in mind that federal legislation related to COVID will
continue which will in turn mean the state legislature will have the opportunity
to provide to cities later, so this is not our last chance at direct funding.

¢ Itis important to continue the message that cities need to be specifically
included for assistance.

Remote Meetings
e Language was vetted by local government attorneys and NC Press Association
helped to craft this language.
e Prescriptive language allows remote meetings to continue during this and later
States of Emergency and is retroactive to actions taken beginning March 10.
o S704 — Page 47 Section 6.24
o H1043 — Page 89 Section 5.27

Gaston County Order
¢ Order issued yesterday by Gaston County Commission Chair encouraged
businesses to re-open.
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e Mayors in Gaston County issued a statement only hours calling on citizens to
abide by the State Executive Order and would enforce that.

Mixed Beverage Provision
e The House version allows restaurants to sell two mixed drinks for each takeout
order
o Must be part of a food order, must be sealed, and cannot violate any
existing laws.

Beau Mills, Metro Mayors Coalition Executive Director, mobile # 919.637.0873,
beau.mills@metromayors.com

Ches McDowell, Sr. Government Relations Advisor, Kilpatrick Townsend,

cmcdowell@kilpatricktownsend.com

Beau Mills, Exec. Director

N.C. Metropolitan Mayors Coalition
Mobile Phone: 919.637.0873

Twitter: @MetroMayors

Www.ncmetromayvors.com
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

Attachments: image001.png

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
To: Tracy Rose

Cc: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com; Fletcher Tove
Subject: Re: Response to critical Xpress letter?

Date: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 4:29:33 PM

Tracy,

I’d be happy for you to add my name to the response provided by Esther as well if that’s ok. Saw
one small typo. Should be “in our lifetime...”
Brownie

Sent from my iPad

On May 20, 2020, at 3:26 PM, Tracy Rose <trose@mountainx.com> wrote:

Dear Mayor Manheimer:

Thanks so much for your response. We'll plan to include it in an editor's note
with the letter.

Best regards,

photo-logo Tracy Rose
Opinion Editor | Mountain Xpress

p: 828.251.1333,110
a: 2 Wall St., Asheville, NC 28801
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Local Matters.

From: esthermanheimer@avicouncil.com

Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 3:10pm

To: "Tracy Rose™ <trose@mountainx.com>,
brownie.newman@buncombecounty.org, fletcher.tove@buncombecounty.org
Subject: RE: Response to critical Xpress letter?

Ms. Rose, here’s my response
“The City and County have been working in collaboration through
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our combined emergency response team to build and implement
a strategy that keeps our community as safe and healthy as
possible. This crisis, unprecedented | our lifetime, has
challenged our community as well as all levels of government. |
am proud of the local, coordinated response here in Asheville and
Buncombe County and the leadership shown by Governor
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

Hello! I'm the Opinion editor at Mountain Xpress, and we received a letter to
the editor that's critical of how you all have responded to the coronavirus
crisis.

We typically reach out to individuals who are being criticized with a summary
of the writer's points to see if they'd like to offer a short response that would
run in an editor's note at the bottom of the letter.

Here are the relevant points:

* Chairman Newman and Mayor Manheimer have failed miserably with the
response to the virus, initially trying to carve out your own response.

* With the addition of Fletcher Tove, they learned they were not competent to
deal with the virus, so ducked behind state guidelines, with the caveat that
they would be more restrictive when it came to tourism

* Hiding behind the state ignores that Buncombe County is vastly different
than many other counties, with Buncombe having minuscule case of the virus,
low hospitalizations and deaths flat (deaths were elderly people with
underlying conditions).

* They put boot on the neck of businesses, further strangling the already-
suffering people of city and county

* They cherry pick negative statistics and ignore positive ones.

* Millions of dollars are going from area residents to Tennessee and Georgia,
plus millions from non-county residents who would rather have spent their
money here.

* If they are not smart enough to come up with new well-thought out ways to
keep the virus at bay and save our future, they could at least copy other
states (with masks for employees, strict disinfecting criteria, slightly
diminished capacity of spaces, checking temperatures and health of
employees, checking temperatures of diners before they enter a restaurant).





Would any of you like to offer a short response? If you could let me know by
noon tomorrow (Thursday), then | could take a response as late as the end of
the day Friday.

Thanks very much.

<image003.jpg> | Tracy Rose

Opinion Editor | Mountain Xpress

Local Matters. p: 828.251.1333,110

a: 2 Wall St., Asheville, NC 28801
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From: Esther Manheimer

To: Brownie W. Newman

Cc: Fletcher Tove; Tracy Rose

Subject: Re: Response to critical Xpress letter?
Date: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 7:06:13 PM

Thanks, sounds good

On Wed, May 20, 2020 at 4:29 PM Brownie W. Newman
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
a: 2 Wall St.., Asheville, NC 28801
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Local Matters.

From: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com
Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 3:10pm

To: "Tracy Rose™ <trose@mountainx.com>,

brownie.newman@buncombecounty.org, fletcher.tove@buncombecounty.or

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

brownie.newman@buncombecounty.org; fletcher.tove@buncombecounty.or:

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



mailto:trose@mountainx.com

mailto:esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

mailto:brownie.newman@buncombecounty.org

mailto:fletcher.tove@buncombecounty.org



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
a: 2 Wall St.. Asheville. NC 28801
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Sign up to receive emergency texts directly from Buncombe County for breaking health and safety
news. Text BCALERT on your smart phone to 888-777 to receive alerts on important information
such as floods, communicable disease, county office closings, and relevant traffic safety

notifications OR visit buncombeready.org

Email correspondence to and from this address may be subject to the North Carolina Public
Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.

This electronic communication may contain information that is confidential, privileged,
proprietary, or otherwise legally exempt from disclosure. Additionally, the unauthorized
disclosure of juvenile, health, legally privileged, proprietary, or otherwise confidential information
may be prohibited by law. If you have received this email in error, you are hereby notified that you
are not authorized to read, print, retain, copy, or disseminate this communication, any part of it, or
any attachments. Please notify the sender immediately and delete all records of this email. There is
no intent on the part of the sender to waive any privilege that may attach to this communication.

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

Subject: Re: WHAT ARE OUR LOVED ONES IN JAIL TO DO DURING COVID 19???
Date: Thursday, April 9, 2020 9:20:21 AM

I forwarded it to Aaron Sarver and asked him to copy any staff he thinks should need to be
aware of the email.

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

From: kasey w <ncbeauty?24@gmail.com>

Date: Tue, Apr 7, 2020 at 4:53 PM

Subject: WHAT ARE OUR LOVED ONES IN JAIL TO DO DURING COVID 197?7?

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
Date: Thursday, April 9, 2020 9:20:22 AM

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

mailto:Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org

mailto:ncbeauty24@gmail.com

mailto:esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

mailto:esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com



<~WRDO0000.jpg>

Brad R. Branham
City Attorney

City of Asheville
P.O. Box 7148
Asheville, NC 28802
828-259-5614

<~WRDO0000.jpg>






From: Esther Manheimer

To: Jennifer Fletcher

Cc: Antony Chiang; Betsey Russell; Brownie W. Newman; Debra Campbell; JMatthews@ashevillenc.gov
Subject: Re: testing

Date: Monday, April 13, 2020 7:04:25 PM

Great, thank you!

On Mon, Apr 13, 2020 at 6:16 PM Jennifer Fletcher <j.fletcher@dht.org> wrote:
Thank you, I'll connect with Jaime for us to sync up schedules on Tuesday or Wednesday.

Best regards,

Jennifer Fletcher

Dogwood Health Trust

(828) 458-1972 (C)
jfletcher@dhtorg | www.dhtorg

From: Antony Chiang <a.chiang@dht.org>
Sent: Monday, April 13, 2020 5:14 PM

To: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com <esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>
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

Antony — Hope you’re doing well. | was talking with the Chair of the
Buncombe County Commission earlier today (Brownie Newman) and he was
explaining that the Commissioners are considering having a specially called
meeting this week to urge their staff (Health Dept., etc.) to engage in robust
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community COVID 19 testing. They want to develop a model here that can be
replicated in other counties. Based on our earlier conversation, | thought
they would benefit from discussing this concept with you before having that
Commissioner meeting. Could we set up a call with you and Brownie and at
least one other Commissioner tonight, or tomorrow or Wednesday? They
want to have their specially called meeting on Thursday.

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

To: Liz Button; Esther Manheimer
Subject: ABC question
Date: Monday, April 20, 2020 10:53:56 AM

At this point, it sounds like we have to just follow the state rules that wine and beer can be sold via take-out but not

liquor.

I have asked Jan Davis about the ABC buy-back policy and that they are charging a tax on the transaction. He is
chair of the ABC board and would be sympathetic on this issue, I think.

Brownie Newman

Sent from my iPad
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From: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

To: "Beau Mills"; "Philip Isley"

Cc: "Christy, John A"; Brownie W. Newman
Subject: FW: CLIA Letter for Governor Cooper
Date: Friday, April 17, 2020 2:51:19 PM
Attachments: CLIA letter to Governor.pdf

CVaarrettgraham.pdf

Beau and Philip — see below and attached. We’ve got a possibility of setting up
a local testing operation but need to be fast tracked to get this facility certified.
Brownie Newman, our County Commission Chair, copied here, asked me to try
to route this request to the Governor as it is believed that he has the authority
to get the certification completed. Brownie reached out to the local legislative
delegation (see below) and asked me to reach out to my contacts. He just
wants to exhaust all possible routes to the Governor. Do you have a suggestion
for who to forward this to? | also copied Drew Christy, the Governor’s director
of the western office.

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

To: Rep. John Ager <john.ager@ncleg.net>; Rep. Brian Turner <brian.turner@ncleg.net>; Rep. Susan
Fisher <Susan.Fisher@ncleg.net>; Sen. Terry Van Duyn <terry.vanduyn@ncleg.net>

Cc: Jasmine Beach-Ferrara <Jasmine.Beach-Ferrara@buncombecounty.org>; Esther Manheimer
<esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>

Subject: Fwd: CLIA Letter for Governor Cooper

John, Brian, Susan and Terry:
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Buncombe County Board of Commissioners

Chairman District 1 District 2 District 3
Brownie Newman Jasmine Beach-Ferrara Amanda Edwards Joe Belcher
BUNCOMBE Al Whitesides Mike Fryar Robert Pressley
COUNTY
GOVERNMENT

——NORTH CAROLINA——

April 15, 2020

Governor Roy Cooper
1 East Edenton Street
Raleigh, NC 27601

Dear Governor Cooper,

Thank you for your leadership in addressing the COVID-19 threat to North Carolina. As
you know, one of the greatest challenges in efforts to slow the spread of this contagious
disease has been the national shortage of testing equipment for COVID-19 and the lab
capacity to process tests. Expanding the capacity of testing and analysis is essential to
both slowing the spread of COVID-19 and to planning for the re-opening of community
activities and businesses in a safe manner.

| am writing to you today to ask for your help in approving a procedure that we believe
could significantly increase our capacity for testing and analysis in western North
Carolina and perhaps across the state. Dr. Garrett Graham, PhD in Bioengineering and
Climate Data Analyst Research Associate, would like to establish an additional COVID-19
testing site in the region, which could expand testing in a very efficient manner. Dr.
Graham is a native North Carolinian with over seven years of intensive training and
experience in cutting-edge molecular biology techniques and research: just the skillsets
that are required for setting up such a testing operation. We need your help to remove
some regulatory red-tape.

Lab testing facilities are regulated by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services
(CMS). The set of rules that govern labs are the Clinical Laboratory Improvement
Amendments (CLIA). Although CLIA standards are established at the Federal level, they
are awarded at the state level. There are different levels of CLIA certifications,
depending on how complex the lab's testing will be. Currently, COVID-19 tests can only
be analyzed in the facilities certified at the highest level, which contributes greatly to
the bottleneck in testing capacity in North Carolina.

Dr. Graham and Buncombe County’s health officials believe COVID-19 tests can only be

200 College Street, Room 316 - Asheville, NC 28801

828.250.4001 . 828.250.6076 buncombecounty.org








safely administered in a CLIA facilities that adheres to the highest standard for testing
protocols. We are writing to ask you to help stream-line our efforts to set up a regional
testing lab by requesting, or directing under your emergency authorities, that NC
Division of Health Service Regulation Acute and Home Care Licensure and Certification
Section adopt a model akin to what the FDA is now using for Emergency Use Agreement
(EUA)-approved tests. In this manner, the labs still have to follow all of the correct
protocols and get all of the proper certifications, but they may proceed and start testing
as long as they have an initial stamp of approval from CMS. We understand that a form
of this currently exists (applying for an initial “Certificate of Registration”); however, we
are hoping that you will use your power as Governor to help to fast-track the receipt of
this initial certification, such that it takes as little time as possible. In this pandemic, lost
time will equate to lost lives.

We believe taking this step could enable Buncombe County to begin processing
hundreds of tests per day, rather than the much smaller numbers we have been able to
process to date. Further, the test results could be achieved in our community on the
same day the tests are taken, as the process would occur in the county and not need to
be mailed to a facility in another part of the state.

Thank you very much for your attention to this dilemma. We believe this is one of the
most effective actions that could be taken to scale up the community testing that is so
essential to suppressing COVID-19 and restoring community and economic activities.

Sincerely,

Bybwhn‘.’f :\VW PR

Brownie Newman,
Chairman of the Buncombe County Commission

CC:

Esther Manheimer, Mayor of Asheville

Azzie Y. Conley

Dr. Jennifer Mullendore, Interim Public Health Director for Buncombe County
Dr. Garrett Graham

Senator Terry Van Duyn

Representative John Ager

Representative Susan Fisher

Representative Brian Turner

200 College Street, Room 316 - Asheville, NC 28801
828.250.4001 f. 828.250.6076
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Garrett Cook Graham
828.553.3398 |44 Elks Club Road, Brevard, NC 28712 | garrett.c.graham@gmail.com

Education

University of California San Diego, San Diego, CA | July 2015 - July 2019
PhD, Bioengineering

University of California San Diego, San Diego, CA | September 2012 - July 2015
MS, Bioengineering
® GPA: 3.62 (Cumulative)

University of Richmond, Richmond, VA | May 2010
Bachelor of Science in Mathematics and Physics, Magna Cum Laude
e GPA: 3.79 (Cumulative) / 3.82 (Mathematics & Physics Combined GPA)

Nanjing University, Nanjing, Jiangsu, China | August 2007-December 2007

Publications

Huang, B, Liu, C., Banzon, V., Freeman, E., Graham, G., Hankins, B., Smith, T., & Zhang, H.M. (2020)
Improvements of the Daily Optimum Interpolation Sea Surface Temperature (DOISST) Version 2.1.
Submitted to The Journal of Climate for publication.

Graham, G., Csicsery, N., Stasiowski, E., Thouvenin, G., Mather, W.H., Ferry, M., Cookson, S., & Hasty, J.
(2019). Genome-scale transcriptional dynamics and environmental biosensing. Proceedings of the
National Academy of Sciences, 117(6), 3301-3306.

Csicsery, N., Stasiowski, E., Thouvenin, G., Graham, G., O'Laughlin, R., Mather, W.H., Ferry, M.,
Cookson, S., and Hasty, J.. A custom high-throughput microfluidic and optical platform for continuous
culturing and measurement of E. coli and S. cerevisiae. Submitted August 20, 2019 and currently under
review.

Bleak, C., Bowman, H., Gordon Lynch, A., Graham, G., Hughes, J., Matucci, F., & Sapir, E. (2013).
Centralizers in the R. Thompson group V-sub-n. Groups, Geometry, and Dynamics, 7(4), 821-865.

Graham, G. C., & Lipan, O. (2011). The effect of coupled stochastic processes in a two-state
biochemical switch. Journal of biological physics, 37(4), 441-462.

Cates, J., Graham, G. C., Omattage, N., Pavesich, E., Setliff, |., Shaw, J.,& Lipan, O. (2011). Sensing the
heat stress by Mammalian cells. BMC biophysics, 4(1), 16.

Reports

Graham G., et al. October 2018. DARPA Grant Hasty Final Report: An Online Biosensor for the
Protection of Water Supplies. (Report No. 9). Agreement No. HR0011-15-2-0046.
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Graham G., et al. August 2017. DARPA Grant Hasty August 2017: An Online Biosensor for the Protection
of Water Supplies. (Report No. 8). Agreement No. HR0011-15-2-0046.

Graham G., et al. May 2017. DARPA Grant Hasty May 2017: An Online Biosensor for the Protection of
Water Supplies. (Report No. 7). Agreement No. HR0011-15-2-0046.

Graham G., et al. February 2017. DARPA Grant Hasty February 2017: An Online Biosensor for the
Protection of Water Supplies. (Report No. 6). Agreement No. HR0011-15-2-0046.

Graham G., et al. November 2016. DARPA Grant Hasty November 2016: An Online Biosensor for the
Protection of Water Supplies. (Report No. 5). Agreement No. HR0011-15-2-0046.

Graham G., et al. August 2016. DARPA Grant Hasty August 2016: An Online Biosensor for the Protection
of Water Supplies. (Report No. 4). Agreement No. HR0011-15-2-0046.

Graham G., et al. May 2016. DARPA Grant Hasty May 2016: An Online Biosensor for the Protection of
Water Supplies. (Report No. 3). Agreement No. HR0011-15-2-0046.

Graham G., et al. February 2016. DARPA Grant Hasty February 2016: An Online Biosensor for the
Protection of Water Supplies. (Report No. 2). Agreement No. HR0011-15-2-0046.

Graham G., et al. November 2015. DARPA Grant Hasty November 2015: An Online Biosensor for the
Protection of Water Supplies. (Report No. 1). Agreement No. HR0011-15-2-0046.

Graham G., et al. March 2015. DARPA Living Foundries Grant Hasty March 2015 Progress Report: An
Online Biosensor for the Protection of Water Supplies. (Report No. 4). Agreement No.
W911NF-14-2-0032.

Graham G., et al. December 2014. DARPA Living Foundries Grant Hasty December 2014 Progress
Report: An Online Biosensor for the Protection of Water Supplies. (Report No. 3). Agreement No.
W911NF-14-2-0032.

Graham G., et al. September 2014. DARPA Living Foundries Grant Hasty September 2014 Progress
Report: An Online Biosensor for the Protection of Water Supplies. (Report No. 2). Agreement No.
W911NF-14-2-0032.

Graham G., et al. June 2014. DARPA Living Foundries Grant Hasty June 2014 Progress Report: An
Online Biosensor for the Protection of Water Supplies. (Report No. 1). Agreement No.
W911NF-14-2-0032.

Presentations

Graham G., et al. Dynomics : A machine learning and microfluidic platform for the introspection of
genome dynamics with practical applications. Winter Q-Bio Conference. Maui, HI. Feb. 2019. Oral
Presentation.

Graham G.*, Stasiowski E.*, Csicsery N.*, Thouvenin G.*, et al. Microfluidic development for the
simultaneous culturing of 2,048 unique E. coli and S. cerevisiae strains. Jacobs School of Engineering
Research Expo, University of California San Diego. April 2018.







Graham G.*, Stasiowski E.*, Csicsery N.*, Thouvenin G.*, et al. Microfluidic development for the
simultaneous culturing of 2,048 unique E. coli and S. cerevisiae strains. Winter Q-Bio Conference.
Maui, HI. Feb. 2018. Poster Presentation.

Graham G.*, Stasiowski E.*, Csicsery N.*, Thouvenin G.*, et al. An online biosensor for the
protection of water supplies. BRICS (Biological Robustness in Complex Settings) Pl Review. Austin, TX.
Nov. 2017. Poster Presentation.

Graham G.*, Stasiowski E.*, Csicsery N.*, Thouvenin G.*, et al. Microfluidic development for the
simultaneous culturing of 2,048 unique E. coli and S. cerevisiae strains. Jacobs School of Engineering
Research Expo, University of California San Diego. April 2017.

Patents

Hasty, J., Baumgart, L. A., Cookson, S., Ferry, M., Graham, G., Huerta, R., Johnson, R., & Tsimring, L.
(2016). Microbial microfluidic biosensor. U.S. Patent No. W02016133830A1. Washington, DC: U.S.
Patent and Trademark Office.

Relevant skills and competencies

Statistics; machine learning; deep learning (RNN, LSTM); Linux command line; AWS cloud computing;
brightfield and fluorescent microscopy (software, hardware, and operation); microfluidic design,
fabrication, and operation; molecular cloning (primer design, PCR, Gibson Assembly, Golden Gate
Assembly, etc.); finite element analysis (FEA) modeling; flow cytometry and related data analysis;
mammalian cell line husbandry.

Coding languages and frameworks

Python (numpy, scipy, matplotlib, pandas, scikit-learn, keras, tensorflow, bokeh, seaborn, opencv), git,
bash, C, Java, MySQL, R, vim, AutoCAD, SolidWorks, Imagel, Photoshop, Illustrator, MATLAB,
Mathematica, COMSOL, Keynote, PowerPoint.

Foreign languages

Mandarin Chinese (&1&1&) (Proficient), French (Basic), Spanish (Basic)

Research and Related Experiences

November 2019 - Present | Research Associate, North Carolina Institute for Climate Studies, Asheville,
NC
® Responsible for upgrading and maintaining NOAA's primary sea surface temperature product,
the Optimum Interpolation Sea Surface Temperature (OISST). Tasked with integrating new
satellite observation data from both NOAA and NASA satellites to improve our nation's
understanding of sea surface temperature. In addition, responsible for designing and teaching
a fully online course on machine learning and artificial intelligence to our research group.







January 2013 - July 2019 | Biodynamics Laboratory, UCSD

o Collaborated on a multidisciplinary team to develop a microfluidic screening assay capable of
qguantifying the transciptional response of 2,000+ unique E. coli and S. cerevisiae promoters to
environmental perturbations.

e Developed and manufactured a microfluidic biosensor capable of continuously detecting 6
toxins in drinking water in real-time by capturing the fluorescence response of over 2,000 E.
coli strains.

e Built Python library (dynomics) and machine learning classifiers for continuous monitoring of
microfluidic sensor data.

e Managed and trained incoming students in microfluidics and basic laboratory skills.

January 2009 — November 2010 | Optimization of Chemical Switches in Stochastic Gene Networks,
University of Richmond

e Worked with theoretical physicist and systems biologist Dr. Ovidiu Lipan to find analytical
and numerical solutions to the optimization problem for generalized chemical switches in
stochastic gene signalling networks and to understand behavior of stochastic bio-switches
with low molecular populations.

e First student presenter at University of Tennessee’s NIMBios Conference 2010.

e Results published in Journal of Biological Physics, May 2011.

January 2009 - August 2010 | Undergraduate Mathematical Biology Research Program, University of
Richmond
e Worked with Dr. Ovidiu Lipan, Dept. of Physics, and Dr. Laura Runyen-Janecky, Dept. of
Biology, on NSF-funded research program investigating cellular genetic networks and
biological circuits using a combination of theoretical mathematics and wet-lab
experimentation. Experiments performed throughout spring and summer, data analyzed
during fall and winter.
® Presented then-current results with Dr. Kathy Hoke, University of Richmond Dept. of
Mathematics and Dean of Undergraduate Research, at Joint Mathematics Meetings in
San Francisco, CA. in January, 2010. Presented results to University of Tennessee’s
NIMBios Conference 2009.
o Results published in BMC biophysics.

August - December 2008 | Investigating Chaotic Dynamics in Cash-In-Advance Economies, University
of Richmond
e Researched chaos in cash-in-advance economies using an approach employing
inverse-limits with Dr. Van Nall, Dept. of Mathematics. Laid groundwork for an article
published in peer- reviewed journal.

August 2008 — December 2009 | Putnam Mathematics Competition Team Member, University of
Richmond.

® 2008: Scored 12 on the examination, ranking in the top 25% nationally.

® 2009: Scored a 19; team ranked 27t nationally.

May - August 2007 | Mathematics Research Experience for Undergraduates (REU), Cornell University
e Under direction of Dr. Collin Bleak, then of Cornell University Dept. of Mathematics,
participated in both theoretical research and computational research; designed and
implemented software in C++ to assist in theoretical research.
e REU included course in graduate-level group theory.







® Results presented to Cornell and Binghampton University Math Department faculties. Work
to be submitted for publication in 2011.

January - May 2007 | Cataloguing and Pattern-Recognition of Signal Propagation in Nonlinear
Stochastic Gene Regulatory Networks, University of Richmond
e Attended seminar on and conducted research in Systems Biology, under the direction of
Dr. Ovidiu Lipan, deriving and cataloguing equations governing signal propagation in
nonlinear stochastic gene regulatory networks within cells.

August 2006 - May 2007 | Math and Science Education in Chinese High Schools,
Shanghai, China
e Traveled to Shanghai, China, for two-weeks to investigate education/economic interactions
under direction of Dr. Kathy Hewett-Smith, University of Richmond Dept. of English, and
funded by research grant from University of Richmond; prepared 25-page thesis on findings.
o Presented findings at Arts & Sciences Student Symposium at University of Richmond.

Fall 2006 - Spring 2007 | Golay Sequence Seminar, University of Richmond
e Participated with Richmond senior Goldwater Scholar Mike Pohl and Dr. James Davis, Dept.
of Mathematics, on Pohl’s honors thesis project investigating the properties of Golay
Sequences.

May - August 2006 | Kernel-Method Based Wireless Ad-Hoc Network Security, University of
Richmond
e Investigated attack detection in Wireless Ad-Hoc Networks using machine learning
methods, primarily kernel methods, with Dr. Barry Lawson, Dept. of Computer Science.
® Presented work at the Summer Undergraduate Research Talks at the University of
Richmond.

Teaching

March - June 2016 | Teaching Assistant, BENG 120: Nonlinear Dynamics and Modeling in the Life
Sciences, UC San Diego.

January - March 2016 | Teaching Assistant, BENG 100: Statistical Reasoning for Bioengineering
Applications, UC San Diego.

September - December 2015 | Teaching Assistant, BENG 134: Measurements/Stats/Probability, UC
San Diego.

March - June 2015 | Teaching Assistant, BENG 100: Statistical Reasoning for Bioengineering
Applications, UC San Diego.

January - March 2016 | Teaching Assistant, BENG 120: Nonlinear Dynamics and Modeling in the Life
Sciences, UC San Diego.

August 2009 — May 2010 | Tutor, Integrated Quantitative Sciences Course, University of Richmond
® Selected by science and math faculties to be primary tutor for a new freshman sciences
course, which integrates and applies biology, chemistry, computer science, mathematics,
and physics.







August - December 2008 | Grader, Math 323: Discrete Math Models, University of Richmond
e Grading projects that include problems on graph theory, combinatorics, and number theory
for Dr. Sarah Spence Adams, Visiting Professor from Olin College.

January - December 2006 | Tutor, Academic Skills Center, University of Richmond
e Tutored in Calculus, Statistics, Physics, French, Spanish, and Introductory U.S. and
European History.

Employment and Volunteer

May 2012 - August 2012| Program Director, Camp Chosatonga, Brevard, NC
e Managed staff of 32 at wilderness summer camp for boys. Directly responsible for daily
operation and programs of camp, and the well-being of 136 campers.

March 2012 - May 2012 | Safety/Photo Kayaker, Paddle Nepal, Pokhara, Nepal
o Worked as a safety/photo kayaker for Nepal’s premier expedition rafting company.
Safeguarded clients on Class IlI-V Himalayan whitewater on self-supported trips of three to ten
days in length. Contact Nim Bahadur Magar at info@paddlenepal.com for reference.

December 2011 - February 2012 | Safety Kayaker, Siam River Adventures, Chiang Mai, Thailand
e Working as a safety kayaker on the Mae Tang River (Class IV whitewater). Responsible for
rescuing clients and raft guides and, if necessary, administering first aid/CPR.

May-August 2011 | Program Director, Camp Chosatonga, Brevard, NC
e Managed staff of 30 at wilderness summer camp for boys. Directly responsible for the
well-being of 130 campers.

January — February 2011| Head Cook, Guide, Morro Negrito Surf Camp, Morro Negrito, Panama
e Cooked for employees of Morro Negrito Surf Camp; guided clients to remote surf breaks
and fishing areas off of Panama’s Pacific coast.

August 2005 — May 2010 | Co-Captain, NCAA Div. | Cross Country, Indoor, and Outdoor Track Teams
e Co-captained team to 11t Highest Team GPA for all NCAA Div. | athletic programs in Spring
e 2010.
® Personal bests of 1:54 for 800m, 4:11 in the Mile, 9:15 for 3k Steeplechase, and 25:22 for 8k.
o Selected to participate in post-conference competition in both Summer 2009 and 2010.

August 2008 — June 2009 | Math Teacher, Church Hill Academy, Church Hill, Richmond, VA
® Primary geometry teacher at an inner-city school in its second year. Taught two to five days
per week.

August 2008 — May 2009 | Student Representative, Editorial Board, Richmond Alumni Magazine
e Represented the University of Richmond student body’s view in the selection and editing

of articles published in The Alumni Magazine.

August 2008 — May 2009 | Athlete Representative, Richmond Senior Class Gifting Committee
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e Planned fundraising strategy and gathered donations for Gifting Committee responsible
for record-breaking donation participation from Class of 2009.

March — May 2008]| Intern, Center for Biodiversity and Indigenous Knowledge, Kunming, Yunnan,
China
e Editor, translator, and photographer. Edited and translated grant proposals.

March — May 2008 | Volunteer Teacher, Grace School (& HF%#X), Kunming, Yunnan, China

e Taught English to homeless students and children of migrant laborers.

August -December 2007 | Foreign Student, Nanjing University, Nanjing, Jiangsu, China
o Took a self-funded gap year from college in order to pursue interest in the Chinese language,
for academic interest and future career applications.

Fall 2006 - Fall 2007 | Volunteer Mentor, Peer Advising Mentors (PAM), University of Richmond
e Mentored and supported incoming freshman in his endeavor to major in mathematics.
Student graduated as a double-major in mathematics and computer science with honors.

Fall 2006 | Member, Bluegrass Ensemble, University of Richmond
® Played bluegrass and old-time fiddle for university’s bluegrass ensemble. Performed live at
on- campus venues.

Summers 2003, 2005, 2008 | Head of Instruction and Guiding, Camp Chosatonga, Brevard, NC
e Managed whitewater paddling department. Responsible for staff of six and the safety of
over thirty campers on rivers ranging from Class I-IV+ in intensity.

2006-2007 | Resident Assistant, University of Richmond, Richmond, VA
e RAresponsible for 50+ freshmen men. Selected by Richmond College Dean and staff to
return as Head Resident of dorm for the following year, but declined to take a gap year
instead.

Scholarships and Awards

Ethyl and Albemarle Science and Math Four-Year Full Scholarship, 2005-2010; Phi Beta Kappa; Pi Mu
Epsilon (National Mathematics Honor Society); Robert Edward Loving Award in Physics (established
in 1954 and given to graduating senior on the basis of general academic achievement and
promise for advance study in physics); Presidential Citation (given by University President and
Richmond College Dean to graduating male student-athlete with most outstanding scholastic
achievements); Omicron Delta Kappa (National Leadership Honor Society); Golden Key Honor Society;
Phi Eta Sigma (National Freshman Honor Society); Chi Alpha Sigma (National Athlete Honor Society);
Spider Scholar, 2006-2007, 2007-2008 (varsity athlete with highest GPA in class); Dean’s List Member
(6/8 semesters); AP Scholar with Distinction, Spring 2005; National Merit Scholar, Spring 2005; Mu
Alpha Theta, High School Mathematics Honor Society. SAT I: 1580 (out of 1600); SAT Il (Cumulative
Score - 1600): Math - 800; Writing — 800; GRE General Test: Verbal - 710 (98%); Quantitative - 750
(82%); Analytical Writing - 5.5 (94%).









| wanted to share with you a copy of a letter we are working to deliver to Governor Cooper or a
senior member of his team regarding an initiative that could significantly increase testing for COVID-
19 in Buncombe County. See attached. This would enable us to quickly set up a new testing facility in
the community that would enable large scale, same-day testing at lower cost. It could make a big
difference in fighting COVID-19 and allowing us to reopen businesses and community activities.

Esther is working to get this to the Governor or key people on his team. We wanted you to be aware
of this effort and ask if you had any suggestions for what may be the best way to bring this issue to
the Governors attention for potential action. We believe he has the authority to approve this as part
of his emergency powers. Or perhaps he could get it approved by requesting help from the
appropriate agency decision-makers.

I will keep you posted with our effort to elevate this issue. If you have any specific suggestions, that
would be great.

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
Subject: FW: FW: city covid testing
Date: Monday, May 18, 2020 10:46:14 AM

FYI, see below.
We're going to get this info to Kim King

From: Peggy Rowe <prowe@ashevillenc.gov>

Sent: Monday, May 18, 2020 10:06 AM

To: Jaime Matthews <jmatthews@ashevillenc.gov>

Cc: Esther Manheimer <esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>; Debra Campbell
<dcampbell@ashevillenc.gov>

Subject: Re: FW: city covid testing

Good morning all,

The City will provide COVID testing as well as antibody testing for employees who are or
have been at high risk due to their assignments. Specifically the intent is to administer
testing to sworn officers in APD, Firefighters, Employee Health Center employees and
applicable employees in all departments based on their work assignments. We are
evaluating the testing of all employees and will make that decision in the near future.
Health Services, APD, AFD and Legal are working together making these needs
assessments.

My best,

Peggy

On Mon, May 18, 2020 at 9:19 AM Jaime Matthews <jmatthews@ashevillenc.gov> wrote:

Yes, | have added Peggy to the email.

On Mon, May 18, 2020 at 9:11 AM <esthermanheimer@avicouncil.com> wrote:

Do we have any info on this?

From: Kimberly King <kmking@sbgtv.com>
Sent: Monday, May 18, 2020 9:07 AM
To: Esther E. Manheimer <emanheimer@vwlawfirm.com>; Brownie Newman

<newmanasheville@gmail.com>
Subject: city covid testing

good morning to both of you,
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| hope you both had a great weekend. Perhaps the city and the county of already issued a news
release but | haven’t seen it. | have learned however that you will be offering covid and
antibodies testing to all essential workers from emergency to garbage. | would like to do the
story today. | would like to interview both of you as well as some staff but | can worry about
that later. Email me back to let me know if both of you would be willing to do an interview this
morning on the story. Thank you so much.

*Just thank my Iphone, for any typos in my email to you!

Kimberly King

Reporter
WLOS-TV(ABC)
Asheville, North Carolina
m. 828-808-5360

e. kmking@wlos.com

Jaime Matthews

Assistant to the City Manager
City of Asheville

Email: jmatthews@ashevillenc.gov
Office: 828-232-4541

Cell: 828-713-3090

Peggy Rowe
Special Assistant to the City Manager/
Director of Human Resources

(828)259-5682 | Cell: (828)778-8936 | www.ashevillenc.gov/jobs

Great Employees. Great Careers. Unlimited possibilities.
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From: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

To: "Kimberly King"

Cc: Brownie W. Newman

Subject: FW: FW: city covid testing

Date: Monday, May 18, 2020 11:40:17 AM
Kim -

The City will provide COVID testing as well as antibody testing for
employees who are or have been at high risk due to their assignments.
Specifically the intent is to administer testing to sworn officers in APD,
Firefighters, Employee Health Center employees and applicable
employees in all departments based on their work assignments. We are
evaluating the testing of all employees and will make that decision in
the near future. Health Services, APD, AFD and Legal are working
together making these needs assessments. The plan to begin the testing
as soon as possible within the next few weeks.

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

Subject: FW: Face Coverings

Date: Monday, May 18, 2020 3:13:13 PM
FYI

From: Brad Branham <bbranham@ashevillenc.gov>

Sent: Monday, May 18, 2020 11:25 AM

To: Esther Manheimer <esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>
Cc: Debra Campbell <dcampbell@ashevillenc.gov>

Subject: Face Coverings

Mayor,

| have reviewed the current Stay Home Order issued by Durham County. Section 2(C)(10) of the
Order mandates the wearing of face coverings. Some important aspects of this provision are as
follows:

* As with all social distancing and sanitization requirements, wearing face coverings is limited to "all
times reasonable."

* Applies anytime you come in contact with other people, in public or private, who are not members
of the same household.

* Applies ONLY when it is not possible to otherwise socially distance.

* Transit riders are included in the requirement, but no one will be denied or removed for failure to
comply.

*Individual outdoor exercise (or exercise with household members) is excluded from the
requirement.

The order specifies that the requirements will be enforced criminally, including the closure of
businesses which do not comply.

| spoke with the County Attorney in Durham this morning. He tells me that for the few weeks that
this has been in effect, that they have had up to 70% compliance. Importantly, he notes that they
have taken a very hands off approach to enforcement. Although the Order calls for criminal
penalties, the County and City are writing no tickets yet. If any issue of non-compliance pops up,
they will try to "educate" that individual or business as opposed to enforcing the requirements.
Therefore, in practice, the face covering requirement is really being encouraged rather than
mandated. As of yet, they haven't had any legal challenges or threats, and believe this approach is
working well.

| am fairly confident that, given the CDC guidance on the issue, we would have the legal authority to
include a mandate to wear masks. Pursuant to § 166A-19.31, we have the authority to prohibit or
restrict " ... activities or conditions the control of which may be reasonably necessary to maintain
order and protect lives or property during the state of emergency." So long as such a restriction was
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enforced consistently and only to the extent necessary, it would likely be legally defensible. | do,
however, have some concern about the transit aspect of this. | believe some legal issues may
present themselves if we mandate face coverings for riders without providing a mask to those who
do not have them. However, I'm equally concerned about including an exception as Durham County
did. That could potentially call into question the legal legitimacy of at least that portion of the
provision, if not the whole thing. | would suggest that if a face covering requirement was imposed
on transit riders, that we be prepared to provide masks to them. In the alternative, we should
exercise caution in enforcing in that area, but don't include a written exception.

Please let me know if you have any additional questions or concerns.

Brad R. Branham
City Attorney

City of Asheville
P.O. Box 7148
Asheville, NC 28802
828-259-5614







From: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

To: Brownie W. Newman

Subject: FW: Letter to Greg Lowe - Election Process
Date: Sunday, May 3, 2020 11:34:02 AM
Attachments: 2020 04 07 Newman Manheimer Letter.pdf

Seems like now that they have almost no COVID patients and are going to
resume elective surgeries, they could now hold this vote....

From: Lowe Gregory <Greg.Lowe@hcahealthcare.com>

Sent: Tuesday, April 7, 2020 5:14 PM

To: Brownie W. Newman <Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>
Cc: Esther Manheimer <esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>

Subject: Re:Letter to Greg Lowe - Election Process

Thank you for your letter and your interest in Mission Health. Please find my response in the
attached letter.

Greg Lowe
President
North Carolina Division

HCA Healthcare
12 Ardmore Street, Asheville, NC 28803

From: Brownie W. Newman <Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>
Sent: Monday, April 6, 2020 1:46 PM

To: Lowe Gregory <Greg.lowe@hcahealthcare.com>

Cc: Esther Manheimer <esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>

Subject: {EXTERNAL} Letter to Greg Lowe - Election Process

Mr. Lowe,

Good afternoon. I hope this finds you well. Please find attached a letter from Mayor
Manheimer and me regarding the election process for the nurses at Mission Hospital.
Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Brownie Newman

County Commission Chair

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:
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¢ MISSION

HEALTH
April 7, 2020
Mr. Brownie Newman Ms. Esther Manheimer
Buncombe County Commission Chair Mayor of Asheville

Dear Mr. Newman and Ms. Manheimer,
Thank you for your letter.

Mission Health’s foremost concern is providing the highest quality care for our community as we
confront the COVID-19 pandemic. For Mission Health that means everyone from our food and nutrition
team and environmental services colleagues to our bedside nurses and physicians have joined the fight.
Our community depends on us and we will not be distracted from this critical effort.

Like you, we strongly support our nurses’ rights under the National Labor Relations Act, particularly their
right to have a secret ballot, government supervised election to determine whether they desire union
representation or not. Ultimately, the National Labor Relations Board is responsible for determining
which Mission Health Registered Nurses share a community of interest and have a right to vote in this
election. We have been in contact with the National Labor Relations Board regarding our position on
who should vote and we understand that the Board has been in contact with the union.

We look forward to a Board-supervised secret-ballot election where all Mission Health RNs can exercise
their statutory rights. But, given the current crisis, it is not—in any way—a higher priority than fully-
focusing on protecting our community and your constituents. We hope that you agree.

Very truly yours,

Greg Lowe, President
HCA Healthcare — North Carolina Division









Sign up to receive emergency texts directly from Buncombe County for breaking
health and safety news. Text BCALERT on your smart phone to 888-777 to receive
alerts on important information such as floods, communicable disease, county office
closings, and relevant traffic safety notifications OR visit buncombeready.org
Email correspondence to and from this address may be subject to the North Carolina
Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.

This electronic communication may contain information that is confidential,
privileged, proprietary, or otherwise legally exempt from disclosure. Additionally, the
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

To: Amanda Edwards; Alfred Whitesides; Brownie W. Newman; Jasmine Beach-Ferrara
Cc: dcampbell@ashevillenc.gov; Avril Pinder; councilgroup

Subject: FW: QUICK UPDATE to RE: NOTES - WEEKLY Legislative Call for Friday May 1 2020
Date: Sunday, May 3, 2020 10:14:17 AM

Attachments: image001.png

Quick Update on Saturday May 2 2020.docx

Commissioners — | want to put something on your radar that came out of the
very short COVID 19 legislative session. (Also, please forward this to the other
three Commissioners.) Below is a summary sent to the MetroMayors giving the
key highlights of the bill. There was a bit of debate about the item | highlighted
below and that’s the distribution of the 300 million in federal aid NC is to
receive for local government. The first half (150 million) is not controversial —
set aside in a reserve fund. But the legislature decided that the second half
should be distributed only to counties with the option to distribute funds to
cities. The League of Municipalities lobbied for this money to be divided
among cities and counties. | reached out to Chuck McGrady before the bill
passed (because he’s an appropriator) and he said his colleagues trust counties
more than cites and that was the reason they decided to distribute the fund in
this matter.

Some thoughts about this:

1. Obviously the municipalities in Buncombe are taking a hit as is Buncombe,
and | would anticipate there will be an ask from the Asheville to the
County. | know you will be thoughtful in your distribution of these funds.

2. There will apparently be future allocations of additional federal funds and
therefore the possibility of seeking a different allocation method for
future funds but | am not clear how much, for what purpose or when
these funds might be made available.

3. Finally, I am not clear as to what monies flow directly from the feds to the
City and County other than FEMA and CDBG (related to COVID 19) but
obviously when distributing money, you will want to consider what other
funds each muni and the County is receiving from the feds. | think we can
pull together that information.

Thanks for all your doing, this is a strange time for local government and | have
appreciated your close collaboration with the City —and at a staff level too.
Pretty amazing.

Thanks,
Esther
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QUICK Update on the Legislative activity today:


Both chambers completed their work this afternoon – passing two COVID relief bills.  One containing mainly funding provisions (H1043) and the other policy provisions (S704).  (This was a coordinated effort, but two separate bills were used for procedural and timing reasons).  Both bills have been sent to the Governor for his consideration.


The NC House will reconvene for “regular order of business” on May 18.





Key issues for cities in the NC COVID Relief Bill



Creates a Local Government Coronavirus Relief Reserve with $300m from the federal COVID funds


· Sets aside $150m in the Reserve for local governments to replace lost revenue to be allocated IF the US CONGRESS GRANTS that flexibility (this use is not currently allowed in the federal legislation).


· Distributes $150m to 97 counties (excludes the three largest counties that received direct federal funding).  The bill states counties MAY allocate funds to municipalities in the county, as long as the expenses meet the requirements in the US Treasury guidance for COVID relief funds.


Transfers $300m to the NC DOT Highway General Maintenance Reserve for use IF the US CONGRESS GRANTS that flexibility (this use is not currently allowed in the federal legislation).


The bill did not grant authority for our restaurants to sell “to-go mixed beverages” (something requested by the NC Restaurants and Lodging Assoc – a popular idea some other states have done during this crisis). 


Grants NC DEQ the authority to waive the ban on yard waste in landfills upon request of a local government or private solid waste collection company during this crisis and until August 1.


The bill creates a legal framework for Remote Meetings during a declared emergency – and protects actions taken via simultaneous communication beginning MARCH 10 and until the effective date of the legislation.
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
<NFreeman@kilpatricktownsend.com>; Donovan, Amanda <ADonovan@kilpatricktownsend.com>;
Billips, Hampton <HBillips@kilpatricktownsend.com>

Subject: QUICK UPDATE to RE: NOTES - WEEKLY Legislative Call for Friday May 1 2020

QUICK Update on the Legislative activity today:

Both chambers completed their work this afternoon — passing two COVID relief bills. One containing
mainly funding provisions (H1043) and the other policy provisions (5704). This was a coordinated
effort, but two separate bills were used for procedural and timing reasons. Both bills have been sent
to the Governor for his consideration.

The NC House will reconvene for “regular order of business” on May 18.

Key issues for cities in the NC COVID Relief Bill

Creates a Local Government Coronavirus Relief Reserve with S300m from the federal COVID funds

e Sets aside $150m in the Reserve for local governments to replace lost revenue to be allocated
IF the US CONGRESS GRANTS that flexibility (this use is not currently allowed in the federal
legislation).

e Distributes $150m to 97 counties (excludes the three largest counties that received direct
federal funding). The bill states counties MAY allocate funds to municipalities in the county,
as long as the expenses meet the requirements in the US Treasury guidance for COVID relief
funds.

Transfers $300m to the NC DOT Highway General Maintenance Reserve for use IF the US
CONGRESS GRANTS that flexibility (this use is not currently allowed in the federal legislation).

The bill did not grant authority for our restaurants to sell “to-go mixed beverages” (something
requested by the NC Restaurants and Lodging Assoc — a popular idea some other states have done
during this crisis).
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Grants NC DEQ the authority to waive the ban on yard waste in landfills upon request of a local
government or private solid waste collection company during this crisis and until August 1.

The bill creates a legal framework for Remote Meetings during a declared emergency — and protects
actions taken via simultaneous communication beginning MARCH 10 and until the effective date of
the legislation.

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

Beau’s OPENING REMARKS: The Governor has indicated that NC is currently on track to begin
Phase 1 on May 8 Phased Re-opening/Easing of Restrictions for the state. If the specifically
identified indicators and trends continue, Governor Cooper will amend the Stay at Home Order for
Phase I to allow for a broader set of activities that are outlined in his re-opening plan.

Federal Update
e The U.S. Senate and House have been out this week. The Senate is set to return next week

and the House expects to come back the week after to take action on COVID legislation and
other issues.

e We are at a critical point for local governments as there is no funding allocated to replace
revenue in COVID aid bills so far. The U.S. House has made it a high priority and we are
hearing from Senators that they are wanting to take a look at this issue as well.

e We will have more information regarding a federal strategy in the near future. In the short
term, if you have the opportunity to talk to your federal delegation, stress the need for local
government funding and share the specifics of your budget.

Legislative Schedule UPDATE
e The NC General Assembly convened this week to take up COVID related legislation.

e The Senate rolled out its own package (S704) that passed unanimously on Wednesday. The
House had their own package (H1043) that passed almost unanimously (117-1) on Thursday.

e The House and Senate Appropriations Chairs are now negotiating a compromise.

e The plan is to have the final compromise provisions split up into two bills. Each chamber will
roll out a proposed committee substitute of the other chamber’s bill, hold a floor vote, and
then send to the other chamber for a concurrence vote.

o [egislators had originally anticipated to vote today (Friday), but they are still negotiating and
hope to reach a compromise by the end of the day with expectation of floor votes being held
Saturday. It is unclear at this point what the final language will look like.

o After passage of the COVID legislation, we anticipate the General Assembly to recess for
anywhere from 2-4 weeks. Upon their return in late May to early June they will have a more
substantive policy session before taking up the budget in July.

¢ Keep in mind when reviewing the specifics regarding the state COVID legislation below that




mailto:nancy.vaughan@greensboro-nc.gov

mailto:beau.mills@Metromayors.com

mailto:cmcdowell@kilpatricktownsend.com

mailto:NFreeman@kilpatricktownsend.com

mailto:ADonovan@kilpatricktownsend.com

mailto:HBillips@kilpatricktownsend.com

https://governor.nc.gov/news/governor-extends-stay-home-order-through-may-8-plans-three-phase-lifting-restrictions-based

https://www.ncleg.gov/Sessions/2019/Bills/Senate/PDF/S704v3.pdf

https://www.ncleg.gov/Sessions/2019/Bills/House/PDF/H1043v3.pdf



the bill is specific to dealing with federal funds from the CARES Act.

Transportation
Allocation to DOT
Both chambers have agreed to allocate $300M to DOT - from the federal COVID funds
e The Senate has not yet decided if they are going to lower the cash balance floor to $125M like
the House did which would give DOT flexibility to keep some work going
¢ Under current federal guidelines, COVID money cannot be spent on replacing lost
transportation funds. The General Assembly is setting aside this $300M in a reserve fund in
hopes that Congress will give them future flexibility.
o S704 — (Page 3, Section 2.3)
o H1043 — (Page 51, Section IVC.3, Subsection 34)

Public Safety
Nothing new to report

Economic Development
Golden Leaf Foundation Funding for Small Business
e Loan program that serves as a bridge to SBA funds. It is being served through NC Rapid
Recovery program.
¢ Speaker has indicated he is comfortable with Senate allocation.
o H1043 allocates $75M (Page 3 — Section IC.1(a))
o S704 allocates $125M (Page 10 — Section 4.2(a))

Local Revenues/Local Control
Local Government Allocation
e Congressional CARES Act has money set aside for state and local governments to respond to
the crisis, but money can only be spent on responding to the crisis. It cannot be used for
revenue replacement based on specific guidance from the U.S. Dept. of Treasury. All cities
(except Charlotte) have to go through the state to receive money. Both chambers of our
General Assembly proposals for this.
¢ Senate Bill 704 allocates $300M to local governments (Page 3 Section 2.4)
o $100M to counties
o $50M to a grant program (Grant program is for communities most impacted)
o $150M Reserve pending Congressional amendment to the CARES Act allowing
flexibility for money to be used for revenue replacement (Page 3 Section 2.4)
¢ House Bill 1043 allocates $350M to counties (counties may disperse to cities in accordance
with the CARES Act and Treasury Department Guidance)
e While it is appreciated that both proposals allow for a share money to local governments,
there is no specific set aside for municipalities.
¢ NCLM is leading an effort to take a hybrid from the two chambers in the final proposal.
Specific request from NCLM (and your ask of your legislators, if you can make contact
today):
o $300M set aside for local governments
= $75M to cities
= $75M to counties
= $150M set aside in special reserve fund that would be distributed if
Congress provides flexibility
e We expect this first COVID legislation soon — feedback to GA members is TIME
SENSITIVE.
e [t is important to keep in mind that federal legislation related to COVID will continue which
will in turn mean the state legislature will have the opportunity to provide to cities later, so
this is not our last chance at direct funding.
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It is important to continue the message that cities need to be specifically included for
assistance.

Remote Meetings
e Language was vetted by local government attorneys and NC Press Association helped to craft
this language.
e Prescriptive language allows remote meetings to continue during this and later States of
Emergency and is retroactive to actions taken beginning March 10.
o S704 — Page 47 Section 6.24
o H1043 — Page 89 Section 5.27

Gaston County Order
e Order issued yesterday by Gaston County Commission Chair encouraged businesses to re-
open.
e Mayors in Gaston County issued a statement only hours calling on citizens to abide by the
State Executive Order and would enforce that.

Mixed Beverage Provision
e The House version allows restaurants to sell two mixed drinks for each takeout order
o Must be part of a food order, must be sealed, and cannot violate any existing laws.

Beau Mills, Metro Mayors Coalition Executive Director, mobile # 919.637.0873, beau.mills@metromayors.com
Ches McDowell, Sr. Government Relations Advisor, Kilpatrick Townsend, cmcdowell@kilpatricktownsend.com

Beau Mills, Exec. Director

N.C. Metropolitan Mayors Coalition
Mobile Phone: 919.637.0873

Twitter: @MetroMayors

Www.ncmetromavors.com
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From: esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

To: Brownie W. Newman

Cc: JMatthews@ashevillenc.gov

Subject: FW: State COVID-19 Response Legislation / Message to County Membership
Date: Thursday, May 14, 2020 9:32:54 AM

Attachments: NCACC NCLM NCMMC Joint statementv4 05122020.docx

Brownie — will you agree to sign a joint statement between you and me in
support of the effort described below (and attached)?

Beau Mills, the ED for the MetroMayors has been working very hard to get the
League and NCACC on the same page regarding relief needed for local
government. So, in a rare moment here, they have agreed to issue a joint
statement. | think there was a lot of concern on the part of cities that the last
relief package was allocated solely to counties. It created some bad blood, but
| think we’re all realizing we need to lay down arms and work together if we're
going to get further relief.

Also, the city is very pleased with the county’s allocation of the relief money
received to date. The distribution was very fair. We only wish the state gave
Buncombe Co more!

Thanks

From: Beau Mills <beau.mills@Metromayors.com>

Sent: Thursday, May 14, 2020 8:07 AM

To: Esther E. Manheimer <emanheimer@vwlawfirm.com>

Cc: Esther Manheimer <esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>

Subject: RE: State COVID-19 Response Legislation / Message to County Membership

Esther — | would be totally beholden to you if you and Brownie could find a way for the two of you to
make some sort of acknowledgement of this important partnership between local governments — |
know the city and county are working together... |am also attaching the LATEST DRAFT of a JOINT
statement — | expect it will go out before Noon TODAY.

1. Make sure Brownie THANKS Kevin Leonard at NCACC for his work on this — he really showed
some leadership here — he didn’t have to do this (his organization is firmly ensconced in the
“catbirds seat” with the GA) — his email to his membership is a well-balanced tone of strength
and confidence in his organization — BUT also a CLEAR signal that counties and cities need to
work together.

2. IN the coming days - can you and Brownie make some sort of similar statement/letter to the
editor/or some other sort of way to demonstrate to Congress and our citizens and General
Assembly — echoing the sentiment here that cities and counties are working together and we
need support of the federal and state government - happy to help with it.
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NC Association of County Commissioners, NC League of Municipalities and NC Metro Mayors Call on NC Congressional Delegation for the Immediate Passage of Relief to Local Governments


May 12, 2020


Raleigh, NC – The North Carolina Association of County Commissioners (NCACC), North Carolina League of Municipalities (NCLM) and North Carolina Metropolitan Mayors Coalition (NCMMC) together call on Congress to provide significant direct and flexible financial assistance to local governments of all sizes in North Carolina.





The three organizations have combined voices to advocate for and promote the health and well-being of North Carolina’s cities, towns, villages and counties as they face the COVID-19 pandemic crisis. Direct aid in equal equal and equitable portions to both municipalities and counties is desperately needed as local governments continue to fight the ongoing pandemic and position our cities and counties to help lead the economic recovery as part of the engine that can propel our state forward after this health crisis is under control.  Congressional action is also urgently needed in light of recently enacted state legislation, which reserves earlier federal CARES Act relief dollars for local governments only if Congress approves flexibility for the previously approved federal funds.





“We urge our North Carolina congressional delegation to unite and pass dedicated and flexible direct funding for North Carolina cCountyies and cCityies local governments. We are working at the county and municipal levels as partners to provide first response and supportive services to protect public health and economic stability during this unprecedented crisis. We continue to provide critical services despite significant losses of revenue as a result of public health measures requiring a pause on most economic activity. You have voted to provide critical support funding for our business communities – both large and small businesses across the country. Now it is time to provide help and flexible assistance to our local governments.  We ask for our congressional delegation, both the US House and Senate, to work together to support proposals that provide direct and flexible funding to counties and cities that will help to keep our critical local government operations and infrastructure working for our citizens and businesses.”


Our top three priorities include:	


· Provide direct and flexible funding assistance to all counties and municipalities.


· Amend the CARES Act to allow “lost revenue” related to COVID-19 as an eligible use of Coronavirus Relief Fund dollars.  


· Rectify the provision under the Families First Coronavirus Response Act, which excluded government employers from the paid leave tax credits. 





ABOUT


The North Carolina Association of County Commissioners (NCACC) is the official voice of all 100 counties on issues considered by the General Assembly, Congress and federal and state agencies. The Association provides expertise to counties in the areas of advocacy, research, risk management and education and leadership training.


The North Carolina League of Municipalities is a member-driven organization representing the interests of cities and towns in the state. Through their collective efforts, League member cities and towns better serve their residents and improve quality of life. For more than 100 years, the League has been one voice for cities and towns working for a better North Carolina.


The North Carolina Metropolitan Mayors Coalition, founded in 2001, is comprised of the mayors of the state's larger cities, with nearly 4 million residents and the centers of economic growth in NC.  The Coalition is a non-partisan, mayor-driven organization that focuses on issues of special interest to our larger cities and metro regions in a fast-growing and urbanizing state. 
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We continue to 
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despite significant losses of revenue as a result of public health mea




sures requiring a pause 




on most economic activity. 




You have voted to provide critical support funding for our business 




communitie
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both large and small businesses across the country. 




Now it is time to provide help 




and 




flexible 




assistance to our local gov




ernments.  




We ask 




for our congressional delegation, both 




the US House and Senate, 




to work together to support proposals that 




provide direct and flexible 




funding 




to counties and cities 




that will help to keep our critical




 




local government 




operations and 
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Our top three priorities include




:




 




 




·




 




Provide direct 
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funding assistance to all counties and municipalities.
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Amend the CARES Act to allow “lost revenue” related to 
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19 as an eligible 




use of Coronavirus Relief Fund dollars
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From: Esther E. Manheimer <emanheimer@vwlawfirm.com>

Sent: Thursday, May 14, 2020 7:53 AM

To: Beau Mills <beau.mills@Metromayors.com>

Cc: nancy.vaughan@greensboro-nc.gov; Esther Manheimer <esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>
Subject: Re: State COVID-19 Response Legislation / Message to County Membership

Beau- you are killing it, thank you for bringing these groups together (apparently it only takes a
pandemic).

On May 13, 2020, at 10:41 PM, Beau Mills <beau.mills@metromayors.com> wrote:

Nancy and Esther:

This email below is a — in context — very helpful —and a really important moment in the
local government world in NC. Tomorrow we will have a JOINT statement with NCLM
and NC Assoc of County Commissioners calling on our delegation to support our local
governments in NC. These two first steps in building a COALITION represent A LOT of
work on my part —and some strong determination on the part of the NC Assoc County
Commissioners Director- | have a huge amount of respect for Kevin.

| think it will position us to do some pretty potent lobbying TOGETHER with our
counties — with our Federal Delegation and perhaps — just maybe — at some point with
our state legislature.

Esther - | hear your words that you shared from McGrady — working hard to overcome
that!

From: Kevin Leonard <kevin.leonard@ncacc.org>

Sent: Wednesday, May 13, 2020 8:35 PM

To: Paul Meyer (pmeyer@nclm.org) <pmeyer@nclm.org>; Rose Williams
<rwilliams@NCLM.ORG>; Beau Mills <beau.mills@Metromayors.com>

Cc: Amy Bason <amy.bason@ncacc.org>

Subject: FW: State COVID-19 Response Legislation / Message to County Membership

Rose, Paul, and Beau —

Below is a message went sent to all County Commissioners
and County Managers earlier this evening. | hope this sets us
up well for our joint message tomorrow and it is received in the
spirit in which it is intended, to strengthen collaborative
relationships with our members.
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Please feel free to share with your Boards and members.
Kevin

From: Kevin Leonard <kevin.leonard@ncacc.org>
Sent: Wednesday, May 13, 2020 6:15 PM

To: Commissioners <Commissioners@ncacc.org>; County Managers

<CountyManagers@ncacc.org>
Cc: Kevin Leonard <kevin.leonard@ncacc.org>; kaustin@yadkincountync.gov

Subject: State COVID-19 Response Legislation / Message to County Membership
Dear County Commissioners and County Managers:

We are writing to address an important issue that involves
relationships with our municipal partners and our advocacy efforts
to secure more direct assistance for counties.

As part of the legislation the NC General Assembly passed on May 2,
legislative leaders gave counties the authority to control and
disperse to cities and local partners the local government portion of
COVID-19 response funding. We advocated for that discretion, and
believe the Assembly made the right decision, primarily because
county governments shoulder a greater amount of public health,
human services and other first response efforts than our municipal
partners. Counties provide these services to every resident within
each county, including all who live within a municipal jurisdiction.
Moreover, from a financial control and auditing stance, North
Carolina’s 100 counties operate as an arm of the state government,
and administer financial controls and required reporting.

Since passage of the bill, we understand there may be a perception
among some of our municipal partners that counties will
intentionally withhold funds from municipalities. That is not the
position held by the NCACC and we know counties are working hard
to determine how to best share these funds in an equitable manner.
We are aware that an intent of the Assembly was to provide
recovery funds to local governments and other authorized non-profit
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organizations for eligible COVID related expenses. We encourage
counties to work together with their municipal and local partners,
just as municipalities need to work with county and local partners to
seek agreeable interlocal funding agreements, as we know many are
already doing. We recognize that without guidance this is
challenging. We are working hard to gain clearer guidance from
OSBM to assist with these conversations and we will share examples
of agreements when they are available.

We are increasingly concerned that this divisive rhetoric will
undermine local recovery and harm relations between our counties
and cities. Itis also important to keep perspective about this current
funding source. The funding is relatively small in comparison to the
need and it is presently highly restricted. This is a time when local
governments should be rallying together as we respond and recover
from the COVID-19 crisis, especially as we seek additional resources
and flexibility from the US Congress. The coming weeks will require
our combined voice and combined advocacy efforts to request that
our federal and state partners send counties and cities much needed
funding and flexibility for the funds already approved. We must
work together to achieve this goal.

As we navigate these uncharted waters, we encourage our county
leaders that now is a time for us to recommit to collaboration, seek
those commonalities that make us stronger and unify us. This is hard
work, but it is the work of county leaders. Moreover, we know it is
the spirit that has long lived in the heart and culture of our
Association.

Sincerely,
Kevin Austin, NCACC President
Kevin Leonard, NCACC Executive Director

<image001.jpg> N.C. Association of County Commissioners
Phone (919) 715-4369 | Fax (919) 733-1065

WWW.NCacc.org

<image002.png> <image003.png> <image004.png> <image005.png>



https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/PwoPCrkMDVHZn9Mh7sFKU/

https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/PwoPCrkMDVHZn9Mh7sFKU/

https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/-3kYCwpRL7cxVp6T9yc4W

https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/nR6iCxk7MLHvRO8hw2JZs

https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/cyK2CyPJN2To2nDHN8G0v

https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/wT61CzpxOYcqwLDSw5DBB



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
Date: Saturday, May 16, 2020 4:24:44 PM

Attachments: NCACC NCLM NCMMC Joint statementv4 05122020.docx

Brownie — can’t remember if | already sent this to you too — goes with the
other email | just sent you.

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

Esther — 1 would be totally beholden to you if you and Brownie could find a way for the two of you to
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
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The North 




Carolina Association of County Commissioners (NCACC), North 




Carolina League of Municipalities (NCLM) and North Carolina Metropolitan Mayors Coalition 




(NCMMC) together call on Congress to provide significant direct and flexible financial assistance 




to local
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after this health crisis is under control




.
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first response and supportive
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
and cities. It is also important to keep perspective about this current
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

Subject: FW: WHAT ARE OUR LOVED ONES IN JAIL TO DO DURING COVID 19???
Date: Thursday, April 9, 2020 9:13:08 AM

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

My name is kasey webb i am a resident of buncombe county. | must say | am very impressed with
how quickly buncombe county took action on covid 19....EXCEPT Let. Alexander over our jail. My
fiancee was incarcerated Jan 27 and was placed in a room were feces and blood were smeared
everywhere. | called the let. He insured me this wasn't the case... | called the health dept and
spoke with them as well. | informed the of covid 19 at that time they should have took action
then. This room is in booking and many inmates ive spoken with assured me it's still going on. This
is an outrage. They are exposing PEOPLE to this. Also how are they handling quarantine at this
time. | have loved ones | depend on coming home. His name is Douglas dewberry Jr. He's not
getting released on pre trail but qualified please send him home. Please help this stop and non

Esther Manheimer

Mayor, City of Asheville

P.O. Box 7148

Asheville, NC 28802

Cell 828.231.8016
esthermanheimer@avicouncil.com

Brad R. Branham
City Attorney

C

ity of Asheville

P.O. Box 7148
Asheville, NC 28802
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From: Esther Manheimer

To: Amanda Edwards; Brownie W. Newman; Jasmine Beach-Ferrara
Subject: Fwd: Announcement of Sciteck"s expansion of Covid-19 testing
Date: Saturday, April 18, 2020 7:41:35 AM

Attachments: WHO antibody point-of-care article 040920.pdf

FDA - SCITECK listing - FAQs on Diagnostic Testing for SARS-CoV-2  FDA.....pdf

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Chris Stanton BS CS <chrisstanton(@sciteck.org>

Date: Fri, Apr 17, 2020 at 6:38 PM

Subject: Announcement of Sciteck's expansion of Covid-19 testing

To: Jennifer L. Mullendore <Jennifer.Mullendore@buncombecounty.org>

CC: <mwicker@citizentimes.com>, <news@wlos.com>,
<esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>, <gwenwisler@avlcouncil.com>,
<kerstinlanier@sciteck.org>, <Edwardsla@ncleg.net>

Good Afternoon Dr. Mullendore,

Thank you and your staff for assisting the people of Buncombe County during this hard time. I
wanted to inform you that we are expanding our SARS-CoV-2 (COVID-19) testing
capabilities (see attached FDA authorization), that I discussed with county health officials by
phone and email the other day, to enable Sciteck to perform antibody testing for IgM and IgG
antibodies specific to COVID-19.

We will not be using the rapid test kits that are currently being used at drive by collection sites
for COVID-19 antibodies and other care facilities. Please note and as stated by the WHO (see
attached) the lateral flow assay kits should be for R&D purposes only. As referenced by the
WHO and discovered during our research the assay(s) performance are suspect (essentially
they do not work) and should only be used for R&D as the WHO suggest.

If theses POC devices have been authorized by Buncombe County for use it would be
unfortunate as these POC devices do not meet the CLIA standard for testing. As stated, we
have tested these kits numerous times including from a known individual whom had recovered
from COVID-19 and none of the POC devices work successfully. And all of the devices used
were from FDA EUA cleared COVID-19 antibody POC kits. We will instead will be using
ELISA technology to test for the Covid-19 antibodies, which has significantly more sensitivity
and specificity and we should have the testing available by Friday of next week once the
validations are complete.

I also saw from your previous email that you were curious about our supply chain. Sciteck



mailto:esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

mailto:Amanda.Edwards@buncombecounty.org

mailto:Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org

mailto:jbeachferrara@gmail.com

mailto:chrisstanton@sciteck.org

mailto:Jennifer.Mullendore@buncombecounty.org

mailto:mwicker@citizentimes.com

mailto:news@wlos.com

mailto:esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com

mailto:gwenwisler@avlcouncil.com

mailto:kerstinlanier@sciteck.org

mailto:Edwardsla@ncleg.net



Advice on the use of point-of-care
Immunodiagnostic tests for COVID-19

Scientific Brief

8 April 2020

In response to the growing COVID-19 pandemic and shortages of laboratory-based molecular testing capacity and reagents, multiple
diagnostic test manufacturers have developed and begun selling rapid and easy-to-use devices to facilitate testing outside of laboratory
settings. These simple test kits are based either on detection of proteins from the COVID-19 virus in respiratory samples (e.g. sputum, throat
swab) or detection, in blood or serum, of human antibodies generated in response to infection.

WHO applauds the efforts of test developers to innovate and respond to the needs of the population.

However, before these tests can be recommended, they must be validated in the appropriate populations and settings. Inadequate tests may
miss patients with active infection or falsely categorize patients as having the disease when they do not, further hampering disease control
efforts. At present, based on current evidence, WHO recommends the use of these new point-of-care immunodiagnostic tests only
in research settings. They should not be used in any other setting, including for clinical decision-making, until evidence
supporting use for specific indications is available.

WHO continues to evaluate available immunodiagnostics tests for COVID-19 and will update this scientific brief when necessary.
Rapid diagnostic tests based on antigen detection

One type of rapid diagnostic test (RDT) detects the presence of viral proteins (antigens) expressed by the COVID-19 virus in a sample from
the respiratory tract of a person. If the target antigen is present in sufficient concentrations in the sample, it will bind to specific antibodies
fixed to a paper strip enclosed in a plastic casing and generate a visually detectable signal, typically within 30 minutes. The antigen(s)
detected are expressed only when the virus is actively replicating; therefore, such tests are best used to identify acute or early infection.

How well the tests work depends on several factors, including the time from onset of iliness, the concentration of virus in the specimen, the
quality of the specimen collected from a person and how it is processed, and the precise formulation of the reagents in the test kits. Based on
experience with antigen-based RDTs for other respiratory diseases such as influenza, in which affected patients have comparable
concentrations of influenza virus in respiratory samples as seen in COVID-19, the sensitivity of these tests might be expected to vary from
34% to 80%."

Based on this information, half or more of COVID-19 infected patients might be missed by such tests, depending on the group of patients
tested. These assumptions urgently require further study to understand whether they are accurate. Additionally, false-positive results — that
is, a test showing that a person is infected when they are not — could occur if the antibodies on the test strip also recognize antigens of
viruses other than COVID-19, such as from human coronaviruses that cause the common cold. If any of the antigen detection tests that are
under development or commercialized demonstrate adequate performance, they could potentially be used as triage tests to rapidly identify
patients who are very likely to have COVID-19, reducing or eliminating the need for expensive molecular confirmatory testing.

With the limited data now available, WHO does not currently recommend the use of antigen-detecting rapid diagnostic tests for
patient care, although research into their performance and potential diagnostic utility is highly encouraged.

Rapid diagnostic tests based on host antibody detection

There is another, more common type of rapid diagnostic test marketed for COVID-19; a test that detects the presence of antibodies in the
blood of people believed to have been infected with COVID-19.%® Antibodies are produced over days to weeks after infection with the virus.
The strength of antibody response depends on several factors, including age, nutritional status, severity of disease, and certain medications







or infections like HIV that suppress the immune system.®® In some people with COVID-19, disease confirmed by molecular testing (e.g.
reverse transcription polymerase chain reaction: RT-PCR), weak, late or absent antibody responses have been reported.®”? Studies suggest
that the majority of patients develop antibody response only in the second week after onset of symptoms.>®7*% This means that a
diagnosis of COVID-19 infection based on antibody response will often only be possible in the recovery phase, when many of the
opportunities for clinical intervention or interruption of disease transmission have already passed. Antibody detection tests targeting COVID-

19 may also cross-react with other pathogens, including other human coronaviruses.”*>*® and give false-positive results. Lastly, there has

been discussion about whether RDTs detecting antibodies could predict whether an individual was immune to reinfection with the COVID-19
virus. There is no evidence to date to support this.

Tests to detect antibody responses to COVID-19 in the population will be critical to support the development of vaccines, and to add to our
understanding of the extent of infection among people who are not identified through active case finding and surveillance efforts, the attack
rate in the population, and the infection fatality rate. For clinical diagnosis, however, such tests have limited utility because they cannot
quickly diagnose acute infection to inform actions needed to determine the course of treatment. Some clinicians have used these tests for
antibody responses to make a presumptive diagnosis of recent COVID-19 disease in cases where molecular testing was negative but where
there was a strong epidemiological link to COVID-19 infection and paired blood samples (acute and convalescent) showing rising antibody
levels.

Based on current data, WHO does not recommend the use of antibody-detecting rapid diagnostic tests for patient care but
encourages the continuation of work to establish their usefulness in disease surveillance and epidemiologic research.

Next steps

(] Molecular (e.g. PCR) testing of respiratory tract samples is the recommended method for the identification and laboratory
confirmation of COVID-19 cases. COVID-19 molecular diagnostic products are being evaluated for quality and safety through
the WHO Prequalification Emergency Use Listing Procedures and through a collaboration with the Foundation for Innovative New
Diagnostics (FIND). WHO guidance documents for detection of COVID-19 have been published: WHO Guidance on Laboratory
testing for COVID-19 in suspected human cases. In addition, guidance on how testing might be rationalized when lack of reagents
or testing capacity necessitates prioritization of certain populations or individuals for testing is also available.

®  To inform WHO policy on the use of immunodiagnostic rapid tests for COVID-19, WHO is working with our global laboratory expert
network, and closely reviewing the results of laboratory and clinical studies planned and implemented by reference laboratories,
academic groups and non-governmental organizations.

Target product profiles for desired COVID-19 diagnostics to inform research and development efforts are in development.

WHO will continue to work with research groups, other agencies, and Member States to develop and interpret data that might
indicate specific areas where such tests can be useful for clinical management of cases, epidemiologic understanding, and/or
infection control.
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FAQs on Diagnostic Testing for SARS-CoV-2

Industry Hotline: Coronavirus COVID-19 Diagnostic Tests
and Shortages

* For Industry Questions: COVID-19 Diagnostic Tests, and COVID-19 device shortages, including all
Personal Protective Equipment for masks and respirators

* Contact our toll-free line 24 hours a day: 1-888-INFO-FDA =, choose option *
Or Email:

 Shortages: deviceshortages@fda.hhs.gov (mailto:deviceshortages@fda.hhs.gov)
* Diagnostic Tests: COVID19DX@FDA.HHS.GOV (mailto:COVID19DX@FDA.HHS.GOV)

COVID-19 Resources

» FDA's Role: Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) Frequently Asked Questions (/emergency-
preparedness-and-response/coronavirus-disease-2019-covid-19/coronavirus-disease-2019-covid-
19-frequently-asked-questions)

 Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) Emergency Use Authorization (EUA) Information (/medical-
devices/emergency-situations-medical-devices/emergency-use-authorizations)

 Coronavirus Disease (COVID-2019) updates from FDA (https://www.fda.gov/emergency-
preparedness-and-response/mcm-legal-requlatory-and-policy-framework/emergency-use-
authorization#2019-ncov)

Reporting Problems to the FDA

The sale of fraudulent COVID-19 products is a threat to the public health. Consumers and health care
professionals can help by reporting suspected fraud to the FDA's Health Fraud Program (/safety/report-
problem-fda/reporting-unlawful-sales-medical-products-internet) or the Office of Criminal Investigations
(https://www.accessdata.fda.gov/scripts/email/oc/oci/contact.cfm). You can also email FDA-COVID-
19-Fraudulent-Products@fda.hhs.gov (mailto:FDA-COVID-19-Fraudulent-Products@fda.hhs.gov).

https://www.fda.gov/medical-devices/emergency-situations-medical-devices/fags-diagnostic-testing-sars-cov-2
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If you think you had a problem with your diagnostic test, the FDA encourages you to report the problem
through the MedWatch Voluntary Reporting Form
(https://www.accessdata.fda.gov/scripts/medwatch/index.cfm?action=reporting.home).

Health care personnel employed by facilities that are subject to the FDA's user facility reporting
requirements should follow the reporting procedures established by their facilities.

This page provides answers to frequently asked questions relating to the development and
performance of diagnostic tests for SARS-CoV-2.

The page includes questions and answers regarding the new policy outlined in the Immediately
in Effect Guidance for Clinical Laboratories, Commercial Manufacturers, and Food and Drug
Administration Staff: Policy for Diagnostic Tests for Coronavirus Disease-2019 during the
Public Health Emergency (/regulatory-information/search-fda-guidance-documents/policy-
diagnostic-tests-coronavirus-disease-2019-during-public-health-emergency), originally
introduced as Immediately in Effect Guidance for Clinical Laboratories and Food and Drug
Administration Staff: Policy for Diagnostic Tests in Laboratories Certified to Perform High
Complexity Testing under CLIA prior to Emergency Use Authorization for Coronavirus
Disease-2019 during the Public Health Emergency on February 29th, 2020 and updated on
March 16, 2020. On this page, this guidance is referred to as the Policy for Diagnostic Tests for
Coronavirus Disease-2019.

Note: Throughout this page and the Policy for Diagnostic Tests for Coronavirus Disease-2019
(/regulatory-information/search-fda-guidance-documents/policy-diagnostic-tests-coronavirus-
disease-2019-during-public-health-emergency), references to laboratories that are "certified to
perform high complexity testing under CLIA" are referring to CLIA certified laboratories that
meet the regulatory requirements to perform high-complexity testing.

Get Updates: In Vitro Diagnostics

The FDA intends to update this page regularly. Sign up for email alerts.

Email Address Subscribe

On this page:
e What Laboratories and Manufacturers are Offering Tests for COVID-19?
¢ General FAQs
e What If I Do Not Have...?

https://www.fda.gov/medical-devices/emergency-situations-medical-devices/fags-diagnostic-testing-sars-cov-2 2/39
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¢ C(linical Laboratory FAQs
e Test Kit Manufacturer FAQs
¢ Serology/Antibody Test FAQs

What Laboratories and Manufacturers are Offering Tests for
COVID-19?

Q: Are there any tests that | can purchase to test myself at home for COVID-19?

A: At this time, the FDA has not authorized any COVID-19 test for at-home testing,
including self-collection of a specimen with or without the use of telemedicine. The FDA
sees the public health value in expanding the availability of COVID-19 testing through safe
and accurate tests that may include home collection, and we are actively working with test
developers in this space. In the other FAQs on this page (https://www.fda.gov/medical-
devices/emergency-situations-medical-devices/fags-diagnostic-testing-sars-cov-
2#offeringtests)you can find listings of tests that have received an EUA authorization as
well as labs and manufacturers that have notified FDA as set forth in the FDA's Policy for
Diagnostic Tests for Coronavirus Disease-2019 (https://www.fda.gov/regulatory-
information/search-fda-guidance-documents/policy-diagnostic-tests-coronavirus-disease-
2019-during-public-health-emergency#_ blank).

Q: What tests for COVID-19 have received Emergency Use Authorization?

A: All in vitro diagnostic tests that have received an Emergency Use Authorization (EUA)
are listed on the EUA page (https://www.fda.gov/medical-devices/emergency-situations-
medical-devices/emergency-use-authorizations#covid19ivd).

Q: What laboratories are offering testing under the policy outlined in Section IV.A of the
Policy for Diagnostic Tests for Coronavirus Disease-2019? (Updated 4/17)

A: As stated in Section IV.A of the FDA's Policy for Diagnostic Tests for Coronavirus
Disease-2019 (/regulatory-information/search-fda-guidance-documents/policy-diagnostic-
tests-coronavirus-disease-2019-during-public-health-emergency), for laboratories certified
under CLIA to perform high-complexity testing, the FDA does not intend to object to the
use of validated tests for specimen testing for a reasonable period of time after validation

https://www.fda.gov/medical-devices/emergency-situations-medical-devices/fags-diagnostic-testing-sars-cov-2 3/39
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while the laboratory is preparing an EUA request. As noted in the guidance, FDA believes 15
business days is a reasonable period of time to prepare an EUA submission for a test that
has already been validated.

Many commercial and healthcare system/academic laboratories have notified the FDA that
they have validated their own COVID-19 test and have started patient testing as set forth in
Section IV.A of the FDA's Policy for Diagnostic Tests for Coronavirus Disease-2019
(/regulatory-information/search-fda-guidance-documents/policy-diagnostic-tests-
coronavirus-disease-2019-during-public-health-emergency). The laboratories listed below
have agreed to be identified on the FDA's website. The FDA has not yet reviewed the
laboratory's validation of tests offered under this policy or issued EUAs for these
laboratories' tests and is including this list here to provide transparency regarding the
notifications submitted to FDA.

¢ Access Genetics, dba OralDNA Labs

e Accu Reference Medical Lab LLC

e Acutis Diagnostics

e Advanced Diagnostics Laboratory, National Jewish Health

e AdventHealth

e Aegis Sciences Corporation

e Alphadera Labs, LLC

e Altru Diagnostic, Inc.

e American Esoteric Laboratories

e ARUP Laboratories

e Assurance Scientific

¢ Avellino Lab USA, Inc.

e Bako Pathology Associates/DBA Bako Diagnostics

e Baptist Hospital of Miami Clinical Lab

e Baylor College of Medicine

e Baylor Scott and White Medical Center - Temple

e Baylor University Medical Center Department of Pathology

e Baystate Medical Center Whitney Ave Laboratories

¢ Bedford Research Foundation

¢ Beth Israel Deaconess Medical Center

https://www.fda.gov/medical-devices/emergency-situations-medical-devices/fags-diagnostic-testing-sars-cov-2
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Biodesix, Inc.

BioReference Laboratories

Boston Children's Hospital Infectious Diseases Diagnostics Laboratory

Brigham and Women's Hospital

Bryan Medical Center West

The Children's Hospital of Philadelphia
Children's National Hospital

Clarity Lab Solutions

Cleveland Clinic

Clinical Laboratories of Hawaii

Clinical Laboratory University Hospital at University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences

Clinical Pathology Laboratories

Clinical Research Sequencing Platform, LLC at the Broad Institute of MIT & Harvard

Compass Laboratory Services, LLC
Consolidated Medical Bio-Analysis, Inc.

CSI Laboratories

Devansh Lab Werks Inc.

Diagnostic Solutions Laboratory LLC
Diatherix Eurofins

Dynamic DNA Laboratories, LLC

Eli Lilly Clinical Diagnostics Laboratory
Emory Medical Laboratory, Emory Healthcare
Exact Sciences Laboratories

Gene By Gene

Genesys Diagnostics Inc.

The George Washington University Hospital Laboratory
Gravity Diagnostics

Henry Ford Health System

HMH Hackensack University Medical Center

Hospital of the University of Pennsylvania

https://www.fda.gov/medical-devices/emergency-situations-medical-devices/fags-diagnostic-testing-sars-cov-2
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Houston Methodist Hospital

iGenomeDx

Integrity Laboratories

Ipsum Diagnostics LLC

ISPM Labs, LLC DBA Capstone Healthcare

Johns Hopkins Medical Microbiology Laboratory at Johns Hopkins Hospital
Korva-Labs Inc.

Lab Genomics LLC

Lehigh Valley Genomics

Lexar Laboratories & Analysis, LLC

MAWD Pathology Group

Mayo Clinic

Medical Diagnostic Laboratories LLC

Memorial Sloan Kettering Cancer Center

Molecular Diagnostics, Christiana Care Health Systems

Montefiore Medical Center

Nebraska Medicine Clinical Laboratory

New York Presbyterian Hospital - Weill Cornell Medicine (NYPH-WCM)
Next Bio-Research Services LL.C

NIPD Genetics Public Company Limited

North Central Florida Neurodiagnostic Services DBA: NCF Diagnostics & DNA
Technologies

NxGen MDx

NYU Langone Medical Center

OmniPathology Solutions Medical Corporation

Opteo Laboratory, LLC

Orig3n, Inc.

Orlando Health

Oxy-Gen Laboratory, LLC

Patriot Medical Laboratories LLC DBA CIAN Diagnostics

Poplar Healthcare

https://www.fda.gov/medical-devices/emergency-situations-medical-devices/fags-diagnostic-testing-sars-cov-2
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Primex Clinical Laboratories, Inc.

Proteus Molecular and Clinical Lab LLC

PTC Laboratories, Inc.

Quest Diagnostics Infectious Disease, Inc.

RCA Laboratory Services LLC DBA GENETWORx
Real Diagnostics Laboratory

Saint Mary's Medical Center

Sandia National Laboratories

Sciteck Clinical Laboratory

Sharp Copley Laboratory

Specialty Drug Testing

Solaris Diagnostics

Sonic Reference Laboratory

Southwest Regional PCR Laboratory dba MicroGen DX
Specialty Diagnostics Inc

Stanford Health Care Clinical Laboratory

Tampa General Hospital

Texas Children's Hospital Department of Pathology
TGen North, Clinical Laboratory

UCSF-Health

UltimateDx Laboratories

University of California Berkeley Innovative Genomics Institute

University of North Carolina Medical Center McLendon Clinical Laboratories

University of Minnesota Genomics Center
University of Washington

Viracor Eurofins Clinical Diagnostics
WestPac Labs

Wisconsin Diagnostic Laboratories
Xymbio, LLC

Yale Pathology Molecular Diagnostic Laboratory
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Clinical Laboratory has been a Nationally Accredited Clinical Reference laboratory since
2001. Our lab prior to the pandemic was capable of large scale Molecular Diagnostic testing in
our state of the art PCR lab for respiratory infections, UTI’s, and other pathogenic infections.
Due to this, we already have supplies for our in-house assays for up to 12,000 samples per
assay run which takes about 1.5 hours. As we had already ordered bulk amounts of items that
are needed to do PCR testing, we do not have a shortage on any equipment. Unlike most
Nationally Accredited Clinical Reference Labs, Sciteck Clinical has a sister company at its
main facility that is an FDA registered facility that manufactures over 100 FDA cleared
devices from design to clearance that are distributed worldwide. So many of the reagents that
are used for PCR analysis are manufactured right here at our facility. With that said, we are
not at this time experiencing any supply chain issues with raw chemicals, nor do we expect
any, as we are the supply chain. We understand that the other labs that are not in this area but
may be around regionally, like QUEST and LAB CORP, do not manufacture their own kits or
reagents and are in fact over extended because they are completely reliant on their supply
chain. In fact, it has been reported that just between QUEST and LAB CORP they have over
500,000 samples waiting for testing and the time frame are 3 to 4 from weeks to receive
results — these samples might as well just be sent to the State lab. Though according to staff at
the state level, due to antiquated instruments they are struggling with only 200 samples a day
and have had to establish 24-hour workdays with staggered lab personnel.

Sciteck has been very successful in getting Clemson University, UT Austin, Icahn Mt. Sinai
School of Med and the University of Illinois to assist us in developing an Immunoassay assay
that will solve the problems of the POC devices that do not work as stated by the WHO - with
the help and support of the Science community and the Universities mentioned, Sciteck is
developing a methodology that will allow the testing of hundreds of thousands of samples per
hour with the specificity and precision for true clinical analysis.

People are dying during this pandemic and time is of the essence. Delaying a test for weeks at
a time when it could be done within days is unacceptable. There are reports of people dying
and the test results are coming in 3 weeks later. Let us team together and not send out
erroneous reports to the local media or public that adequate testing is not readily available,
alarming them unnecessarily in this trying time.

Thank you for your time and stay safe,
Chris Stanton BS CS

Certifying Scientist

TEKC

Perfect Outcomes





SCITECK.ORG

PO Box 746

Arden, NC 28704

Phone: 800-749-4537 / 800-905-4272
Direct: (828)-650-0407 ext:1007

Fax: (828)-650-2735

The information contained in this e-mail message is intended only for the personal and confidential use of
the recipient(s) named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this document in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution, or
copying of this message is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please
notify us immediately by e-mail, and delete the original message.

Esther Manheimer
Mayor, City of Asheville
P.O. Box 7148
Asheville, NC 28802
Cell 828.231.8016

esthermanheimer@avicouncil.com



http://sciteck.org/
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From: Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org

To: Esther Manheimer

Subject: Fwd: BE SAFE STAY HOME 4-8 v4.docx
Date: Wednesday, April 8, 2020 9:25:42 AM
Attachments: ATT00001.htm

BE SAFE STAY HOME 4-8 v4.docx
ATT00002.htm

Esther,

Please keep confidential until this afternoon. Here is the updated order. The staff are working
on an associated document that will go into some more details around this. I’ll forward it over
once I get it later this morning.

At the 4 PM media advisory, I believe I am going to speak first, then you will speak and then
we will turn it over to Fletch Tove to explain the policy in detail.

Brownie
Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

From: Avril Pinder <Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org>

Date: April 7, 2020 at 3:14:15 PM EDT

To: Alfred Whitesides <Alfred. Whitesides@buncombecounty.org>, Amanda
Edwards <Amanda.Edwards@buncombecounty.org>, Anthony Penland
<Anthony.Penland@buncombecounty.org>, "Brownie W. Newman"
<Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>, Jasmine Beach-Ferrara
<Jasmine.Beach-Ferrara@buncombecounty.org>, Joe Belcher
<Joe.Belcher@buncombecounty.org>, Robert Pressley
<Robert.Pressley@buncombecounty.org>

Cec: Sybil Tate <Sybil.Tate@buncombecounty.org>, Dakisha Wesley
<Dakisha.Wesley@buncombecounty.org>, Lamar Joyner
<Lamar.Joyner@buncombecounty.org>

Subject: BE SAFE STAY HOME 4-8 v4.docx

Commissioners, here is a draft of the Stay Home; Stay Safe extension order. As you
know we will share this with the community tomorrow at the 4:00 pm community
update.

We will finalize the interpretation document and circulate that as well.

Please let us know if you have any questions.

Thanks,
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STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA


COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE





SUPERSEDING DECLARATION OF A


LOCAL STATE OF EMERGENCY





April 8, 2020





STAY HOME- STAY SAFE





WHEREAS, beginning in December 2019, a novel coronavirus, now designated SARS-CoV2 which causes the disease COVID-19, has spread through the world and has now been declared a global pandemic by the World Health Organization;





WHEREAS, a State of Emergency was declared by the Governor of North Carolina on March 10, 2020;





WHEREAS, a local State of Emergency was declared by Buncombe County Commissioners on March 12, 2020, a supplemental declaration was issued on March 19, 2020 to limit local public gatherings and the operations of specified businesses;





WHEREAS, an additional local supplemental declaration to the Local State of Emergency was issued on March 25, 2020 that established the Stay Home – Stay Safe order that went into effect on 8:00 p.m. March 26, 2020 and is effective until 6:00am on April 9, 2020;





WHEREAS, recognizing the need to mitigate community spread of COVID-19, Governor Roy Cooper issued Executive Order 121 ("EO121") dated March 27, 2020 to limit unnecessary person-to-person contact in workplaces and the community for 30 days beginning March 30, 2020;





WHEREAS, credible models and statistical forecasts show that the number of cases of COVID-19 and their associated burden will continue to increase in Buncombe County; and





WHEREAS, to mitigate community spread of COVID-19 it is necessary to continue restrictions which promote social distancing to reduce the burden on healthcare providers and facilities.





NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to the authority contained in Chapter 21, Buncombe County Code of Ordinances and Article 1A of the N.C. Gen. Stat. Chapter 166A, the Board of Commissioners, do hereby declare and order the following:





1. The Stay Home – Stay Safe Order that went into effect at 8:00 p.m. on Thursday, March 26, 2020 will continue, as written, through 6:00 a.m. on Thursday, April 9, 2020.





2. Except as otherwise set forth herein, Buncombe County hereby adopts Sections 1, 2, and 3 of EO121 effective at 6:00 a.m. on Thursday, April 9, 2020. A copy of these Sections are attached hereto in Attachment "A."





3. Section 4, Local Orders, of EO121 states, in part, that nothing therein "is intended to limit or prohibit counties and cities in North Carolina from enacting ordinances and issuing state of emergency declarations which impose greater restrictions or prohibitions to the extent authorized under North Carolina law."  Accordingly, further restrictions are imposed in Buncombe County as follows:





a. EO121 Section 2.C.1. Businesses that meet Social Distancing Requirements





i. This clause does NOT apply to Buncombe County.  Only those businesses and organizations specifically defined as essential in clauses 2.C.2 through 2.C.30 of EO121 may continue as essential businesses in Buncombe County.





b. EO121 Section 2.C.28. Hotels and motels





i. Hotels and motels, short-term rentals less than 30 days, homestays and campgrounds are instructed to cancel currently scheduled leisure travel reservations and refrain from scheduling future leisure travel reservations for so long as EO121 and any updates thereto, and/or extensions thereof, remain in effect. Current guests who have already checked in, and guests who are Buncombe County residents are permitted to stay.  Any employees who work for businesses or organizations defined as essential may stay in any lodging. To comply with this order, operators must document the Essential business occupation of any new residents making reservations from outside the county. 





c. EO121 Section 3. Mass Gatherings





i. There shall be no mass gatherings in Buncombe County for so long as EO121 and any updates thereto, and/or extensions thereof, remain in effect.  All public or private gatherings of any number of people are prohibited.  This does not include any gatherings defined as essential in EO121. Nothing in this order prohibits the gathering of members of a single household or living unit.





ii. Weddings and funerals are permitted, but may include no more than ten (10) persons, including staff and clergy, while observing social distancing requirements to the greatest extent practicable.





4. The following measures will be effective in Buncombe County in addition to those contained in EO121.





a. All visitors travelling to Buncombe County from outside the state of North Carolina, upon arrival, must quarantine at their place of residence for 14 days before entering the community. This does not include visitors travelling to Buncombe County for purposes defined as essential in EO121.





b. Any manufacturer who retools so that a substantial part of their business is for the purpose of manufacturing and producing ventilators, personal protective equipment (PPE), or another good supporting medical response (e.g. sanitizer, disinfectant) is considered an essential business under this order.





c. All essential grocery and retail operations are expected to implement social distancing measures to the greatest extent possible.  This may include, but is not limited to:





i. Limiting the number of patrons allowed inside at any time


ii. Marking 6 foot intervals for checkout lanes and service desks


iii. Modifying layouts to allow for 6 feet of social distancing


iv. Implementing single-direction shopping lanes


v. Sanitizing with increased frequency


vi. Screening employees for illness and symptoms of COVID-19 (fever or dry cough) as they report to work


vii. Requiring any employees who are sick or have symptoms of COVID-19, to include fever or dry cough, to stay home


viii. Posting signage with social distancing and hygiene guidelines


ix. All employers are strongly encouraged to have public facing employees wear cloth face coverings





d. The public is recommended to wear cloth face coverings in public settings where social distancing measures are difficult to maintain. These cloth face coverings should not be surgical masks or N-95 respirators as those are critical supplies for healthcare workers and first responders. The use of these cloth face coverings do not preclude the necessity to follow other public health guidelines regarding social distancing, sanitation, and hygiene best practices.





e. Persons deemed to be in the high-risk category of severe illness from COVID-19 are urged to stay in their residence and reduce interaction with others to the greatest extent practical.  This group includes, but is not limited to, those age 65 and older, and those with moderate to severe asthma, chronic lung disease, serious heart conditions, diabetes, chronic kidney disease undergoing dialysis, liver disease, severe obesity (body mass index of 40 or higher) or those who are immunocompromised.





f. In addition to online worship services, religious entities may conduct drive-in or parking lot services, however patrons must stay inside their vehicle for the duration of their time at a point of congregation and personal interactions must be avoided.





g. Long-term care settings (including, but not limited to, skilled nursing facilities, adult care homes, family care homes, assisted living facilities, and independent living facilities) are instructed by this order to prohibit visitors from accessing their facilities unless to provide critical assistance or for end-of-life visitation.





5. The provisions of the March 12, 2020 Declaration of State of Emergency remain in effect.





6. By and with the consent of the mayors of the municipalities within Buncombe County this Superseding Declaration of Local State of Emergency applies within the municipal limits of the City of Asheville, the Town of Weaverville, the Town of Woodfin, the Town of Black Mountain, the Town of Montreat, and the Town of Biltmore Forest.





7. An interpretive document has been developed to accompany this declaration and provide additional guidance.





8. The County of Buncombe must promptly provide copies of this Order by posting on the Buncombe County website. In addition, the owner, manager, or operator of any facility that is likely to be impacted by this Order is strongly encouraged to post a copy of this Order onsite and to provide a copy to any member of the public asking for a copy.





9. If any subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of this Order or any application of it to any person, structure, gathering, or circumstance is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, then such decision will not affect the validity of the remaining portions or applications of this Order.





10. Failure to comply with this declaration is a Class 2 misdemeanor pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. Section 14-288.20A by and through N.C. Gen. Stat. 166A-19.31.





11. This Superseding Declaration of Local State of Emergency shall go into effect at 6:00 a.m. on Thursday, April 9, 2020 and shall remain in effect until such time as it is repealed, replaced, or rescinded. 














ATTEST:						BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR THE


						COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE








							By: 					


Lamar Joyner, Clerk					Brownie Newman, Chairman
























Attachment "A"





Excerpt from North Carolina Governor, Roy Cooper’s, Executive Order No. 121


March 27, 2020





STAY AT HOME ORDER AND STRATEGIC DIRECTIONS FOR NORTH CAROLINA IN RESPONSE TO INCREASING COVID-19 CASES





Section 1. Stay at Home





1. Stay at home or place of residence. All individuals currently in the State of North Carolina are ordered to stay at home, their place of residence, or current place of abode, (hereinafter "residence") except as allowed in this Executive Order. To the extent individuals are using shared or outdoor spaces when outside their residence, they must at all times and as much as reasonably possible, maintain social distancing of at least six (6) feet from any other person, with the exception of family or household members, consistent with the Social Distancing Requirements set forth in this Executive Order. All persons may leave their homes or place of residence only for Essential Activities, Essential Governmental Operations, or to participate in or access COVID-19 Essential Businesses and Operations, all as defined below.





Individuals experiencing homelessness are exempt from this Executive Order, but are strongly urged to obtain shelter that meets Social Distancing Requirements. Individuals whose residences are unsafe or become unsafe, such as victims of domestic violence, are permitted and urged to leave their home and stay at a safe alternative location.





2. Prohibited and permitted travel. Only travel for Essential Activities as defined herein is permitted. People riding on public transit must comply with Social Distancing Requirements to the greatest extent feasible. This Executive Order allows travel into, within, or out of the State to maintain COVID-19 Essential Businesses and Operations and Minimum Basic Operations.





3. Leaving the home and travel for Essential Activities is permitted. For purposes of this Executive Order, individuals may leave their residence only to perform any of the following Essential Activities:





i. For health and safety. To engage in activities or perform tasks essential to their health and safety, or to the health and safety of their family or household members or persons who are unable to or should not leave their home (including, but not limited to, pets), such as, by way of example only and without limitation, seeking emergency services, obtaining medical supplies or medication, or visiting a healthcare professional or veterinarian.





ii. For necessary supplies and services. To obtain necessary services or supplies for themselves and their family or household members or persons who are unable or should not leave their home, or to deliver those services or supplies to others, such as, by way of example only and without limitation, groceries and food, household consumer products, supplies they need to work from home, automobile supplies(including sales, parts, supplies, repair and maintenance), and products necessary to maintain the safety, sanitation, and essential operation of residences or places of employment.





iii. For outdoor activity. To engage in outdoor activity, provided individuals comply with Social Distancing Requirements and Mass Gatherings, as defined below, such as, by way of example and without limitation, walking, hiking, running, golfing, or biking. Individuals may go to public parks and open outdoor recreation areas.  However, public playground equipment may increase spread of COVID-19, and therefore shall be closed. These activities are subject to the limitations on events or convenings in Section 3 of this Executive Order.





iv. For certain types of work. To perform work at businesses authorized to remain open under Section 2 of this Executive Order (which, as defined below, includes Healthcare and Public Health Operations, Human Services Operations, Essential Governmental Operations, and Essential Infrastructure Operations) or to otherwise carry out activities specifically permitted in this Executive Order, including Minimum Basic Operations.





v. To take care of others. To care for or assist a family member, friend, or pet in another household, and to transport family members, friends, or pets as allowed by this Executive Order. This includes attending weddings and funerals provided individuals comply with Social Distancing Requirements and Mass Gatherings as set forth below.





vi. Place of worship. Travel to and from a place of worship.





vii. To receive goods and services. To receive goods and services provided by a COVID-19 Essential Business or Operation.





viii. Place of residence. To return to or travel between one's place or places of residence for purposes including, but not limited to, child custody or visitation arrangements.





ix. Volunteering. To volunteer with organizations that provide charitable and social services.





Section 2. COVID-19 Essential Businesses and Operations





In order to slow the spread of COVID-19, it is necessary to reduce the instances where individuals interact with one another in a manner inconsistent with the Social Distancing Requirements set forth below. Many of those interactions occur at work. At the same time, it is necessary that certain businesses, essential to the response to COVID-19, to the infrastructure of the State and nation, and to the day-to-day life of North Carolinians, remain open.





A. In light of the above considerations, non-essential business and operations must cease. All businesses and operations in the State, except COVID-19 Essential Businesses and Operations as defined below, are required to cease all activities within the State except Minimum Basic Operations, as defined below. For clarity, businesses, including home-based businesses, may also continue operations consisting exclusively of employees or contractors performing activities at their own residences (i.e., working from home).





B. All COVID-19 Essential Businesses and Operations are directed, to the maximum extent possible, to direct employees to work from home or telework. 





C. For purposes of this Executive Order, a COVID-19 Essential Business and Operation includes the following businesses, not-for-profit organizations and educational institutions.





i). Businesses that meet Social Distancing Requirements. Businesses, not-for-profit organizations or educational institutions that conduct operations while maintaining Social Distancing Requirements:





· Between and mong its employees; and





· Between and among employees and customers except at the point of sale or purchase.





ii). Businesses operating in CISA identified sectors. Businesses, not-for-profit organizations or educational institutions operating in the federal critical infrastructure sectors as outlined at https://www.cisa.gov/identifying-critical-infrastructure-duringcovid- 19 or any subsequent guidance issued by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security that amends or replaces said guidance.





iii). Healthcare and Public Health Operations. Healthcare and Public Health Operations includes, but is not limited to: hospitals; clinics; dental offices; pharmacies; laboratories and laboratory service providers; public health entities, including those that compile, model, analyze and communicate public health information; pharmaceutical, pharmacy, medical device and equipment, and biotechnology and agricultural biotechnology companies (including operations, research and development, manufacture, and supply chain); organizations collecting blood, platelets, plasma, and other necessary materials; obstetricians and gynecologists; eye care centers, including those that sell glasses and contact lenses; dietary supplement retailers; naturopathic healthcare providers; home healthcare services providers; local management entities/managed care organizations (LME/MCO); mental health and substance use providers; other healthcare facilities and suppliers and providers of any related and/or ancillary healthcare services; and entities that transport and dispose of medical materials and remains. 





Specifically included in Healthcare and Public Health Operations are manufacturers, technicians, logistics, and warehouse operators and distributors of medical equipment, personal protective equipment (PPE), medical gases, pharmaceuticals, blood and blood products, vaccines, testing materials, laboratory supplies, cleaning, sanitizing, disinfecting or sterilization supplies, and tissue and paper towel products.





Healthcare and Public Health Operations also includes veterinary care and all healthcare services provided to animals.





Healthcare and Public Health Operations shall be construed broadly to avoid any impacts to the delivery of healthcare, or public health operations broadly defined. Healthcare and Public Health Operations does not include those businesses ordered to close by Executive Order No. 120.





iv). Human Services Operations. Human Services Operations includes, but is not limited to: long-term care facilities; child care centers, family child care homes; residential settings and shelters for adults, seniors, children, and/or people with developmental disabilities, intellectual disabilities, substance use disorders, and/or mental illness; transitional facilities; home-based settings to provide services to individuals with physical, intellectual, and/or developmental disabilities, seniors, adults, and children; field offices that provide and help to dete1mine eligibility for basic needs, including food, cash assistance, medical coverage, child care, child support services, vocational services, rehabilitation services; developmental centers; adoption agencies; businesses that provide food, shelter, social services, transportation and other necessities of life for economically disadvantaged individuals, individuals with physical, intellectual, and/or developmental disabilities, or otherwise needy individuals.





Human Services Operations shall be construed broadly to avoid any impacts to the delivery of human services, broadly defined.





v). Essential Infrastructure Operations. Essential Infrastructure Operations includes, but is not limited to: food and beverage production, distribution, fulfillment centers, storage facilities; construction (including, but not limited to, construction required in response to this public health emergency, hospital construction, construction of long term care facilities, public works construction, school construction, and essential commercial and housing construction); building and grounds management and maintenance including landscaping; airport operations; operation and maintenance of utilities, including water, sewer, and gas; electrical (including power generation, distribution, and production of raw materials); distribution centers; oil and biofuel refining; roads, highways, railroads, and public transportation; ports; cybersecurity operations; flood control; solid waste and recycling collection and removal; and internet, video and telecommunications systems (including the provision of essential global, national and local infrastructure for computing services, business infrastructure, communications, and web-based services). (including the provision of essential global, national and local infrastructure for computing services, business infrastructure, communications, and web-based services). 





Essential Infrastructure Operations shall be construed broadly to avoid any impacts to essential infrastructure, broadly defined.





vi). Essential Governmental Operations. Essential Governmental Operations means all services provided by the State or any municipality, township, county, political subdivision, board, commission or agency of government and needed to ensure the continuing operation of the government agencies or to provide for or support the health, safety and welfare of the public, and including contractors performing Essential Governmental Operations. Each government body shall determine its Essential Governmental Operations and identify employees and/or contractors necessary to the performance of those functions.








For purposes of this Executive Order, all first responders, emergency management personnel, emergency dispatchers, legislators, judges, court personnel, jurors and grand jurors, law enforcement and corrections personnel, hazardous materials responders, child protection and child welfare personnel, housing and shelter personnel, military, and other governmental employees working for or to support COVID-19 Essential Businesses and Operations are categorically exempt from this Executive Order.





This Executive Order does not apply to the United States government. Nothing in this Executive Order shall prohibit any individual from performing or accessing Essential Governmental Operations. Nothing in this Executive Order rescinds, amends, or otherwise modifies Section 2 of Executive Order No. 120.





vii). Stores that sell groceries and medicine. Grocery stores, pharmacies, certified farmers' markets, farm and produce stands, supermarkets, convenience stores, and other establishments engaged in the retail sale of groceries, canned food, dry goods, frozen foods, fresh fruits and vegetables, pet supplies, fresh meats, fish, and poultry, prepared food, alcoholic and nonalcoholic beverages, any other household consumer products (such as cleaning and personal care products), and specifically includes their supply chain and administrative support operations. This includes stores that sell groceries, medicine, including medication not requiring a medical prescription, and also that sell other nongrocery products, and products necessary to maintaining the safety, sanitation, and essential operation of residences and COVID-19 Essential Businesses and Operations. 








viii). Food, beverage production and agriculture. Food and beverage manufacturing, production, processing, and cultivation, including farming, livestock, fishing, forestry, baking, and other production agriculture, including cultivation, marketing, production, and distribution of animals and goods for consumption; and businesses that provide food, shelter, services and other necessities of life for animals, including animal shelters, rescues, shelters, kennels, and adoption facilities.








ix). Organizations that provide charitable and social services. Businesses as well as religious and secular not-for-profit organizations, including food banks, when providing food, shelter, social services, and other necessities of life for economically disadvantaged or otherwise needy individuals, individuals who need assistance as a result of this emergency, and people with disabilities.








x). Religious entities. Religious facilities, entities, groups, gatherings, including funerals. Also, services, counseling, pastoral care, and other activities provided by religious organizations to the members of their faith community. All of these functions are subject to the limitations on events or convenings in Section 3 of this Executive Order. 








xi). Media. Newspapers, television, radio, film, and other media services.








xii). Gas stations and businesses needed for transportation. Gas stations and auto supply, sales, tire, auto-repair, roadside assistance and towing services, farm equipment, construction equipment, boat repair, and related facilities and bicycle shops and related facilities.








xiii). Financial and insurance institutions. Bank, currency exchanges, consumer lenders, including but not limited to, pawnbrokers, consumer installment lenders and sales finance lenders, credit unions, appraisers, title companies, financial markets, trading and futures exchanges, affiliates of financial institutions, entities that issue bonds, related financial institutions, and institutions selling financial products. Also insurance companies, underwriters, agents, brokers, and related insurance claims and agency services.








xiv). Home improvement, hardware and supply stores. Home improvement, building supply, hardware stores, and businesses that sell building materials and supplies, electrical, plumbing, and heating materials.








xv). Critical trades. Building and construction tradesmen and tradeswomen, and other trades, including but not limited to, plumbers, electricians, exterminators, cleaning and janitorial staff for commercial and governmental properties, security staff, operating engineers, HV AC, painting, cleaning services, moving and relocation services, landscaping and other service providers who provide services that are necessary to maintaining the safety, sanitation, and essential operation of residences and COVID-19 Essential Businesses and Operations. This includes organizations that represent employees.








xvi). Mail, post, shipping, logistics, delivery, and pick-up services. Post offices and other businesses that provide shipping and delivery services, and businesses that ship or deliver groceries, food, alcoholic and non-alcoholic beverages, goods, vehicles or services to end users or through commercial channels.








xvii). Educational institutions. Educational institutions including public and private pre-K-12 schools, colleges, and universities for purposes of facilitating remote learning, performing critical research, or performing essential functions, provided that the Social Distancing Requirements set forth below of this Executive Order are maintained to the greatest extent possible. This Executive Order is consistent with and does not amend or supersede prior Executive Orders regarding the closure of public schools.








xviii). Laundry services. Laundromats, dry cleaners, industrial laundry services, and laundry service providers.








xix). Restaurants for consumption off-premises. Restaurants and other facilities that prepare and serve food, but only for consumption off-premises, through such means as in-house delivery, third-party delivery, drive-through, curbside pick-up, and carry-out. Schools and other entities that provide free food services to students or members of the public may continue to do so under this Executive Order when the food is provided for carry-out, drivethrough or delivery. This Executive Order is consistent with and does not amend or supersede prior COVID-19 related Executive Orders restricting the operations of restaurants and temporarily closing bars.





xx). Supplies to work from home. Businesses that sell, manufacture, or supply office supply products or other products needed for people to work from home.








xxi). Supplies for COVID-19 Essential Businesses and Operations. Businesses that sell, manufacture, support, or supply other COVID-19 Essential Businesses and Operations with the service or materials necessary to operate, including computers, audio and video electronics, household appliances; payroll processing and related services; IT and telecommunication equipment; elections personnel and election-related equipment supplies; hardware, paint, flat glass, electrical, plumbing and heating material; sanitary equipment; personal hygiene products; food, food additives, ingredients and components; medical and orthopedic equipment; optics and photography equipment; and diagnostics, food and beverages, chemicals, soaps and detergent.








xxii). Transportation. Airlines, taxis, automobile dealers, transportation network providers (such as Uber and Lyft), vehicle rental services, paratransit, trains, marinas, docks, boat storage, and other private, public, and commercial transportation and logistics providers, and public transportation necessary to access COVID-19 Essential Businesses and Operations.








xxiii). Home-based care and services. Home-based care for adults, seniors, children, and/or people with developmental disabilities, intellectual disabilities, substance use disorders, and/or mental illness, including caregivers such as nannies who may travel to the child's home to provide care, and other in-home services including meal delivery.











xxiv). Residential facilities and shelters. Residential facilities and shelters for adults, seniors, children, pets, and/or people with developmental disabilities, intellectual disabilities, victims of domestic violence, people experiencing homelessness, substance use disorders, and/or mental illness.








xxv). Professional services. Professional services, such as legal services, accounting services, insurance services, professional engineering and architectural services, land surveying services, real estate services (including brokerage, appraisal and title services) and tax preparation services.








xxvi). Manufacture, distribution, and supply chain for critical products and industries. Manufacturing companies, distributors, and supply chain companies producing and supplying essential products and services in and for industries such as pharmaceutical, technology, biotechnology, healthcare, chemicals and sanitization, waste pickup and disposal, agriculture, food and beverage, transportation, energy, steel and steel products, petroleum and fuel, mining, construction, communications, as well as products used or commonly sold by other COVID-19 Essential Businesses and Operations.








xxvii). Defense and military contractors. Defense and military contractors that develop products, processes, equipment, technology, and related services that serve the United States military, national defense, and national security interests.








xxviii). Hotels and motels. Hotels and motels, to the extent used for lodging and delivery or carryout food services.








xxix). Funeral Services. Funeral, mortuary, cremation, burial, cemetery, and related services.  These services are subject to the limitations on events or convenings in Section 3 of this Executive Order.








xxx). Additional COVID-19 Essential Retail Businesses. Additional COVID-19 Essential Retail Businesses are:





· Electronic retailers that sell or service cell phones, computers, tablets, and other communications technology;


· Lawn and garden equipment retailers;


· Book stores that sell educational material;


· Beer, wine, and liquor stores;


· Retail functions of gas stations and convenience stores;


· Retail located within healthcare facilities;


· Pet and feed stores.





D. All COVID-19 Essential Businesses and Operations shall, to the extent practicable, maintain the Social Distancing Requirements set forth in this Executive Order.





E. "Social Distancing Requirements" as used in this Executive Order means:





i). maintaining at least six ( 6) feet distancing from other individuals;


ii). washing hands using soap and water for at least twenty (20) seconds as frequently as possible or the use of hand sanitizer;


iii). regularly cleaning high-touch surfaces;


iv). facilitating online or remote access by customers if possible.





F. Businesses excluded from the list of COVID-19 Essential Businesses and Operations set forth in this Executive Order who believe that they may be essential may direct requests to be included to the North Carolina Department of Revenue (the "Department"). The Department may grant such request if it determines that it is in the best interest of the State to have the business continue operations in order to properly respond to this COVID-19 pandemic. The Department shall post on its website a point of contact and procedure for businesses seeking to be designated as essential. A business that has made a request to the Department to be included as a COVID-19 Essential Business or Operation may continue to operate until that request is acted upon.





G. Businesses that are not COVID-19 Essential Businesses and Operations are required to cease all activities within the State except Minimum Basic Operations, as defined below. Businesses that are not COVID-19 Essential Businesses and Operations should comply with Social Distancing Requirements, to the maximum extent possible, when carrying out their Minimum Basic Operations.  





As used in this Executive Order, "Minimum Basic Operations" include the following:





i). The minimum necessary activities to maintain the value of the business's inventory, preserve the condition of the business's physical plant and equipment, ensure security, process payroll and employee benefits, or related functions.





ii). The minimum necessary activities to facilitate employees of the business being able to continue to work remotely from their residences.





H. H. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Executive Order, the businesses, not-for-profit organizations and educational institutions that were ordered closed by Executive Order Nos. 118 and 120 shall remain closed.





Section 3. Mass Gatherings





For the reasons and pursuant to the authority set forth above:





A. Section l(a) of Executive Order Nos. 117 and 120 is rescinded and replaced as follows:





1. A mass gathering is defined as any event or convening that brings together more than ten ( 10) persons in a single room or single space at the same time, such as an auditorium, stadium, arena, large conference room, meeting hall, or any other confined indoor or outdoor space. This includes parades, fairs and festivals.





2. A mass gathering does not include normal operations at airports, bus and train stations, medical facilities, libraries, shopping malls and centers. It also does not include any COVID-19 Essential Business or Operation as defined in this Executive Order.





3. Notwithstanding the above, and in an effort to promote human dignity and limit suffering, funerals are permitted to include no more than fifty (50) persons, while observing Social Distancing Requirements to the extent practicable.





4. Pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §§ 166A-19.30(a)(2), -19.30(c) the provisions of this section shall be enforced by state and local law enforcement officers.




















From: Brownie W. Newman

To: Esther Manheimer

Subject: Fwd: BE SAFE STAY HOME 4-8 v4.docx
Date: Wednesday, April 8, 2020 9:25:46 AM
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



			






			

Avril Pinder




County Manager Office




County Manager




p. (828) 250-4101




200 College St. 3rd Floor




Asheville, NC 28801




 




Respect. Honesty. Integrity. Collaboration. Equity.


















 




 




 


















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

To: Rep. John Ager; Rep. Brian Turner; Rep. Susan Fisher; Sen. Terry Van Duyn
Cc: Jasmine Beach-Ferrara; Esther Manheimer

Subject: Fwd: CLIA Letter for Governor Cooper

Date: Friday, April 17, 2020 11:28:01 AM

Attachments: CLIA letter to Governor.pdf

ATT00001.htm

CVaarrettgraham.pdf
ATT00002.htm

John, Brian, Susan and Terry:

I wanted to share with you a copy of a letter we are working to deliver to Governor Cooper or
a senior member of his team regarding an initiative that could significantly increase testing for
COVID-19 in Buncombe County. See attached. This would enable us to quickly set up a new
testing facility in the community that would enable large scale, same-day testing at lower cost.
It could make a big difference in fighting COVID-19 and allowing us to reopen businesses and
community activities.

Esther is working to get this to the Governor or key people on his team. We wanted you to be
aware of this effort and ask if you had any suggestions for what may be the best way to bring
this issue to the Governors attention for potential action. We believe he has the authority to
approve this as part of his emergency powers. Or perhaps he could get it approved by
requesting help from the appropriate agency decision-makers.

I will keep you posted with our effort to elevate this issue. If you have any specific
suggestions, that would be great.
Brownie Newman

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:



mailto:Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org

mailto:john.ager@ncleg.net

mailto:brian.turner@ncleg.net
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

Date: Friday, April 17, 2020 11:27:59 AM

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

buncombecounty.org

















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

To: John Christy

Cc: Esther Manheimer

Subject: Fwd: CLIA Letter for Governor Cooper
Date: Friday, April 17, 2020 11:46:42 AM
Attachments: CLIA letter to Governor.pdf

ATT00001.htm

CVaarrettgraham.pdf
ATT00002.htm

Drew,

I wanted to provide you with a copy of a letter I have written which we would like to deliver
to the Governor or other senior members of his team who might be able to assist on this issue.
There is an idea that has been developed locally which we think could make a big difference
in our ability to do testing for COVID-19. We need support from the Governor in order to
enable the lab testing process.

I wanted to ask if you have a suggestion for how we can get this letter to the Governopr or the
appropriate person on his staff. As far as I can tell, getting this approved is probably the best
thing any of us can do to make a positive difference right now to tackle COVID-19 and enable
us to move sooner towards restoring business operations and community activities.

Thank you for any suggestions in how we can elevate this request.

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

To: Avril Pinder; Esther Manheimer

Cc: Jasmine Beach-Ferrara; Amanda Edwards
Subject: Fwd: CLIA letter to Governor Cooper
Date: Wednesday, April 15, 2020 1:08:58 PM
Attachments: CLIA letter to Governor.doc

ATT00001.htm

Avril— I have attached below a draft letter to Gov Cooper about the CLIA issue. Could you
ask Fletcher and Jennifer to review it and make sure it is accurate and to ask if they have any
suggested changes? One thing that I think would be helpful would be to add the exact details,
if we have them, about who the actual decision maker is that we are hoping the Governor will
contact or give direction to.

I have forward the letter to Dr. Graham as well to ask him to review the letter.

Esther — Do you have a suggestion for what is the best way to get this letter, once it is ready
to send, in front of the Governor? Could you get a call into him? I was thinking of reaching
out to our state legislators and asking them to help use any contacts they have as well.
Brownie

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

From: Brownie Newman <newmanasheville@gmail.com>

Date: April 15,2020 at 1:03:03 PM EDT

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



Thank you for your leadership in addressing the Covid-19 threat to North Carolina. As you know, one of the greatest challenges in efforts to slow the spread of this contagious disease has been the national shortage of testing equipment for Covid-19 and the lab capacity to process tests. Expanding the capacity of testing and analysis is essential to both slowing the spread of Covid-19 and to planning for the re-opening of community activities and businesses in a safe manner. 



I am writing to you today to ask for your help in approving a procedure that we believe could significantly increase our capacity for testing and analysis in western North Carolina and perhaps across the state. Dr. Garrett Graham, PhD in Bioengineering and Climate Data Analyst Research Associate, would like to establish an additional Covid testing site in the region, which could expand testing in a very efficient manner. We need your help to remove some regulatory red-tape. 



Lab testing facilities are regulated by Central Medical Services (CMS). The set of rules that govern labs are the Clinical Laboratory Improvement Amendments (CLIA). Although CLIA standards are established at the Federal level, they are regulated at the state level. There are different levels of CLIA certifications, depending on how complex/risky the lab's testing will be. Currently, Covid-19 tests can only be analyzed in the facilities certified at the highest level, which contributes greatly to the bottleneck in testing capacity in North Carolina. 



Dr. Graham and Buncombe County’s health officials believe Covid-19 tests can be safely administered in all CLIA facilities so long as they adhere to the highest standard for testing protocols. We are writing to ask you to help stream-line the testing protocols by requesting or directing under your emergency authorities that NC CMS adopt a model akin to what the FDA is now using for Emergency Use Agreement for tests.  In this manner, the labs still have to follow all of the correct protocols and get all of the proper certifications, but they may proceed and start testing as long as they have an initial stamp of approval from CMS. 



We believe taking this step could enable Buncombe County to begin processing potentially hundreds of tests per day rather than the much smaller numbers we have been able to process to date. Further, the test results could be achieved in our community on the same day the tests are taken as the process would occur in the county and not need to be mailed to a facility in another part of the state. 


Thank you very much for your attention to this. We believe this is one of the most effective actions that could be taken to scale up the community testing that is so essential to suppressing Covid-19 and restoring community and economic activities. 


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

To: Avril Pinder; Brad Branham; Brownie W. Newman; Debra Campbell; Michael C. Frue
Subject: Fwd: FW: NC Metro Mayors Coalition COVID Memo

Date: Thursday, April 2, 2020 7:41:56 AM

Attachments: NC Metro Mayors Coalition COVID Memo.pdf

This is a memo from the Ag Commissioner regarding essential services in the Ag/food sector.

—————————— Forwarded message ---------

From: Beau Mills <beau.mills@metromayors.com>
Date: Wed, Apr 1, 2020 at 4:39 PM

Subject: FW: NC Metro Mayors Coalition COVID Memo

To: nancy.vaughan(@greensboro-nc.gov <nancy.vaughan@greensboro-nc.gov>, Beau Mills

<beau.mills@metromayors.com>
CC: McDowell, Ches <cmcdowell@kilpatricktownsend.com>

As per today’s conference call with the Commissioner.

From: Troxler, Steve <steve.troxler@ncagr.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, April 1, 2020 4:33 PM

To: Beau Mills <beau.mills@Metromayors.com>; NFreeman(@Xkilpatricktownsend.com;

cmedowell@kilpatricktownsend.com; ADonovan(@Kkilpatricktownsend.com
Cc: Hlabse, Tina <Tina.Hlabse@ncagr.gov>; Lanier, Jonathan <jonathan.lanier(@ncagr.gov>;

Kilian, Laura E <laura.kilian@ncagr.gov>
Subject: NC Metro Mayors Coalition COVID Memo

Good afternoon,

The N.C. Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services is taking measures to help
farmers and agribusinesses in light of the State and local governments “stay-at-home” orders.
Please see the attached Memo regarding steps we have taken.

I am asking that you distribute this Memo to your membership across the State. I appreciate
your help in sharing this message about the critical importance of agriculture during this time.

Thank you again for your service and dedication to the citizens of this State.
Sincerely,

“Commissioner” Steve Troxler

SWT/mw
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Steven W. Troxler

North Carolina Department of Agriculture

Commissioner and Consumer Services

April 1, 2020

MEMO

TO: NC METROPOLITAN MAYORS COALITION

FROM: STEVE TROXLER, COMMISSIONER OF AGRICULTUREM
RE: ESSENTIAL AGRICULTURE PERSONNEL

I want to take a moment to reach out to each of you during this unprecedented time for

North Carolina, and indeed the world. I am asking for your help with a critical issue — food and
agriculture. Each of you understand how important your public service is to our State, and I
want to thank you for all that you do for our citizens on a daily basis. Our role as public servants
has never been more critical than it is right now as we work together to combat the COVID-19
pandemic.

To help facilitate ease of movement and continuity of agricultural services during the various
stay-at-home orders, I have provided two documents to agricultural personnel:

1) NOTICE OF ESSENTIAL FOOD AND AGRICULTURAL EMPLOYEE to personnel
of the state’s agricultural commodity groups, associations, and businesses.

2) ESSENTIAL FOOD AND AGRICULTURAL EMPLOYEE WORK PERMIT to
employees of the North Carolina Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services.

Both of these forms give notice that these individuals are essential personnel that must continue
to travel and perform their job duties amid various travel restrictions that may be implemented.
This is consistent with the Department of Homeland Security’s (DHS) identification of critical
infrastructure, which can be found here: https://www.cisa.gov/identifying-critical-infrastructure-
during-covid-19. DHS identifies the production and supply of food and agriculture as one of 16
critical infrastructure areas providing vital service to the nation. The Governor’s EO 121 also
lists these areas as essential, including landscaping, thus allowing these businesses to stay open.

I ask that local governments follow the example of DHS and EO 121, and specifically list
agriculture and agribusiness as essential job classifications so that we can keep the supply of
food and agriculture moving efficiently in this time in which it is so badly needed.

If an officer has any questions, please contact NCDA&CS at 919-707-3000.

1001 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina, 27699-1001 (919) 707-3000 ® Fax (919) 733-1141
TTY: 1-800-735-2962 Voice: 1-877-735-8200 ® E-mail: Steve.Troxler@ncagr.gov

An Equal Opportunity Employer









Steven W. Troxler
Commissioner

NC Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services
1001 MSC

Raleigh, NC 27699-1001 Steve.Troxler(@ncagr.gov

Phone: 919-707-3021
NCDA&CS Main Line: 919-707-3000

Fax: 919-733-1141

Please note: North Carolina has a very broad public records law. Most written communications to and
from state officials are public records available to the public and media upon request. Therefore keep in
mind your e-mail communications may be subject to public disclosure.

Esther Manheimer
Mayor, City of Asheville
P.O. Box 7148
Asheville, NC 28802
Cell 828.231.8016

esthermanheimer@avicouncil.com
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From: Esther Manheimer

To: Avril Pinder; Brownie W. Newman; Clark Duncan; Debra Campbell; Jaime Matthews; Stephanie Brown; Kit
Cramer

Subject: Fwd: Friday - COVID Metro Mayors Zoom Meeting - hosted by NC Restaurant and Lodging Association

Date: Thursday, April 23, 2020 5:52:47 PM

Attachments: image001.png

This is tomorrow at 12:30 and it’s about restaurants and lodging and covid 19. All are
welcome to join.

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Beau Mills <beau.mills@metromayors.com>

Date: Wed, Apr 22, 2020 at 6:25 PM

Subject: Friday - COVID Metro Mayors Zoom Meeting - hosted by NC Restaurant and
Lodging Association

To: nancy.vaughan(@greensboro-nc.gov <nancy.vaughan@greensboro-nc.gov>, Beau Mills
<beau.mills@metromayors.com>

CC: McDowell, Ches <cmcdowell@kilpatricktownsend.com>

As part of our continuing series of updates and information on important issues, the Metro
Mayors Coalition is pleased to join with the NC Restaurant and [odging Association for a
Zoom Meeting this FRIDAY, April 24 at 12:30pm.

This meeting was organized at the request of Greensboro Mayor Nancy Vaughan and hosted
by the NCRLA President Lynn Minges and Government Affairs Director Isabel Villa-Garcia.
It will be similar to the call we had today with the NC Retail Merchants Association. Lynn
and Isabel will share with us their state-wide hospitality industry perspective and give us the
latest information related to their industry’s approach to the COVID-19 crisis. The
detrimental impact of COVID-19 on their industry is hard to over-emphasize. So this could be
a very good opportunity to learn more about their state-wide perspective and experience.

This is especially important and timely as we are moving towards a new phase in the crisis and
Governor Cooper begins to contemplate changes to his state-wide restrictions. As you and
your fellow local leaders contemplate your own future plans, practice and restrictions, hearing
from our state-level partners in the hospitality industry can be helpful. Lynn and Isabel work
closely with their members here in NC, as well as industry colleagues all around the country.
We are fortunate to have them share their information and insight — they are widely respected
and successful advocates in state policy and legislation.

Please make time for you and/or your critical staff to join us on Friday (mayors, managers and
staff are welcome).
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Topic: NCRLA & Metro Mayors Conversation

Time: Apr 24,2020 - 12:30 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada)

Join Zoom Meeting

https://zoom.us/i/94487068808?pwd=0ODF5N2dZZ115M177QU1adC9NalhKQT09

Meeting ID: 944 8706 8808

Password: 052106

One tap mobile
+13126266799,,94487068808# US (Chicago)

+16465588656,,94487068808# US (New York)

Dial by your location
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 646 558 8656 US (New York)
+1 253 215 8782 US
+1 301 715 8592 US
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)
Meeting ID: 944 8706 8808

Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/abelyOHAW

Warm Regards,

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




http://www.ncmetromayors.com/

mailto:esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com




From: Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org

To: Sen. Terry Van Duyn

Cc: Esther Manheimer

Subject: Fwd: Need for non-profit COVID-19 lab in western NC
Date: Friday, May 1, 2020 8:33:48 AM

Terry,

Good morning. Hope you are well.

I wanted to follow up with you about the letter we sent to the Governor about the
establishment of a non-profit COVID-19 Lab in western NC. Although last week we were told
the letter had been sent to “the right people” (while not being told exactly who that was), we
have not received a response. The county’s health officials who have also been asking for this
through the DHHS channels, have also not gotten a response.

The establishment of such a lab requires a team with a high degree of sophistication and
expertise. I believe that Dr. Garret Graham has a team that meets the requisite requirements.

I have copied below the follow up email I sent to Drew Christy this morning. We were
directed to work through him. If you have any ideas or avenues to encourage support for this
idea, we would appreciate it. I believe it would be a proverbial game-changer for the region.

Thanks!

Brownie Newman
Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Brownie W. Newman" <Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>
Date: May 1, 2020 at 8:26:34 AM EDT

To: John A Christy <drew.christy@nc.gov>

Cec: Avril Pinder <Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org>, Esther Manheimer
<esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com>

Subject: Need for non-profit COVID-19 lab in western NC

Drew,

Good morning. Hope you are well.

Thank you for advancing the letter we sent to the Governor regarding the
establishment of a non-profit COVID-19 lab for western North Carolina. At this
time, we have not received a response to the letter. Do you know if we can expect

an answer in the near future?

I want to underline how important this issue is to not just Buncombe County but
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to western North Carolina. At this time, the proposal outlined by Dr. Graham is
the most promising concept we have seen to enable the affordable development of
large scale, same-day COVID-19 testing for the mountain region. Currently, we
are required to send all of our tests through the mail to labs in cities located
outside the region. To do this at large scale is expensive. Sending test kits through
the mail means we will never have same-day testing.

For a disease as contagious as COVID-19, the difference in value for getting a test
result within a few hours rather than 2- 5 days later can not be over-stated.
Effective contact tracing will never be possible if we do not get results until days
after the tests are taken.

The other reason this is important to us is that it provides a potentially much more
cost-effective approach to large scale testing. Currently, it costs about $60 for
each test. To reach the level of testing recommended by the Governor, we need to
be doing about 200 tests per day in Buncombe County. At $60 per test, that is
$12,000 per day for test results (not counting any of the staffing costs to operate
test sites). Over 30 days, that cost is $360,000 per month. Considering that
COVID-19 is likely to be with us for a long-time, and that testing levels well
above what the Governor has recommended as the near term goal, this will be a
very substation cost to taxpayers.

Establishing a non-profit lab in western NC would enable testing to be carried out
less than half of those costs.

Thank you for your help on this issue. Please feel free to share this with anyone

else in the organization. If there are technical reasons that establishment of such a
lab is not a positive idea, we would like to understand the issues.

Brownie Newman,
County Commission Chair

Sent from my iPad






From: Brownie W. Newman

To: Sen. Terry Van Duyn

Cc: Esther Manheimer

Subject: Fwd: Need for non-profit COVID-19 lab in western NC
Date: Friday, May 1, 2020 8:33:49 AM

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

To: Avril Pinder; Fletcher Tove; Jennifer L. Mullendore; Esther Manheimer
Subject: Fwd: Newman comments for April 30 media advisory

Date: Thursday, April 30, 2020 1:54:39 PM

Attachments: newman remarks -- april 30.docx

ATT00001.htm

FYT - Here is a copy of the statement I plan to make at the media advisory today.

Brownie
Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

From: Brownie Newman <newmanasheville@gmail.com>

Date: April 30, 2020 at 1:53:46 PM EDT

To: "Brownie W. Newman" <Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Newman comments for April 30 media advisory
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Good afternoon. On March 12, Buncombe County declared a local state of emergency to prepare for the threat of Covid-19. At that time, there were just 2,200 documented cases of Covid-19 in the United States. Now, just 49 days later, there are more than one million documented cases and more than 60,000 people have died as a result of COVID-19. 


Fortunately, here in Buncombe County, the number of people who have become seriously ill as a result of COVID-19 is lower than most other metropolitan areas across North Carolina and across the country. Local residents, businesses, churches and community organizations have been very responsive to the county’s Stay Home - Stay Safe policy, which has reduced the spread of this contagious illness. 


Thus far, 25 residents have been admitted to Mission Hospital since March 12 who were determined to be positive for COVID 19. There have never been more than 6 individuals at any one time in the hospital who were confirmed to have COVID-19 and the number of cases has usually been between two to four. For this reason, Buncombe County supports Mission Hospitals plans to resume medical procedures that had previously been placed on hold to assure adequate capacity at the hospital. 


We are eager to begin the process to restore more economic and community activities as well, but we must do it in a way that continues to prioritize public safety. Governor Roy Cooper has announced plans for a re-opening process for North Carolina, using a phased approach, and with scientific metrics that will be tracked to assure that COVID-19 remains in check. 


Today I will be signing a revised local emergency order that further aligns our local policy with the overall approach being taken by North Carolina. The revisions to the local order today will enable will revised the number of people who may attend a community gathering from 0 to 10, consistent with the North Carolina policy, and with requirements for social distancing. 


Governor Cooper has announced that phase one of re-opening could occur as early as May 9th, contingent on data to confirm that transmission of COVID-19 is levelling off or declining. Phase 1 will likely enable retail businesses to resume operations but with limitations and safeguards. Phase 2 of re-openings could occur withing 2 – 3 weeks after Phase 1 but will again be contingent on data confirming that COVID-19 trends are moving in a favorable direction. Phase 2 is likely to include some expanded operations for restaurants with limitations and safeguards. 


One area where Buncombe County will continue to set specific limits on re-opening is for leisure tourism. Due to the popularity of Asheville as a tourist destination, and the fact that many areas of the country, including neighboring states, have extensive spread of COVID-19, we will need to take a careful and gradual approach to inviting significant numbers of people from outside the region back into our county. The current prohibition on leisure tourism will continue during Phase 1 in Buncombe County but is expected to be incrementally relaxed in the subsequent phases. We hope to have a more detailed plan that can be shared for resuming tourism related activities in the near future. 


I want to reiterate my thanks to all the people, organizations and businesses in Buncombe that have helped keep our community safe. It has saved lives. If we continue to work together, we will be able to bring our community back in a careful, responsible way. 


The County appreciates the cooperation of all the municipalities in this effort. Mayor Esther Manheimer is with us today and would like to also make some remarks. 


Esther speaks – 


Brownie signs the order 


I would not like to invite Fletcher Tove, the Public Health Emergency Preparedness Director for Buncombe County to outline the substance of the county’s updated order. 





 















From: Brownie W. Newman

To: Avril Pinder; Fletcher Tove; Jennifer L. Mullendore; Esther Manheimer
Subject: Fwd: Newman comments for April 30 media advisory

Date: Thursday, April 30, 2020 1:54:40 PM

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
Date: Monday, April 20, 2020 12:18:54 PM

FYT - Here is what’s on the media advisory agenda today. I don’t plan on attending.

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
working with the city firefighters on a quick response team they are working on
rolling out.

Thanks,
Avril

On Apr 20, 2020, at 11:54 AM, Brownie W. Newman
<Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org> wrote:

Avril,

What is the schedule for media briefings this week? Also can you
share who is speaking at the next one and if there are any significant
new announcements to be made?

Thanks,

Brownie



mailto:esthermanheimer@avlcouncil.com



Sent from my iPad






From: Brownie W. Newman

To: Esther Manheimer
Subject: Fwd: Schedule for media briefings
Date: Monday, April 20, 2020 12:18:55 PM

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
Date: Monday, April 20, 2020 11:02:11 AM

See email response below.

Brownie

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Michael C. Frue" <Michael. Frue@buncombecounty.org>

Date: April 18, 2020 at 4:05:04 PM EDT

To: Avril Pinder <Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org>

Cec: "Brownie W. Newman" <Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Re: Should NC coronavirus response allow delivery cocktails? |
Raleigh News & Observer

Agreed. I find no authority under Ch 166A (emergency declaration statute) to
change laws and prohibitions locally. Such a change to allow curbside mixed
drinks would require a legislative change since no type of alcohol permit allows
such practice now. Existing law allows transport of spirituous liquors in passenger
areas of motor vehicles in original unopened manufacturers container only.

Let me know if you need anything further.

On Apr 18, 2020, at 3:08 PM, Avril Pinder <Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org>
wrote:

See article from News and Observer, I don’t think we have the authority at the
local level.

Thanks,
Avril

Begin forwarded message:

From: Avril Pinder <pinderam@yahoo.com>

Date: April 18, 2020 at 3:06:12 PM EDT

To: Avril Pinder <Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Should NC coronavirus response allow delivery
cocktails? | Raleigh News & Observer
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BC Email Security finds this email suspicious! We know Avril Pinder by

name, but the email was sent from an unfamiliar address
pinderam@yahoo.com |

https://www.newsobserver.com/news/coronavirus/article24 1505041 .html

Thanks,
Avril



https://members.ironscales.com/sights/info/NDkxOTA1MjI:1jPsn8:vsxVDl57Z6CFqFGUvhdWpdN92GI/




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

To: Avril Pinder; Jennifer L. Mullendore; Fletcher Tove

Cc: Jasmine Beach-Ferrara; Amanda Edwards; Esther Manheimer
Subject: Fwd: [External] Fwd: CLIA Letter for Governor Cooper

Date: Friday, April 17, 2020 12:27:34 PM

Attachments: image001.png

Email response from the Director of the Governors Western Office. Esther is working to get
the email to the Governor or other senior members of his team.

Brownie
Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Christy, John A" <drew.christy@nc.gov>

Date: April 17,2020 at 11:58:45 AM EDT

To: "Brownie W. Newman" <Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: RE: [External] Fwd: CLIA Letter for Governor Cooper

Hi Brownie,

| will pass the letter on to some people in Raleigh. Also, | think you should have the
Buncombe County Health Department and Emergency Management send it along to
their respective state counterparts, NCDHHS and NCEM.

Regards,

Drew Christy

Director

Western Regional Office
Office of Governor Roy Cooper
176 Riceville Road

Asheville, NC 28805

(828) 707-1649
drew.christy@nc.gov
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Office of the Governor
https://governor.nc.gov

Email correspondence to and from this address may be subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and may be
disclosed to third parties by an authorized state official.

From: Brownie W. Newman <Brownie.Newman@buncombecounty.org>
Sent: Friday, April 17, 2020 11:49 AM

To: Christy, John A <drew.christy@nc.gov>

Subject: [External] Fwd: CLIA Letter for Governor Cooper

CAUTION:

Drew,

| wanted to provide you with a copy of a letter | have written which we would like to
deliver to the Governor or other senior members of his team who might be able to
assist on this issue. There is an idea that has been developed locally which we think
could make a big difference in our ability to do testing for COVID-19. We need support
from the Governor in order to enable the lab testing process.

| wanted to ask if you have a suggestion for how we can get this letter to the
Governopr or the appropriate person on his staff. As far as | can tell, getting this
approved is probably the best thing any of us can do to make a positive difference right
now to tackle COVID-19 and enable us to move sooner towards restoring business
operations and community activities.

Do you have a suggestion for who may be the best person to send this to? Esther is
working on reaching out to folks as well.

Brownie Newman

828-243-0107

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

Sign up to receive emergency texts directly from Buncombe County for breaking health



https://governor.nc.gov/

mailto:report.spam@nc.gov



and safety news. Text BCALERT on your smart phone to 888-777 to receive alerts on
important information such as floods, communicable disease, county office closings,
and relevant traffic safety notifications OR visit buncombeready.org

[buncombeready.org]

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



https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/buncombeready.org__;!!HYmSToo!PXApWaz9Z8P69dvnV-foSFeWz7OiybOhsuyHOMQ6kW_16DtyXIUb8xOnUVi3RVLkH1M$

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

To: Fletcher Tove; Esther Manheimer
Subject: Fwd: remarks for 4 PM

Date: Wednesday, April 8, 2020 1:05:35 PM
Fletch and Esther,

FYI — Here is a draft of what I plan to say at the 4 PM meeting today.

Brownie
Sent from my iPad
Begin forwarded message:

> Good afternoon. On March 12, Buncombe County declared a local state of emergency to prepare for the threat of
Covid-19. At that time, there were just 2,200 documented cases of Covid-19 in the United States. Now, less than one
month later, there are more than 400,000 documented cases of Covid-19 in our country and we know the number of
actual cases far exceeds those that have been documented. About 30,000 additional people are being sickened by
Covid-19 each day across our county. More than 13,000 people in our country have already lost their lives to this
highly contagious disease.

>

> Covid-19 represents a health crisis unlike any that we have faced during our lifetimes. While there is not currently
a vaccine for this virus, the good news is that we have a strategy that is proven to significantly slow the transmission
of Covid-19. Buncombe County’s Stay Home — Stay Safe local order is helping to reduce the number of people who
are getting sick.

>

> We understand that this policy creates more than just inconvenience for many people and businesses. There is real
pain and sacrifice involved for many. I want to express how grateful I am for the support and cooperation from
individuals, families, businesses, and organizations in our community who are helping us implement this critical
strategy which will help save lives and will ultimately reduce the damage to our economy and prepare us for
recovery.

>

> Based on the recommendations of our county health officials, I am today signing an extension of Buncombe
County’s Stay Home — Stay Safe emergency order. The existing policy has been effective in significantly slowing
the spread of Covid-19 but the effort must continue. The updated county policy will align in most regards with the
state-wide policy issued by Governor Cooper after Buncombe County adopted our local policy. However, in several
important regards, the Buncombe County order includes additional safeguards to provide additional protection for
our community.

>

> We look forward to the day when we can begin to re-open more businesses, to re-open our public schools, to
restore traditional services within our houses of worship and resume public gatherings. But the focus for the time-
being must be on limiting the spread of Covid-19. The more effective we are as a community in suppressing Covid-
19, the more feasible it will become to restore public activities in the future.

> The County appreciates the cooperation of all the municipalities in this effort. Mayor Esther Manheimer is with us
today and would like to also make some remarks.

>

> Esther speaks — .....

>

> Brownie signs the order

>

> [ would not like to invite Fletcher Tove, the Public Health Emergency Preparedness Director for Buncombe
County to outline the substance of the county’s updated order.
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From: Brownie W. Newman

To: Fletcher Tove; Esther Manheimer
Subject: Fwd: remarks for 4 PM

Date: Wednesday, April 8, 2020 1:05:38 PM
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

Subject: Fwd: responses from Garret

Date: Friday, April 17, 2020 12:25:03 PM
Esther,

Here is an email from Dr. Garrett Graham. It outlines how he would need to procure some
additional swabs but in generally optimistic that he has the testing equipment he needs and can
secure the other materials fairly easily.

Brownie

From: Garrett Graham - NOAA Affiliate <garrett.graham@noaa.gov>
Sent: Friday, April 17, 2020 11:59 AM

To: Fletcher Tove <Eletcher.Tove@buncombecounty.org>

Cc: Jennifer L. Mullendore <Jennifer.Mullendore@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Re: Capacity Questions

Hey Fletch!

Awesome! Re: your questions:

1. Correct, as long as there aren’t any snags in getting whatever additional
equipment we’ll need;

2. My average output would be 40 patients per hour (actual output would be
30 patients every 43.75 minutes).

3. Yes, I’'m pretty confident. I haven’t checked in about two weeks, but most
of these reagents/supplies aren’t the stuff that the huge, automated
diagnostic labs are interested in.

4. We need to source flocked nasopharyngeal swabs. I had a major
manufacture on the line for these three weeks ago, but haven’t contacted
them since, so I’ll need to check. Other than those and any additional
equipment that I may have to order, we ought to be good.

I have a good bit to do today for my job job, so I may not be super-responsive
until later this afternoon (after 3:30 PM).

Thanks for pushing this!

Garrett
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Hey Garrett,

Just got off the phone with our County Manager. The letter is going to State
Leadership today, there were some questions for you:

<I--[if IsupportLists]-->1. <!--[endif]--> You said once we get lab space it would
take about 7-10 days to get operational, correct?

<I--[if IsupportLists]-->2. <!--[endif]-->You're output would be about 40 tests
every 2 hours?

<I--[if IsupportLists]-->3. <!--[endif]-->You feel pretty confident in your supply
chain for testing materials and reagents?

<!|--[if IsupportLists]-->4. <!--[endif]-->Any issues with supplies or limitations? Do
you project being able to accomplish thousands of tests with no issues?

Any other input?

Thanks,






From: Brownie W. Newman

To: Esther Manheimer

Subject: Fwd: responses from Garret

Date: Friday, April 17, 2020 12:25:04 PM
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





